
 
 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF COUNCIL MEETING 
 

You are summoned to attend a meeting of Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council to be 
held in the Council Chamber, Gateshead Civic Centre, at 2.30 pm on Thursday, 26 

January 2023 to transact the following business:- 
  
1 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held 24 November 2022 (Pages 3 - 10) 

 
  

2 Official Announcements  
 
(announcements may be made by the Mayor, Leader of the Council or the Chief 
Executive) 
 
  

3 Director of Public Health Annual Report  
 
  

4 Petitions  
 
(to receive petitions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 10) 
 
  

5 Questions from Members of the Public  
 
(to consider any questions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 7) 
 
 
 
 
  

All Members of the Council My Ref: LCS-DLDS-DS-C-022 
 Your Ref:  
   
 Contact Roz Patterson 
 Tel: 0191 4332088 
   
 Date: Wednesday, 18 

January 2023 

Public Document Pack



 

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CABINET  
 
  
6 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 30 year Business Plan (Pages 11 - 44) 

 
  

7 Local Boundary Commission for England - Electoral Review of Gateshead 
Council (Pages 45 - 116) 
 
  

8 Calendar of Meetings 2023/24 (Pages 117 - 136) 
 
  

9 Revenue Budget Third Quarter Review 2022/23 (Pages 137 - 144) 
 
  

10 Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2022/23 – Third Quarter 
Review (Pages 145 - 158) 
 
  

MOTIONS AND QUESTIONS  
 
  
11 Notice of Motion  

 
(to consider any notices of motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 
9.1) 
 
  

11a Notice of Motion - Fruit from Orchards (Pages 159 - 160) 
  

11b Amendment to Motion (Pages 161 - 162) 
  

12 Questions  
 
(to deal with any questions submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 8.1) 
 
 

 

 
Sheena Ramsey 
Chief Executive 

 



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 
 

 
PRESENT: THE MAYOR COUNCILLOR D BURNETT (CHAIR) 
  
 Councillors: J Adams, V Anderson, R Beadle, D Bradford, 

C Buckley, P Burns, L Caffrey, B Clelland, P Craig, C Davison, 
W Dick, S Dickie, P Diston, K Dodds, C Donovan, A Douglas, 
S Gallagher, M Gannon, A Geddes, F Geddes, J Gibson, 
T Graham, J Green, L Green, S Green, G Haley, M Hall, H Kelly, 
L Kirton, P Maughan, K McCartney, J McCoid, J McElroy, 
E McMaster, M McNestry, J Mohammed, L Moir, B Oliphant, A Ord, 
C Ord, M Ord, I Patterson, S Potts, D Robson, S Ronchetti, 
J Simpson, J Turner, J Wallace, R Waugh, D Weatherley, 
H Weatherley, D Welsh and K Wood 

  
APOLOGIES: Councillors: M Brain, J Eagle, B Goldsworthy, M Goldsworthy, 

S Hawkins, H Haran, P McNally, R Mullen, J Reay, J Turnbull and 
A Wintcher 

  
CL49   HONORARY ALDERMEN/ALDERWOMEN OF THE BOROUGH  

 
 COUNCIL RESOLVED           -     That the Gateshead Metropolitan Borough  

Council, under the provisions of the Local 
Government Act 1972, hereby confers the title of 
Honorary Alderman/Alderwoman upon the 
following former councillors in recognition of their 
eminent service to the Council: 
  
            Christine Bradley        2007 – 2019  
            Marilyn Charlton          2010 – 2022 
            Susan Craig                2008 – 2022    
            Malcolm Graham        1988 – 2019     
            Mick Henry CBE         1986 – 2019    
            Michael Hood      2008 – 2021     
            Jean Lee                     2004 – 2021 
            John McClurey            2008 – 2021 
            Robin Stanaway          2000 – 2010    
            Neil Weatherley          1998 – 2019    
            Anne Wheeler             2010 – 2022     
  
And accordingly it hereby admits the above former 
councillors to be Honorary Aldermen/Alderwomen. 

 
 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

CL50   HONORARY FREEDOM OF THE BOROUGH  
 

 COUNCIL RESOLVED           -     That Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council,  
under the provisions of the Local Government Act 
1972, hereby confers the Honorary Freedom of 
the Borough upon: 
  
            Mick Henry CBE 
            David Olusoga OBE 
            Bobby Pattinson 
  
And accordingly it hereby admits Mick Henry CBE, 
David Olusoga OBE and Bobby Pattinson as 
Honorary Freemen of the Metropolitan Borough of 
Gateshead. 

 
 
 
 
 

Mayor…………………………………… 
 
 

Page 4



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 
 

 
PRESENT: THE MAYOR COUNCILLOR D BURNETT (CHAIR) 
  
 Councillors: J Adams, V Anderson, R Beadle, D Bradford, 

C Buckley, P Burns, L Caffrey, B Clelland, P Craig, C Davison, 
W Dick, S Dickie, P Diston, K Dodds, C Donovan, A Douglas, 
S Gallagher, M Gannon, A Geddes, F Geddes, J Gibson, 
T Graham, J Green, L Green, S Green, G Haley, M Hall, H Kelly, 
L Kirton, P Maughan, K McCartney, J McCoid, J McElroy, 
E McMaster, M McNestry, J Mohammed, L Moir, B Oliphant, A Ord, 
C Ord, M Ord, I Patterson, S Potts, D Robson, S Ronchetti, 
J Simpson, J Turner, J Wallace, R Waugh, D Weatherley, 
H Weatherley, D Welsh and K Wood 

  
APOLOGIES: Councillors: M Brain, J Eagle, B Goldsworthy, M Goldsworthy, 

S Hawkins, H Haran, P McNally, R Mullen, J Reay, J Turnbull and 
A Wintcher 

  
CL51   TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 OCTOBER 2022  

 
 COUNCIL RESOLVED           -     That the minutes of the meeting held on 13  

October 2022 be approved as a correct record. 
  

CL52   OFFICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 Labour Appointment 
  
Council noted that Councillor Jill Green will fill the vacancy on the Joint OSC for the 
North East and Cumbria ICS and North and Central ICPs. 
  

CL53   PETITIONS  
 

 There were no petitions submitted. 
  

CL54   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

 Ms Rosie Lewis submitted the following question: 
  
“Can you please outline how the Gateshead Leisure Services Review Consultation 
will be assessed, what measurement and evaluation frameworks will be used and 
what weight will be given to each question?”. 
  
Councillor Angela Douglas responded to the question and a subsequent question 
asked by Ms Lewis. 

Page 5



 

  
CL55   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 85  

 
 Consideration was given to a report seeking agreement to regard the ill health of Cllr 

Paul McNally as the reason for his failure to attend meetings. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That for the purposes of Section 85(1) of the  

Local Government Act 1972, the ill health of 
Councillor Paul McNally be regarded as the 
reason for this failure to attend meetings. 

  
CL56   LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME FOR 2023/24  

 
 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of a Local Council Tax 

Support Scheme for the year 2023/24. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED           -           (i)  That the proposed scheme as set out in  

paragraphs 8 and 10 of the report be 
approved. 

  
                                                            (ii) That powers be delegated to the  

Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, to 
provide regulations to give effect to the 
scheme including publishing full details 
online. 

  
CL57   MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2023/24 – 2027/28  

 
 Consideration was given to a report seeking endorsement of the Medium Term 

Financial Strategy 2023/24 – 2027/28. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That the Medium Term Financial Strategy for  

2023/24 to 2027/28 including the proposed MTFS 
principles and the medium term financial context, 
as set out in the report, be approved. 

  
CL58   CLIMATE EMERGENCY STRATEGY ADOPTION AND CLIMATE UPDATE  

 
 Consideration was given to a report seeking endorsement of the adoption of the 

Climate Strategy. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED           -     That the Climate Strategy be adopted. 
  

CL59   TREASURY MANAGEMENT - PERFORMANCE TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2022  
 

 Consideration was given to a report informing Council on the Treasury Management 
performance for the six months up to 30 September 2022. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That the Treasury Management Performance to  

30 September 2022 be noted; to contribute to 

Page 6



 

sound financial management and the long-term 
financial sustainability of the Council. 

  
CL60   REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23 - SECOND QUARTER REVIEW  

 
 Consideration was given to a report setting out the latest monitoring position on the 

2022/23 revenue budget at the end of the second quarter. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -           (i)   That the Council’s revenue expenditure  

position at the end of the second  
quarter, as set out in appendices 1 and 2 of 
the report, be noted. 

  
                                                            (ii) That the Housing Revenue Account  

Budget, as set out in Appendix 3 of the 
report, be approved. 

  
CL61   CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2022/23 - SECOND 

QUARTER REVIEW  
 

 Consideration was given to a report informing of the latest position on the 2022/23 
Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators at the end of the second quarter to 30 
September 2022. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -           (i)   That the variations to the 2022/23  

Capital Programme be approved. 
  
                                                            (ii) That the financing of the revised  

programme be approved. 
  
                                                            (iii)That it be noted that the capital  

expenditure and financing requirements 
have been revised in line with the amended 
budget and that none of the approved 
Prudential Indicators set for 2022/23 have 
been breached. 

  
CL62   CAPITAL STRATEGY 2023/24 TO 2027/28  

 
 Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the Capital Strategy for 

2023/24 to 2027/28 to support the framework used to set and monitor the Capital 
Programme. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED           -     That the Capital Strategy, as set out in  

Appendix 2 of the report, be approved so that it 
fully complies with the requirements of good 
financial practice in capital accounting. 

 
 
  

Page 7



 

CL63   BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR ENGLAND (BCE) - 2023 REVIEW OF 
PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCIES - REVISED PROPOSALS  
 

 Consideration was given to a report seeking agreement for the Chief Executive to 
respond on behalf of the Council to the Revised Proposals published by the 
Boundary Commission for England in its 2023 Parliamentary Boundary Review. 
  
COUNCIL RESOLVED          -      That the Chief Executive be authorised to  

prepare and submit a response to the Revised 
Proposals, making representation regarding 
matters highlighted in the report, following a 
Members’ Seminar and consultation with the 
Leader of the Council and the Leader of the 
Opposition. 

  
CL64   NOTICE OF MOTION  

 
 Councillor Lynne Caffrey moved the following motion: 

  
“Council notes that: 
  
In 2010, Gateshead Council published a policy response to Climate Change.  
In 2019, as a response to the global Climate Crisis, Gateshead Council declared a 
Climate Emergency and agreed a strategy to be Carbon Neutral by 2030. 
  
As part of this strategy many measures have been adopted both internally and 
externally and we are pledged to: 
  

       Making all our activities Carbon Neutral by 2030 
       Achieving 100% clean energy across our full range of functions by 2030 
       Ensuring that all strategic decisions, budgets and approaches to planning 

decisions, are in line with a shift to Zero Carbon by 2030 
      Supporting and working with all relevant bodies towards making the entire 

area Carbon Neutral within the same timescale 
  
As a Council: 
  

       We recognise that fossil fuel investments should be considered as part of the 
Councils Carbon Footprint and that we owe it to future generations to ensure 
we do not exceed the internationally agreed temperature increase threshold 
of 1.5 degrees C above preindustrial global heating levels, which is 
predominantly caused by the burning of fossil fuels. 

       We have no direct investments in Fossil Fuel companies other than those 
invested on our behalf as part of Tyne and Wear Local Government Pension 
Scheme (TWLGPS) 

       We believe the TWLGPS strategy of decarbonisation of their portfolio by 2050 
(agreed December 2021) rather than divestment in fossil fuels, will not be 
sufficient to ensure we meet our carbon neutral target by 2030. 

  
Whilst appreciating the TWLGPS is run by Trustees, including a Gateshead Trustee, 

Page 8



 

who have a fiduciary duty to protect the assets of the scheme in order to protect the 
pensions of beneficiaries, we believe this needs to include the long-term 
sustainability of the Fund’s performance, which is at risk from “stranded assets” and 
environmental degradation. 
  
We believe our request to the TWLGPS contained in this motion supports our 
Council Policy, our aspiration to be Carbon Neutral by 2030 and, the ethos of the 
Scheme. 
  
This motion is simply an indicative vote as legally we have no powers to mandate 
the scheme Trustees, but we trust their judgment and their understanding of our 
need as a society to minimise harm. 
  
Gateshead Council undertakes to: 
  

       Re-state our commitment to becoming fully carbon neutral by 2030 
  

       Write to TWLGPS and to Border to Coast Pension Partnership (their pooling 
organisation) to ask them to review their investments in fossil fuels, taking into 
account the latest findings of the International Institute of Sustainable 
Development, which confirms that no new oil and gas fields must be opened 
from now, if the earth’s temperature is to be kept below 1.5 degrees C. 
  

       Ask TWLGPS and BCPP to actively invest in companies that will reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions and minimise climate risk.” 

  
  
On the motion being put it was declared to be carried. 
  

CL65   QUESTIONS  
 

 There were no questions submitted. 
 

Mayor…………………………………… 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

26 January 2023 
 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) 30 YEAR 
BUSINESS PLAN 

 
 

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to endorse the proposed Housing Revenue 

Account (HRA) 30-year Business Plan 2022-2052.  
 

2. The HRA Business Plan sets out the Council’s income and expenditure plans 
for delivering Council Housing Services in Gateshead.  The most up to date 
forecast information has been used in the preparation of the plan. These 
assumptions will be kept under review and revised annually as a minimum. 
 

3. The plan sets out the financial trajectory for the HRA based on specific 
assumptions which are outlined in the report. 
 

4. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report  
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
5. It is recommended that Council approve the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

30 Year Business Plan 2022-2052 as set out in Appendix 2 of the attached 
report. 

 
 
 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 of 7  
 

    
    REPORT TO CABINET 

 20 December 2022 
 
 

TITLE OF REPORT: Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 30 Year Business Plan  
 
REPORT OF: Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital  
 Colin Huntington, Strategic Director, Housing, Environment 
 and Healthy Communities 
 
 

Purpose of the Report  
 
1. Cabinet is asked to recommend to Council the proposed Housing Revenue 

Account (HRA) 30-year Business Plan 2022-2052. 
 

 Background 
 
2. The HRA Business Plan is a key strategic document which sets out the Council’s 

income and expenditure plans for delivering Council Housing Services in 
Gateshead. 
 

3. In October 2021 Council agreed a fully costed viable 30-year HRA business plan. 
Immediately following this approval, the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) 
updated the inflation forecasts, which impacted the business plan.  
 

4. On 22 February 2022 Council agreed the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget 
2022/23, which included a recasting of the 30-year Business Plan to incorporate 
the updated forecasts.  
 

5. The HRA Business Plan assumed rent increases of CPI +1% for 2023/24, which at 
the time using inflation forecasts, equated to 5% and required savings over the 
medium term of £3.6 million and additional borrowing to be undertaken in year 17 
of the plan, with total borrowing increasing by £161.690 million to £507.195 million.  
 

6. On 17 November 2022 in the Autumn Statement the Chancellor confirmed an 
upper limit on rent increases of 7%. Given the rent policy is CPI +1% (September 
CPI was 10.1%), which would result in rent increases of 11.1% and therefore the 
capping at 7% is in real terms a rent cut given the significant cost pressures. The 
exact detail of the rent cap application and the annual confirmation of the limit on 
rent increases has not yet been issued.  
 

7. On the 22 November 2022 Council agreed the Revenue Budget - Second Quarter 
Review which reported a £3 million projected overspend on the HRA. Whilst it is 
the intention to bring this in on budget, the overspend is reflected in the business 
plan. As part of this report Council agreed to increase the HRA budget for 2022/23 
by £3 million to accommodate the back log in repairs and maintenance, which is in 
addition to the identified overspend.   
 

8. Given the HRA business plan is a 30-year plan the longer-term assumptions 
become more subjective and are likely to change and therefore it is of utmost 

Page 13



 

 2 of 7  
 

importance that the medium term planning horizon is robust. It has, however, never 
been more challenging given the current financial climate. There is spiralling 
inflation amidst uncertainty around international issues, the national economy and 
cost of living crisis, notably around food, fuel and utility prices across the country. 
 

9. Inflationary pressures identified in 2022/23 will have a cumulative effect across the 
medium term and beyond. It is anticipated that levels of inflation will not reduce 
significantly by the end of 2022/23 and therefore likely to be ongoing pressures 
during 2023/24. 

 
 Proposal 
 
10. The plan relies on a number of assumptions, and as this is a 30-year plan, 

assumptions become more uncertain with each year of the plan. The primary risks 
are in relation to future inflation and interest rates, however, the most up to date 
forecast information has been used in the preparation of the plan. These 
assumptions will be kept under review and revised annually as a minimum.  
 

11. Overall, the revised HRA Business Plan (appendix 2) assuming a 7% rent increase 
for 2023/24 reverting to rent policy of CPI+1 for 2024/25 is a fully costed, 
sustainable plan and does not breach the minimum £3 million reserve balance 
during the life of the plan (30 years). 
 

12. The plan is not setting the actual rent and service charges nor is it setting the 
budget. Those matters will be subject to a further report to Cabinet in February. 
The plan is, however, setting out the financial trajectory for the HRA based on 
specific assumptions which are clearly outlined. Any deviation from these 
assumptions will have impact on the plan and a significant impact on stock 
investment plans, council new build and the provision of housing services. 
 

13. As an indication a 1% reduction in rent equates to a reduction in income of £3.95 
million over the medium term and £27.9 million over the 30-year plan with 
additional borrowing of £51 million by year 30.  
 

14. In order to incorporate all the cost pressures and anticipated capital investment, 
including new social housing stock, over the longer term, borrowing will need rise 
significantly above the current levels and medium term efficiency savings will be 
required.  

 
15. The plan now requires as a minimum, efficiency savings over the medium term of 

£3.794 million with a requirement for this to be front loaded with £1.468 million 
required in 2023/24. It is important that the savings are underpinned by a robust 
efficiencies plan, which will be developed during the budget setting process.  
 

16. Whilst the borrowing is affordable within this plan, debt needs to be managed in the 
overall context of affordability for the Council. The risks associated with borrowing 
will therefore need to be kept under review. 
 

17. However, to accommodate the below inflation rise in rents, borrowing would 
increase to £601.424 million by year 30 which is £94.229 million more than 
estimated in February 2022. Additional borrowing will start to accrue in year 9 of 
the plan rather than year 17.  

Page 14



 

 3 of 7  
 

 
18. The alternative to the additional borrowing would be to make a further £1.3 million 

of HRA savings over the medium term in addition to that outlined in paragraph 15. 
Given the additional borrowing goes beyond the medium term it is recommended 
that this is kept under review.  
 

19. This plan incorporates the capital investment requirements of the current dwelling 
and non-dwelling stock. This programme is fully fundable subject to achieving the 
required level of efficiencies, rent increase assumption for 2023/24, and 
achievement of key performance assumptions such as future void loss. This should 
be read in conjunction with the HRA Asset Management Strategy. 

 
20. There is provision to complete the demolition of Sir Godfrey Thompson Court, 

Crowhall Towers, Redheugh and Eslington Courts.  
 

21. The plan will also support the Housing Development Strategy enabling the 
development of a further 40 units of social housing per annum over a 10-year 
period funded from the HRA in addition to the 44 units being developed at Whitley 
Court.  
 

 Recommendations 
 
22. Cabinet is asked to recommend to Council the approval of the Housing Revenue 

Account (HRA) 30 Year Business Plan 2022-2052 as set out in Appendix 2.  
 

For the following reasons: 
 
(i) To ensure the medium to long term sustainability of the Housing Revenue 

Account. 
 
(ii) To realise the Council’s policies and objectives in relation to the Housing             
 Strategy in order to maintain and enhance Council Housing provision in             
 Gateshead. 
 
(ii) To assist in the delivery of the Council’s vision for Gateshead as set out in 

Making Gateshead a Place where Everyone Thrives. 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT: 
Kristina Robson     Ext 3943 
Kevin Scarlett                              Ext 5303  
 

 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

 4 of 7  
 

Appendix 1 
 Policy Context  
 

1. The proposals support the overall vision for Gateshead as set out in Making 
Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives including achieving the following 
outcomes: providing good quality housing with a mix of tenures and affordable options 
that meet the needs of local people including families and older people enabling them 
to live healthy lives and to make healthy choices, preventing ill health. 

 
2. The Housing Strategy 2019-2030 identifies clear housing objectives and priorities, 

puts forward a vision for housing in Gateshead, and sets a framework for how the 
Council will deliver services and interventions, and work in partnership with others, in 
a way that will help achieve those objectives using increasingly scarce resources 
proportionately and effectively. It includes three overarching strategic objectives: 

 
• Sustainable housing and economic growth  
• Sustainable neighbourhoods  
• Improved health & wellbeing 

 
3. In addition to these overarching objectives one of the key themes embedded in the 

strategy is supporting the long-term sustainability of the Council’s housing stock and 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 

 
 Background 

 
4. The HRA Business Plan sets the Council’s long-term investment strategy to maintain 

the quality of its housing stock. The plan is reviewed, at least, annually and uses 
current levels of income and expenditure information and projects this for the next 30 
years applying several key assumptions. These are in relation to the anticipated stock 
changes arising from right to buy sales, acquisitions and known new build and 
regeneration plans, the number of void properties, the policy on rent and service 
charge increases, repairs and maintenance and property management costs, capital 
investment requirements based on stock condition information and forecast borrowing 
costs. 

 
5. In October 2021 Council agreed a fully costed viable 30-year HRA business plan. 

Immediately following this approval, the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) 
updated the inflation forecasts, which impacted the business plan.  

 
6. On 22 February 2022 Council agreed the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget 

2022/23, which included a recasting of the 30-year Business Plan to incorporate the 
updated forecasts.  

 
7. A significant number of challenges have been placed on the HRA Business Plan 

because of: 
 

o Legislative change such as the impact of the Housing and Planning, and Welfare 
Reform Acts. 

o The imposition of a social rent cut of 1% per year, for 4 successive years 
commencing April 2016. 

o Increased buildings compliance and regulatory requirements, particularly post-
Grenfell and including new targets for carbon neutrality.  

o Increased Right to Buy sales resulting from the increased discounts  
o The impact of Brexit / Covid on inflation in general and particularly in the cost of 

construction / repairs in terms of materials and labour. Page 16



 

 5 of 7  
 

o Ukraine situation and global gas/electricity prices. 
o Changes to regulatory standards. 
o Repairs backlogs arising from the impact of Covid for which additional investment 

of £3 million has been required in 2022/23. 
 

8. This is alongside the need to: 
 

a. Address uneconomic and poor performing housing stock in Gateshead. Stock 
condition and demand information confirms that the required expenditure on some 
schemes over the short and longer term significantly exceeds any income from 
those schemes due to poor or no demand, coupled with the need for high value 
investment works. There is an outstanding need to appraise all available options 
for these schemes over the coming months. 
 

b. Identify operational efficiencies and more effective ways of working to ensure they 
are providing value for money and maximising HRA performance, particularly in 
relation to voids, income collection and day to day maintenance. 

 
9. Between 31 August 2022 and 7 October 2022, the Department for Levelling up, 

Housing and Communities (DLUHC) consulted on a new Direction from the Secretary 
of State to the Regulator of Social Housing in relation to social housing rent policy. It 
focuses on the introduction of a rent ceiling from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024, which 
would act as an upper limit on the maximum amount by which Registered Providers of 
social housing can increase rents in that year. 

 
10. On 17 November 2022 in the Autumn Statement the Chancellor confirmed the upper 

limit on rent increases of 7%. The exact detail of this and the annual confirmation of 
the limit on rent increases has not yet been issued.  

 
Refreshed Plan  
 

11. Overall, the revised HRA Business Plan (appendix 2) is fully costed and does not 
breach the minimum £3 million balance during the life of the plan (30 years). However, 
to incorporate all the cost pressures and anticipated capital investment, including new 
social housing stock, borrowing over the long term will need to rise significantly above 
the current levels and as a minimum efficiency savings over the medium term of 
£3.794 million with a requirement for this to be front loaded with £1.468 million 
required in 2023/24.  
 

12. Whilst the borrowing is affordable within this plan, debt needs to be managed in the 
overall context of affordability for the Council. The risks associated with borrowing will 
therefore need to be kept under review. 

 
13. However, to accommodation the below inflation rise in rents borrowing would increase 

to £601.424 million by year 30, which is £255.919 million higher than the current debt 
and £94.229 million more than the increase estimated in February 2022. Additional 
borrowing will start to accrue in year 9 of the plan rather than year 17.  

 
14. The alternative to the additional borrowing would be to make a further £1.3 million of 

HRA savings over the medium term in addition to the minimum efficiency savings. 
Given the additional borrowing goes beyond the medium term it is recommended that 
this is kept under review, especially in the context of the volatile financial environment 
in which the plan has been developed.  

 
 

Page 17



 

 6 of 7  
 

 
 

 Capital Investment  
 

15. The capital investment included in the plan is based on the stock condition surveys of 
the current stock and also includes the following: 
• Progress towards net zero carbon 
• Ensuring compliance with building safety measures 
• Investment in garage sites 
• Investment in IT Infrastructure 
• Investment in the commercial stock  
• Investment in communal areas and the wider environment 
• Continued investment in disabled adaptations 
• Support to increase the opportunities for Fostering within the social housing 

portfolio 
 

16. A summary of the planned 5-year (2023-28) capital programme is included in the plan. 
This programme is fully fundable subject to achieving the required level of efficiencies, 
rent increase assumption for 2023/24, and achievement of key performance 
assumptions such as future void loss.  
 

17. There is provision for the delivery of stock options reviews in relation to both high rise 
blocks and older persons accommodation and to complete the demolition of Sir 
Godfrey Thompson Court, Crowhall Towers, Redheugh and Eslington Courts.  

 
18. The plan also provides for the development of new social housing units of 40 per 

annum for 10 years from 2022/23 and it has been assumed that there will be an 
opportunity to bid for Homes England grant funding to support the delivery of these 
units.   

 
19. There is also provision for the 44 units at Whitley Court that are incrementally being let 

during 2022/23.  
 

Consultation  
 

20. Consultation has taken place with the Leader and Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member for 
Housing and the Strategic Housing Board.  
 

 Alternative Options 
 

21. There are no alternative options proposed. 
 

Implications of Recommended Option 
 

22. Resources 
 

a. Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, confirms 
that the financial implications are reflected in the HRA Business Plan document at 
appendix 2. 

 
The proposed HRA 30 Year Business Plan enables the investment priorities for 
the HRA to be delivered whilst ensuring the overall HRA reserve balance remains 
above £3 million.  

 Page 18



 

 7 of 7  
 

The plan includes medium term efficiencies of £3.794 million which are required to 
ensure the HRA plan is fully costed and sustainable over the longer term. 

 
b. Human Resources Implications – Any direct implications will form part of the 

budget planning framework and identification of budget proposals. 
 
c. Property Implications – Capital investment in HRA assets helps to improve the 

overall sustainability of the HRA and supports the delivery of corporate priorities 
under the Thrive agenda.  

 
23. Risk Management Implications – In the development of the HRA Business Plan a 

risk assessment of the assumptions has been carried out. As this is a 30 year plan it is 
sensitive to changes in the assumptions and therefore it is important that the plan is 
kept under review being refreshed at least annually and that savings required are 
underpinned by a robust savings delivery plan which will be developed during the 
budget setting process.    

 
23. Equality and Diversity Implications – An equality impact framework has been 

developed to assess efficiency proposals. 
 

24. Crime and Disorder Implications – No direct crime and disorder implications.  
 

25. Health Implications – No direct health implications. Delivery of the investment 
priorities supported by this plan are likely to have positive health outcomes.  

 
26. Sustainability and Climate Emergency Implications – The report contains a 

number of measures, which will help deliver a more Sustainable Gateshead and 
support the delivery of the HRA Asset Strategy which includes net zero carbon 
measures for the Council’s housing stock. 

 
27. Human Rights Implications – No direct human rights implications. 
 
28. Ward Implications – All wards will be affected by the proposals in this report. 
 
Background Information 

 
Direction on the Rent Standard 2019 
The Housing Revenue Account Self Financing Determinations February 2012 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
Localism Act 2011 
Autumn Statement 2022 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



    APPENDIX 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)  
BUSINESS PLAN 2022-2052 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



CONTENTS  
 
 

1. Introduction        1 

2. National Policy Context      2 

3. Local Policy Context      5 

4. Housing Investment Plan      7 

5. HRA Financial Plan       11 

6. Risk Assessment       17 

7. Conclusion        19 

8. Appendices        20 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

Page 1 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is the financial account used to manage the 

Council’s activities as a landlord. It is a ring-fenced account and can only be used to 
provide services to Council housing tenants through the collection of rent and other 
service charges. 

 
1.2 The HRA Business Plan is a key strategic document which sets out the Council’s 

income and expenditure plans for delivering Council Housing Services in Gateshead.   
 
1.3 Following approval of the 30-year HRA business plan 2021-2051 the Office for Budget 

Responsibility (OBR) updated the inflation forecasts which impacted the business 
plan. Rather than updating the actual business plan amendments were made and 
factored into the budget 2022/23 and the 5-year medium term position.   

 
1.4 This refresh of the plan is set against a backdrop of an extremely challenging financial 

situation. There is spiralling inflation amidst uncertainty around international issues, 
the national economy and cost of living crisis, notably around food, fuel and utility 
prices across the country.  

 
1.5 As this is a 30-year plan, assumptions become more uncertain with each year of the 

plan. The primary risks are in relation to future inflation and interest rates, however, 
the most up to date forecast information has been used in the preparation of the plan.  

 
1.6 Overall, the revised HRA Business Plan is a fully costed, sustainable plan and does 

not breach the minimum £3 million reserve balance during the life of the plan (30 
years). The plan requires as a minimum efficiency savings over the medium term of 
£3.794 million with a requirement for this to be front loaded with £1.468 million 
required in 2023/24.  

 
1.7 Whilst the borrowing is affordable within this plan, debt needs to be managed in the 

overall context of affordability for the Council. The risks associated with borrowing will 
therefore need to be kept under review. 

 
1.8 To accommodate the below inflation rise in rents resulting from the limit on rent 

increases of 7%, borrowing will need to increase to £601.424 million by year 30 which 
is £94.229 million more than estimated in February 2022 when the 2022/23 budget 
was set. Additional borrowing will start to accrue in year 9 of the plan rather than year 
17.  

 
1.9 This plan should be read in conjunction with the other key housing strategies and 

policies which set out how the above ambition can be achieved.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 23



 

Page 2 
 

2 NATIONAL POLICY CONTEXT 

2.1 The HRA operates within a political environment and therefore any changes in national 
housing policy can have a significant impact on the HRA Business Plan.   

 
2.2 National Social Rent Policy 
 
2.2.1 The Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 included a statutory obligation for registered 

providers of social housing to reduce their rents by 1% per year, irrespective of 
inflation, from April 2016 to March 2020.  

 
2.2.2 From April 2020, the Regulator of Social Housing’s (RSH) Rent Standard made 

provision for a maximum annual increase in social housing rents of CPI plus 1% with 
effect from April 2020 for a period of five years.  

 
2.2.3 In the Autumn Statement the Chancellor following a previous consultation on a cap for 

2023/24 announced a cap on rent increases of 7%. The exact details of the changes 
to the rent policy for 2023/24 have yet to be issued and therefore this plan assumes a 
rent increase of 7% across all stock types reverting back to rent policy of CPI+1% for 
2024/25.   

 
2.2.3 Any increase in rent will mean an impact on tenants’ household budgets but the 

additional income is vital to maintain and improve the services we provide to tenants, 
invest in our existing housing stock in accordance with the stock condition surveys and 
develop new social housing to address the needs of local people. 

 
2.2.4 Future rent increases will not mitigate against the reductions during 2016-2020 and it 

now means that rents are now set against a lower baseline than they would have 
been.   

  
2.3 HRA Borrowing Cap 
 
2.3.1 In October 2018 the Government issued a determination removing the HRA debt cap. 

The HRA debt cap for Gateshead was £345.505 million, but current borrowing is below 
that level. 

 
2.3.2 The removal of the cap provides the Council with more freedom and flexibility to 

undertake additional borrowing subject to the principles of the Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities of affordability, sustainability and prudence.  

 
2.3.3 Primarily this will help the Council in its commitment to deliver more affordable 

housing. However, we can only use this flexibility to finance activities that generate 
sufficient income for the HRA to offset the required upfront capital and management 
costs associated with the investment within the HRA business planning horizon. Using 
the borrowing capacity in any other way will bring additional financial risk to the HRA 
Business Plan.  

 
2.4 Welfare Reform 

2.4.1 The measures introduced in the Welfare Reform Act 2012 represented the biggest 
change to the benefits system in a generation. There have been repeated delays to 
the full implementation of the changes, particularly the rollout of Universal Credit to 

Page 24



 

Page 3 
 

those already claiming legacy benefits. A further delay has recently been announced 
postponing the migration of those claiming Employment Support Allowance to 2028. 
 

2.4.2 By the midway point of the current year (2022/23), 37% of council tenants were in 
receipt of Universal Credit, and 34% were still receiving Housing Benefit. In the 
coming years, the proportion of tenants on Universal Credit will increase as those still 
on Housing Benefit are moved over. 
 

2.4.3 Universal Credit is paid in arrears and in most cases directly to the recipients rather 
than to the landlords. Rent arrears of those tenants on Universal Credit have 
increased, especially in the early weeks of a claim. At the end of year 2021/22, the 
average rent arrears of tenants on Universal Credit were £470, more than five times 
that of those still on Housing Benefit (£82). 
 

2.4.4 This combined with the benefit cap and the under-occupancy charge continues to be a 
challenge and poses a risk to the level of potential rent arrears that may accrue. The 
risk is made even more acute in the context of cost of living increases for residents. 
 

2.5 The Charter for Social Housing Residents (Social Housing White Paper) 
 
2.5.1 In November 2020, the Government issued its Social Housing White Paper – The 

Charter for Social Housing Reform, in which it sets out fundamental reform to ensure 
social homes provide an essential, safe, well managed service for all those who need 
it, including an enhanced regulatory regime for local authorities. The paper set out 
seven principles which will underpin a new, fairer deal for social housing residents:  

 
• To be safe in your home – to ensure every home is safe and secure 
• To know how your landlord is performing – including on repairs, complaints and  
• To have your complaints dealt with promptly and fairly – with access to a strong 

Ombudsman 
• To be treated with respect – backed by a strong consumer regulator and improved 

customer standards 
• To have your voice heard by your landlord – for example through regular meetings 

and scrutiny panels 
• To have a good quality home and neighbourhood to live in – keeping homes in 

good repair 
• To be supported to take your first step to home ownership – a ladder to other 

opportunities, should tenants circumstances allow 
 

2.5.2 Whilst the Government has still to confirm its legislative timetable for enacting the    
White Paper, more clarity has emerged on some aspects of the likely legislation 
including:  

 
• Regulatory confirmation of new tenant satisfaction measures from 2023/24. 
• Conclusion of the initial stages of the review of the Decent Homes including 

confirmation of a requirement to install smoke and carbon monoxide alarms to all 
homes. 

• Strengthening of the Housing Ombudsman service, including a new Complaint 
Handling Code. 

• Establishment of a new, national Social Housing Quality Residents Panel. 
 

Page 25



 

Page 4 
 

2.6 Housing Growth 
 
2.6.1 Addressing the housing shortage is a priority issue for the Government and one that 

carries clear expectations on how housing supply is increased in order to meet local 
housing needs. The Government is also keen that people can be supported into home 
ownership and have made available a number of packages and initiatives to enable 
social landlords to deliver new homes which specifically support this agenda. 

 
2.6.2 In March 2012 the Government published a policy paper ‘Reinvigorating Right to Buy 

and One for one Replacement’ and statutory instrument (2012 No. 711) which 
amended the capital finance regulations. As part of this Councils were able to sign an 
agreement with government to retain additional right to buy (RTB) receipts known as 
1-4-1 receipts which have certain conditions attached to their use. In 2021 in response 
to a 2018 consultation these conditions were amended to give Council’s more flexibility 
and extended the period for which they could be used. The aim of this was to enable 
more affordable homes to be built effectively replacing those bought through RTB.   

 
2.7 Climate Change and the Low Carbon Future 
 
2.7.1 The Government has committed to tackling climate change and intends to set a target 

of reducing domestic emissions to zero. The Government has indicated the possible 
revision of the Decent Homes Standard and of this including a requirement to achieve 
EPC D by 2025 and EPC C by 2030, thereby obliging us to meet these targets. The 
RSH therefore expects social landlords to be working to understand the potential costs 
of making carbon reduction improvements to our assets. A Net Carbon Zero Strategy 
will be developed to accompany the HRA Asset Strategy. 

 
2.8 Building Safety Act 2022 
 
2.8.1 The Government passed the above Act in April 2022 and is in effect its response to 

the Grenfell Tower fire tragedy in 2017.   
 
2.8.2 The Act requires the Council to register its in-occupation, high-risk, high-rise buildings 

with a newly established Building Safety Regulator (BSR). All buildings over 18m in 
height or with 7 or more storeys are captured in the scope of the Act. The Council’s 
accountable person must apply for a Building Assessment Certificate based on a 
submitted Building Safety Case Report for each building. This process will commence 
from April 2024. The BSR has significant powers if there is a breach of the Act’s 
requirements. 

 
2.9 Fire Safety Act 2021 
 
2.9.1 The Act makes amendments to the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 ("the 

FSO") and extends the provisions of the FSO to the following parts of a multi-occupied 
residential buildings: 

• the building's structure, external walls and any common parts. The external 
walls include doors or windows in those walls, and anything attached to the 
exterior of those walls, e.g. balconies and cladding. 

• all doors between the domestic premises and common parts. 

Page 26



 

Page 5 
 

2.9.2 Under Article 3 of the FSO, the "responsible person" of a premise (either a building or 
any part of it) is the person who has control of the premises ("the Responsible 
Person"), which may include building owners, leaseholders or managers. 

2.9.3 The Council will take a pro-active approach to ensure compliance with the provisions  

3. LOCAL POLICY CONTEXT  
 
3.1 The HRA Business Plan is set within a wider strategic context of the overall ambitions 

of the Council and those of the Housing Service. 
 
3.2 Strategic Approach 
 
3.2.1 The Council’s strategic approach, Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone 

Thrives provides a framework to demonstrate how the Council will work and make 
decisions.  

 
3.2.2 Thrive is underpinned by five key pledges: 

• Putting people and families at the heart of everything we do; 
• Tackling inequality 
• Supporting our communities to support themselves and each other;  
• Investing in our economy to provide sustainable opportunities for employment, 

innovation and growth; and  
• Work together and for a better future for Gateshead Council 

3.2.3 The HRA Business plan supports the delivery of these pledges. 
 
3.3 Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 
3.3.1 The Health and Wellbeing Strategy identifies clear outcomes to support the delivery of 

“Gateshead Thrive”. Housing is identified as one of the wider determinants of health 
and can play a vital role in the long-term health and wellbeing of an individual.  

 
3.4 Housing Strategy 
 
3.4.1 The Housing Strategy identified clear housing objectives and priorities, puts forward a 

vision for housing in Gateshead, and sets a framework for how the Council will deliver 
services and interventions, and work in partnership with others, in a way that will help 
achieve those objectives. It includes three overarching strategic objectives: 
• Sustainable housing and economic growth 
• Sustainable neighbourhoods 
• Improved Health and Wellbeing 

 
3.5 HRA Asset Management Strategy  
 
3.5.1 The HRA Asset Management Plan sets out the Council’s approach to managing the 

housing related assets held in the Housing Revenue Account. It covers a range of 
activities that will ensure that the housing stock meets the needs of residents and the 
standards required, both now and in the future. Its five key aims are; 
• Delivering Decent Homes 
• Maximising Energy Efficiency 

Page 27



 

Page 6 
 

• Ensuring Compliance 
• Regeneration of Estates and Assets 
• Investment in IT Infrastructure 
• Developing New Homes 

3.6 Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 
 
3.6.1 The Council’s Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy aims to eradicate rough 

sleeping in Gateshead, make homelessness a rare and one-off occurrence, and 
achieve positive outcomes for anyone who is homeless. The HRA will help to support 
delivery of this strategy through the provision of much needed new affordable homes, 
and in contributing to the delivery services to support and realise sustainable tenancy 
solutions for those who may be at risk of homelessness.  

  
3.7 Housing Development Strategy  
 
3.7.1 A new Housing Development Strategy has been introduced by the Council which 

confirms priority actions to be undertaken over the next five years to maximise housing 
supply on existing and new sites. This strategy also aligns with the Council’s medium-
term position and investment plan. 

 
3.8 Tenancy Strategy and Allocations Policy 
 
3.8.1 The Tenancy Strategy which was recently approved in October 2022 together with the 

Allocations Policy will help to deliver on the strategic aims of the Housing Strategy. It 
will ensure statutory and regulatory compliance by ensuring our properties are let in a 
fair, transparent and efficient way, make best use of our stock, reduce the amount of 
time properties are empty, address under occupation and overcrowding and to meet 
our strategic housing needs, including homelessness. 

 
3.9 Resident Influence Strategy  
 
3.9.1 The Resident Influence Strategy and Framework has been developed within the 

context of a national regulatory framework. The Regulator of Social Housing sets four 
Consumer standards that applies to all registered social landlords including local 
authorities. The Tenant Involvement and Empowerment standard is one of the four 
Consumer standards. It sets out clearly the requirement that registered providers shall 
ensure that tenants are given a wide range of opportunities to influence and be 
involved influencing decisions, shaping policies, and recommending service 
improvements.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

Page 7 
 

4. HOUSING INVESTMENT PLAN 
 
4.1 Dwelling Stock Profile 
 
4.1.1 The following graphs outline the profile of the HRA dwelling stock within Gateshead.   
 

 
 
4.1.2 The predicated 30 year stock position is shown in the graph below. Accounting for the 

predicted sales of properties through Right to Buy, the potential impact of stock 
options and predicted development opportunities housing stock is predicted to be 
15,903 by year 30 of the plan. 

 

 

Page 29



 

Page 8 
 

4.2 Other HRA Assets 
 
4.2.2  The HRA also owns a number of non-domestic assets, which are predominantly made 

up of garages, lounges, shops, land and play equipment. Reviews of the status of non-
domestic assets has commenced. These are exploring how these assets are used and 
whether disposal, demolition or a change of use would bring more value to the HRA to 
better help, support and sustain neighbourhoods & communities. 

 
4.3 Investment Priorities 
 
4.3.1 The capital investment included in the plan is based on the stock condition surveys of 

the current stock, and also includes the following: 
• Progress towards net zero carbon 
• Ensuring compliance with building safety measures 
• Investment in garage sites 
• Investment in IT Infrastructure 
• Investment in the commercial stock  
• Investment in communal areas and the wider environment 
• Continued investment in disabled adaptations 
• Support to increase the opportunities for Fostering within the social housing 

portfolio 
 
4.4 General Stock Investment  
 
4.4.1 Since the end of the Decent Homes Programme the balance of responsive repairs 

verses planned works have shifted and excessive responsive repair interventions are 
being delivered. As part of the Construction Services review work has commence to 
address the split between responsive and planned so that more work is delivered in a 
planned way, ensuring value for money and the efficiencies associated with 
programmed works.  

 
4.4.2 A tool has been developed that will analyse estate-based repairs to gain insight into 

the numbers of repairs and the type of work being delivered, then assessing it against 
stock condition data. This tool will be embedded and used to identify trends and 
drivers for expenditure to aid planning and deliver an appropriate balance of reactive 
repairs and planned investment and ensure this is aligned with our understanding of 
stock condition and asset sustainability. 

 
4.5 Net Zero Carbon 
  
4.5.1 The HRA will need to invest c.£265 million into insulation measures and new heating 

technologies. Investment costs average around £16,000 property and in some cases 
are as much as £37,000. The HRA business plan includes some allowances for costs 
for energy efficiency measures and improvements but support from public funding will 
be required to meet our obligations around energy improvements and net zero carbon. 

  
4.6 Building Safety Measures 
 
4.6.1 The Council is committed to ensuring tenant safety and the intention is to ensure that 

assets meet all applicable health and safety requirements so that all residents and 

Page 30



 

Page 9 
 

visitors are confident that they are in a safe and secure environment. There has been 
significant investment into strengthening the safety of our assets over the last two 
years, and the necessary investment will be maintained to continue to ensure all 
assets are compliant. 

 
4.6.2 As part of the consolidation of housing services into the Council new and strengthened 

governance and scrutiny processes have been introduced to protect customers and 
the sustainability of the HRA.  

 
4.6.3 A robust and resourced Building Safety Team continues to be developed to manage 

the Council’s approach to this critical area of safety-based work and assurance. Strong 
condition data, process drive IT systems, robust building assessments and 
maintenance information will help protect the HRA from unplanned high cost and non-
compliance.  

 
4.6.4 As a building owner of higher risk residential buildings, such as high-rise buildings, we 

will compile and maintain safety case files and have appointed a building safety 
manager to support the management of our assets. 

 
4.7 Garage Sites 
 
4.7.1 Garages make up the largest proportion of non-domestic assets. These are assets 

that are formed of blocks or individual units that are not tied to or let as part of a 
domestic tenancy.  

 
4.7.2 There are 3,678 garages currently in the HRA making up 512 garage block sites. All 

garage blocks have been stock condition surveyed and sites have also been 
appraised to assess their potential future use. Almost £1 million has been allocated in 
the business plan to start delivering on the garage review over the next five years. The 
first non-viable sites will be decommissioned and demolished in 2023 and work is 
progressing an external partner to explore the prospect of changing the use of some 
sites to provide domestic accommodation.  

 
4.8 Investment in IT Infrastructure 
 
4.8.1 The current IT systems are structurally fit for purpose; however, there is insufficient 

interfacing or linkages to ensure a 360 view of all business intelligence. To strengthen 
the approach to data and ensure a robust and resilient approach a systems a review is 
underway. It will assess the existing IT strategy and future organisational need. The 
recommendations from the review will support IT infrastructure improvements and 
future procurement exercises. 

 
4.9 Investment in Commercial Stock & the Wider Environment 
 
4.9.1 There are also a small number of fixed play equipment sites that fall within the 

management of the HRA. These sites carry with them inspection and compliance 
requirements as well as ongoing maintenance costs. In partnership with communities 
these sites will be reviewed. 

 
4.9.2 It is recognised that there is a need to review the status of non-domestic assets to 

explore how they are used and whether a change of use would bring more value to the 
HRA and better help support and sustain neighbourhoods & communities. 

Page 31



 

Page 10 
 

4.10 Disabled Adaptations 
  
4.10.1 The Council recognises its social responsibility to support vulnerable and disabled 

residents to remain independent in their home. There is an annual budget for the 
provision of minor works, like handrails, through to major adaptations such as adapted 
bathrooms or property alterations. 

 
4.10.2 Demand for adaptations in council homes remains high, with a large proportion of 

residents defining themselves as having a disability. The approach to adaptations 
must remain sustainable and viable, make the ‘best use’ of our stock by ensuring that 
properties are allocated appropriately, that investment is only made into sustainable 
adaptations, and that value for money is achieved. 

 
4.11 Stock Options 
 
4.11.1 High Rise Blocks 
 

1. The analysis of the future pressures on the HRA highlights high rise blocks as a 
key area of concern. The high-rise stock is commonly characterised as a liability to 
the HRA resulting from high investment cost, low demand and high management 
requirements.  
 

2. Redheugh & Eslington Courts were deemed unviable and are currently being 
decommissioned, with residents being decanted and will be demolished when 
empty.  

 
3. Warwick Court is undergoing a decommissioning process and a review of potential 

alternative uses for the block is being established.   
 
4. Decomissioning work is continuing at Sir Godfrey Thompson Court and Crowhall 

Towers, work to procure a demolition contractor is likely to begin in early 2023. 
 

5. The strategic roadmap, subject to the decision-making process and consultation, is 
to undertake further options appraisals in line with the priorities laid out in the HRA 
Asset Strategy 2022-27. 
 

4.11.2 Older Person’s Housing  
 

1. Gateshead has seven older persons’ purpose-built housing blocks. They include 
over 200 sheltered 1-bedroomed and 2-bedroomed flats. Angel Court is the only 
modern purpose-built scheme.  

 
2. There is also a disproportionate spread of blocks across the borough. The East, 

Central and West Neighbourhoods have one block each, while in the South there 
are four schemes. It is proposed to undertake a specific Older Persons’ purpose-
built block review starting in 2023.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 

Page 11 
 

4.12 New Development 
 
4.12.1 The plan includes the development of new social housing units of 40 per annum for 10 

years from 2022/23 and it has been assumed that there will be an opportunity to bid 
for Homes England grant funding to support the delivery of these units.   

 
4.12.2 There is also provision for the 44 units at Whitley Court that are incrementally being let 

during 2022/23.  
 
5. HRA FINANCIAL PLAN  
 
5.1 The Financial Plan shows how both the Council Housing Investment Programme and 

the day to day Council housing services will be funded.  
 
5.2 Overall, the revised HRA plan is fully costed and does not breach a minimum £3 

million balance during the life of the plan (30 years). However, to incorporate the cost 
pressures and anticipated capital investment, including new social housing stock, 
borrowing will need to rise significantly above the current levels.  

 
5.3 A copy of the HRA Operating Account 2022/23 to 2051/52 is attached at Appendix 1.  
 
5.4 The plan requires as a minimum savings of £3.794 million which has been phased as 

follows:  
 

 
 

5.5 The capital investment included in the 30-year plan is £1.261 billion the split of which 
is detailed in the following graph: 

 
 

Year

Total Annual 
Savings 

£000

Total 
Cumulative 

Savings
£000

2023/24 1,468
2024/25 970 2,438
2025/26 733 3,171
2026/27 623 3,794
2027/28 - 3,794
Total 3,794

Page 33



 

Page 12 
 

5.6 A summary of the planned 5-year 2023/24-2027/28 capital programme is shown in 
appendix 2.  

 
5.7 Borrowing Requirement 
 
5.7.1 The proposed plan shows that by year 30 borrowing will increase to £601.424 million 

which is £255.919 million higher than the current underlying loan debt. Borrowing will 
however not rise to a level above this until year 9 (see the following graph). 

 
5.7.2 Whilst the borrowing is affordable within this plan debt needs to be managed in the 

overall context of affordability for the Council. The risks associated with borrowing will 
therefore need to be kept under review.  

 

 
 
5.8 HRA Reserve Balances 
 
5.8.1 The HRA can budget for a deficit in a particular year, but the HRA total reserve 

balance must not be negative. The business plan is set to assume that if the 
assumptions resulted in the reserve balance falling below the minimum required of £3 
million in any year, then borrowing will be required. Borrowing can only be for capital 
purposes. Where revenue reserves are exhausted due to revenue expenditure 
exceeding income, then mitigating action is required.  

 
5.8.2 The plan shows that over 30 years, the surplus carried forwards stays above the 

minimum balance. 
 
5.8.3 The plan also shows that there are years where reserves will be used to fund 

predicted peaks in the capital programme due to lifecycle replacements. This 
minimises borrowing and reduces the level of interest charges that would be incurred. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 

Page 13 
 

 
5.9 Key Assumptions 
 
5.9.1 The financial plan is based on a number of key assumptions to mitigate against risks or changes that may occur over the life of the 

Business Plan.   
 
5.9.2 The assumptions used for the next 5 years over the medium-term period 2023/24 -2027/28 are outlined in the table below. As the 

HRA plan is over 30 years future assumptions have been made in respect of the key items listed.  
 

Assumptions 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 
CPI 10% 4% 2% 2% 2% 
RPI 12% 5% 3% 3% 3% 
Rent increase – as per scenarios for 2023/24 7% 5% 2% 2% 2% 
Service Charges 10% 4% 2% 2% 2% 
Energy Increase – included in management non-staff costs 10% 4% 2% 2% 2% 
Pay Inflation 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 
Repairs and Maintenance – non-staff costs  12% 5% 3% 3% 3% 
Supervision and Management non-staff costs 10% 4% 2% 2% 2% 
Capital Works Costs – except certain fixed elements 12% 5% 3% 3% 3% 
Void Rates 2% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 
Bad Debt Rates 0.95% 0.95% 0.95% 0.95% 0.95% 
Interest Rates on Borrowing 5% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 
Opening Stock Numbers 18,594 18,083 17,828 17,743 17,683 
Right to Buy Sales 115 115 115 115 115 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 35



 

Page 14 
 

Area of Business 
Plan 

Comments Assumptions Risk 

Stock Numbers The number of dwellings drives the level of 
income and costs which vary with the number 
of properties. This includes right to buy 
numbers, demolitions, remodelling of stock and 
new developments. 

Proposed numbers are as 
outlined in table 1 above. 

There is a risk that the number of 
successful right to buy applications 
increase and or there are barriers to new 
development resulting in a variation to 
the stock base. Any variation will impact 
both income and costs.  

Inflation CPI/RPI Inflation rates have significantly increased, 
particularly for 2023/24. Recent ONS 
announced (19 October) shows current CPI at 
10.1% and RPI at 12.6%. OBR forecasts for 
future years predict CPI at 4.1% for 2023/24 
and average 2% over future years. RPI at 
5.6% for 2023/24 and average 3% over future 
years 

CPI and RPI rates have been 
taken for each year as shown 
in table 1 above. 

Hyper-inflation has exacerbated the 
uncertainties of accurate modelling but is 
the most accurate in line with current 
information. OBR are the best estimates 
to hand however this will be kept under 
review. CPI impacts on both costs and 
income. 

Minimum Working 
Balance 

The HRA has an agreed minimum balance 
requirement to ensure there is adequate 
reserves cover. 

£3m assumed throughout the 
plan 

There is a risk that this is insufficient and 
there are unforeseen events that cannot 
be met.  

Salary Increases 
(Pay award) 

This cost pressure relates to the cost of pay 
award agreed for employees of the Council as 
well as agreed pay increments. Local Authority 
pay awards are determined through the 
national bargaining process rather than being 
mandated by Government. However, the 
messaging and government resource 
allocations for the future are likely to influence 
that national bargaining process. Current Pay 
offer estimates additional costs of around 5.7% 
or £1.5m. 

Pending a formal offer, and for 
planning purposes it is 
assumed that the pay awards 
will be 1.75% (£0.5m in 
2023/24 after impact of 
2022/23 pay award estimate) 
across each year.  

 

Pay increases which are agreed could be 
much higher than expected. This is 
unknown given current pay offer and cost 
of living.  
 
Alternative scenarios can be run 
regarding pay. There may be some cross 
over with the job evaluation cost 
pressure. 

Revenue Repairs There is a backlog of repairs amounting to £3m 
which has been added to 2022/23. Assumed 
current overspend is reduced within budget 
and £0.5m of the additional investment for void 
backlog works is removed. 

Inflation assumption using RPI.  There is a risk that the number of voids 
and turnover rate does not enable the 
£0.5m to be removed. There is also a 
balance between void loss and cost of 
repairs and timing of major estate works.  

P
age 36



 

Page 15 
 

Area of Business 
Plan 

Comments Assumptions Risk 

Rent Increases Rent policy is CPI + 1% but the Autumn 
Statement confirmed a upper limit of 7% on 
rent increases for 2023/24 

Assumes 7% rent increase on 
all stock for 2023/24 reverting 
to rent policy for thereafter.  

A 1% variation on the rental increase 
would result in £3.950m less income over 
the medium term and £27.9m over 30 
years. This in turn would bring borrowing 
forward by 1 year and by year 30 it would 
need to rise by a further £51m. 

Service Charge 
Increases 

Charges are based on full cost recovery 
however impact assessments are completed 
and stepped charges applied where 
appropriate. Service charge increase should 
be broadly comparable to rent increases 
although this does not preclude full cost 
recovery.  

For the purposes of financial 
modelling charges have been 
increased by CPI as currently 
we operate on a full cost 
recovery model.  

Actual costs may be far higher than 
charges modelled which could result in a 
disparity between income and 
expenditure.  

Void Rates Void rates vary depending upon the stock and 
within the plan for modelling purposes the 
stock has been divided to enable different void 
rates to be applied. This is most important for 
those subject to demolition or remodelling 
where void rates will increase as they are 
decanted.  

Void rates used in the plan are 
outlined in table 1 above. The 
current void loss is 2.94% 
against a budget of 2.5% 

There is a risk that void rates increase in 
areas where properties are more difficult 
to let and this will impact the level of 
income. 

Bad Debt Rate This is the value of the increase required to 
maintain the bad debt provision at an adequate 
level. Increasing current debt will have little 
impact as the debt profiling increases the risk 
of it becoming uncollectable with age.  

Bad debt rates used in the 
plan are outlined in table 1 
above. The 2021/22 actual 
was 0.86% 

Income collection rates decrease but 
there is a lag in the impact on the 
provision due to the methodology used in 
maintaining the provision. 

Other Income  Non dwelling rents such as garages have 
experienced a reduction in demand and for the 
purposes of financial modelling have been 
maintained at the current budget for the life of 
the plan. The stock loss over the plan does not 
directly vary other income so this has been 
managed through inflation  

Non dwelling rent not inflated 
and Water Commission RPI to 
2027/28 but no further inflation 
applied due to reduction in 
stock so assumed a level of 
offset. 

Positive risk that non dwelling rents can 
be increased without impacting demand.  

P
age 37



 

Page 16 
 

Area of Business 
Plan 

Comments Assumptions Risk 

Capital Receipts  The income from right to buy receipts can be 
used to fund redevelopment. There is an 
accumulated reserve of £12.6m which is 
estimated to be used over the next 5 years. 
Receipts received in year will be used to fund 
the capital programme except from 2025/26 
the Council will begin to accrue 1-4-1 receipts 
which must be used for new homes and cannot 
be combined with grant. Based on the current 
policy if not used these need to be repaid. 
Given development is assumed to attract grant 
the receipts are estimated to begin to be repaid 
in 2030/31 but this will be kept under review.  

Current average RTB value 
£89,283 (2021/22). Projected 
to be fairly constant over the 
next 5 years and then a slight 
increase at CPI.  

The sales are higher or lower than 
modelled which could impact the amount 
available to fund the capital programme  

Homes England 
Grant Funding 

It is assumed new developments will attract 
funding The Council has a good track recorded 
of securing Homes England Funding.  

£35,000 per property assumed 
over the 400 units  

There is a lower value of grant awarded 
however 1-4-1 right to buy receipts could 
instead be applied. There may need to 
be a conscious decision to not bid for 
grant and utilise the receipts.  

Major Works  The HRA capital programme is reflective of the 
agreed 2022/23 – 2026/27 and thereafter with 
adjustments made to reflect the slippage at 
Q2.  

Based on stock condition 
survey and rise with RPI with 
the exception of aids and 
adaptations and fees which 
are cash limited. 

There is a risk that costs rise above 
inflation but the latest forecast have been 
used in the plan.  

Depreciation Depreciation is a real cost in the HRA and is 
used to fund major repairs (capital). In 2022/23 
the amount needed to fund the programme 
based on the original assumptions regarding 
capital receipts is £1.9m lower than originally 
budgeted but the charge to the HRA increased 
in 2021/22 which increased the estimated 
2022/23 value and this must be charged to the 
HRA and set aside for capital expenditure.  

Charged in line with actual 
2021/22 and uplifted for RPI – 
restricted to 3% for 2023/24 
and 2024/25 despite higher 
projections for RPI. 

There is a risk that the depreciation 
charge is higher than modelled in the 
plan which would have an impact on the 
HRA balances as use of receipts would 
need to reduce, this will need to be kept 
under review. Undertaking an annual 
review will assist in mitigating this risk.  

    

P
age 38



 

Page 17 
 

Area of Business 
Plan 

Comments Assumptions Risk 

Interest rates on 
Borrowing 

The recent increase in the Bank of England 
base rates has resulted in interest rates overall 
increasing. The current rate is 2.25% 
compared to 0.1% this time last year.  

Interest rates for new 
borrowing for 2022/23 are 
estimated at 5.5%, 5% 
2023/24 and 4.5% thereafter.  

There is a risk interest rates increase 
further however there could be a positive 
risk of rates reducing for new borrowing.   

HRA Debt The opening HRA CFR is £345,505m. Each 
HRA loan is separately identified and debt 
profiled based on known interest rates. It is 
assumed that when debt matures it is 
refinanced.  

The level of additional debt 
accrued over the 30 year plan 
is dependent upon the rent 
scenario.  

 

 
6. Risk Assessment 
 
6.1 A comprehensive financial risk assessment has been undertaken to ensure that all risks and uncertainties affecting the council’s 

HRA financial position are identified.  These will be reviewed each year as part of the refresh of the HRA Business Plan. The key 
strategic financial risks to be considered are as follows: 

 
Risk Risk Management Likelihood Impact 
Inflation (Negative Risk) 
Rent increases linked to CPI with the 
majority of other costs linked to RPI. 

HRA Balances are risk assessed and budget contingency built 
into the annual cost to ensure variations inflation rates can be 
managed. 
Service Charges based on actual cost recovery. 

Moderate Medium 

Interest rate increases (Negative Risk) 
The impact on the cost of borrowing and 
therefore assessment of affordability of 
the capital programme. 

Interest rates in the plan have been forecast to increase over the 
medium term assuming they will not stay at the current low rates. 

Moderate  Medium  

Rent and Service Charges (Negative 
Risk) 
The Government could impose further 
limits on rent increases beyond 2023/24.  
Service charges may not be fully 
recovered. 

Lower than anticipated rent increases would require reductions in 
spending plans within the plan and need to reassess the 
assumptions.  
Service charge costs are forecast based on current actual costs 
any increase above the forecast would be considered in the 
following year with the same applying if there are reductions.  

Unlikely High 

P
age 39



 

Page 18 
 

Risk Risk Management Likelihood Impact 
Stock Investment (Negative Risk) 
Investment needs exceed planned 
expenditure due to unforeseen 
investment requirements or changes to 
the prescribed standards. 

HRA Asset Management Strategy to be considered alongside this 
plan. The investment plan is based upon stock condition 
information. Stock viability assessments are undertaken. There is 
additional coverage in the plan to deal with cost increases or 
additional expectations.  

Moderate High 

Right to Buy Sales (Negative/Positive 
Risk) 
External factors mean that RTB sales in 
terms of numbers or value are either 
higher or lower than forecast without a 
corresponding change to stock through 
acquisition or new build. 

RTB assumptions are adjusted annually based on the prior year 
trend. There is a tapering assumption built into the plan.  
The new build in the plan is not a direct replacement for the RTB 
sales and therefore it is unlikely plans would be altered dependent 
on the RTB sales.  

Moderate Low 

Anticipated Savings/ efficiencies are 
not achieved (Negative Risk) 
The plan includes efficiency savings 
required to ensure investment plans are 
sustainable. 

Regular monitoring and reporting takes place. The cumulative 
impact over the medium term may make savings in the later years 
more challenging.  
Non achievement of savings/efficiencies will require a 
reassessment of investment priorities.  

Moderate High 

Welfare Reform (Negative Risk) 
Tenants and leaseholders impacted by 
welfare changes have insufficient income 
to pay the rent/service charges.  
There could also be an increase in the 
need for Council housing services.  

The impact of welfare reform continues to be planned for and 
monitored through the Council Scrutiny Framework. 

Likely  Medium 

Legislative Change (Negative Risk) 
New legislation/regulation is introduced 
which results in increased financial 
pressures. 

Ongoing tracking and horizon scanning in relation to emerging 
policy and legislation and an annual review through the business 
plan updated. 

Moderate High 

Brexit (Negative Risk) 
The impact of Brexit has created 
economic instability the impact of which 
could lead to additional cost pressures 
either directly or indirectly. 

Continue to work collaboratively with treasury advisors to assess 
potential budget impacts whilst the Government attempts to 
ensure an effective transition to a new economic relationship 
between the U.K. and the EU, including clarifying the procedures 
and broad objectives that will guide the process. 

Likely  Medium/ 
High 

 

P
age 40



 

Page 19 
 

7. Conclusion  
 

7.1 The revised HRA business plan together with the HRA Asset Management Strategy ensure that the HRA investment plans are 
sustainable over the medium and longer term. This plan confirms the priority given to ensuring the Council’s homes are safe and 
fully compliant with building legislation and regulation and will make a significant contribution to the Residential Growth Strategy 
with a planned HRA funded development programme of 400 new homes over the next 10 years. 

 
7.2 Despite this there are still challenges within this plan and assumptions made regarding future costs that will need to be kept under 

constant review. Savings outlined in the plan will need to be delivered to ensure the sustainability of the HRA and therefore robust 
savings plans will be developed to underpin their delivery. 

 

P
age 41



 

Page 20 
 

Appendix 1 
HRA Operating Account 30 Years              
 

 
 
 
 
 

Year Year
Rental 
Income

Service 
Charge 
Income

Void 
Losses

Non-Dwelling 
Rents

Charges For 
Services

Other 
Income

Total 
Income

Supervision 
and 

Management 
Repairs and 
Maintenance Depreciation

Debt Mgmt 
Expenses Bad Debts

Total 
Expenditure

Net Cost of 
HRA 

Services
Interest 
Charges

Surplus / 
(Deficit) in 

Year on HRA 
Services

Revenue 
Contributions 

to Capital

Surplus / 
(Deficit) for 

the Year

HRA 
Reserve 
Opening 
Balance

HRA 
Reserve 
Closing 
Balance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1 2022/23 78,511 2,512 -3,267 1,345 2,291 977 82,370 -31,273 -30,117 -16,600 -73 -768 -76,231 6,138 -12,100 -5,962 -0 -5,962 26,160 20,198

2 2023/24 82,775 2,586 -2,668 1,345 2,566 1,094 87,698 -29,487 -26,112 -17,019 -78 -809 -73,506 14,192 -12,266 1,926 -12,966 -11,040 20,198 9,158

3 2024/25 86,567 2,565 -1,743 1,345 2,694 1,149 92,578 -28,789 -25,987 -17,048 -82 -845 -72,751 19,826 -12,528 7,299 -8,216 -918 9,158 8,240

4 2025/26 86,075 2,539 -1,645 1,345 2,775 1,183 92,273 -28,984 -25,768 -17,124 -85 -840 -72,801 19,472 -12,687 6,785 -3,227 3,558 8,240 11,798

5 2026/27 87,292 2,548 -1,476 1,345 2,858 1,219 93,786 -28,691 -25,680 -17,145 -87 -852 -72,456 21,331 -12,849 8,481 -7,707 774 11,798 12,572

6 2027/28 88,743 2,581 -1,462 1,345 2,796 1,219 95,221 -28,425 -26,191 -17,234 -90 -866 -72,807 22,415 -12,891 9,524 -9,249 275 12,572 12,848

7 2028/29 90,231 2,620 -1,716 1,345 2,880 1,219 96,579 -28,832 -26,737 -17,348 -93 -880 -73,889 22,690 -13,110 9,579 -12,989 -3,410 12,848 9,438

8 2029/30 91,695 2,660 -2,111 1,345 2,966 1,219 97,774 -29,246 -27,294 -17,447 -95 -895 -74,977 22,798 -13,167 9,631 -15,795 -6,164 9,438 3,274

9 2030/31 95,082 2,756 -1,808 1,345 3,055 1,219 101,649 -29,668 -27,869 -17,546 -98 -928 -76,110 25,539 -13,245 12,294 -12,568 -274 3,274 3,000

10 2031/32 94,811 2,745 -1,497 1,345 3,147 1,219 101,770 -30,093 -28,464 -17,661 -101 -925 -77,244 24,526 -13,346 11,180 -11,180 0 3,000 3,000

11 2032/33 96,429 2,789 -1,521 1,345 3,241 1,219 103,501 -30,528 -29,071 -17,776 -104 -941 -78,420 25,081 -13,533 11,548 -9,150 2,397 3,000 5,397

12 2033/34 97,934 2,833 -1,544 1,345 3,338 1,219 105,125 -30,969 -29,693 -17,892 -107 -955 -79,617 25,508 -13,599 11,909 -13,306 -1,397 5,397 4,000

13 2034/35 99,320 2,878 -1,566 1,345 3,438 1,219 106,634 -31,418 -30,329 -17,967 -111 -969 -80,793 25,841 -13,848 11,992 -12,992 -1,000 4,000 3,000

14 2035/36 102,733 2,982 -1,620 1,345 3,542 1,219 110,200 -31,877 -30,979 -18,042 -114 -1,002 -82,013 28,187 -14,109 14,078 -14,078 0 3,000 3,000

15 2036/37 102,141 2,970 -1,611 1,345 3,648 1,219 109,711 -32,338 -31,644 -18,116 -117 -997 -83,212 26,499 -14,356 12,144 -12,144 0 3,000 3,000

16 2037/38 103,576 3,017 -1,634 1,345 3,757 1,219 111,280 -32,809 -32,324 -18,190 -121 -1,011 -84,455 26,825 -14,676 12,149 -12,149 0 3,000 3,000

17 2038/39 105,027 3,065 -1,657 1,345 3,870 1,219 112,868 -33,288 -33,020 -18,263 -125 -1,025 -85,721 27,147 -15,036 12,111 -12,111 0 3,000 3,000

18 2039/40 106,495 3,113 -1,681 1,345 3,986 1,219 114,478 -33,775 -33,732 -18,336 -128 -1,039 -87,012 27,466 -15,464 12,002 -12,002 0 3,000 3,000

19 2040/41 108,061 3,164 -1,706 1,345 4,106 1,219 116,189 -34,271 -34,473 -18,409 -132 -1,054 -88,339 27,850 -15,915 11,935 -11,935 0 3,000 3,000

20 2041/42 111,919 3,282 -1,767 1,345 4,229 1,219 120,227 -34,777 -35,243 -18,510 -136 -1,092 -89,757 30,470 -16,322 14,148 -14,148 0 3,000 3,000

21 2042/43 111,420 3,272 -1,759 1,345 4,356 1,219 119,853 -35,286 -36,031 -18,610 -140 -1,087 -91,154 28,698 -16,757 11,941 -11,941 0 3,000 3,000

22 2043/44 113,135 3,328 -1,786 1,345 4,486 1,219 121,726 -35,806 -36,839 -18,711 -144 -1,104 -92,603 29,123 -17,232 11,891 -11,891 0 3,000 3,000

23 2044/45 114,874 3,384 -1,814 1,345 4,621 1,219 123,629 -36,334 -37,665 -18,812 -149 -1,121 -94,081 29,548 -17,744 11,804 -11,804 0 3,000 3,000

24 2045/46 116,637 3,442 -1,842 1,345 4,760 1,219 125,560 -36,872 -38,512 -18,913 -153 -1,138 -95,588 29,972 -18,324 11,648 -11,648 0 3,000 3,000

25 2046/47 118,425 3,500 -1,871 1,345 4,902 1,219 127,520 -37,419 -39,378 -19,014 -158 -1,156 -97,124 30,396 -18,975 11,421 -11,421 0 3,000 3,000

26 2047/48 122,638 3,630 -1,938 1,345 5,049 1,219 131,944 -37,978 -40,266 -19,115 -162 -1,197 -98,718 33,226 -19,649 13,577 -13,577 0 3,000 3,000

27 2048/49 122,076 3,619 -1,929 1,345 5,201 1,219 131,531 -38,539 -41,174 -19,216 -167 -1,192 -100,289 31,242 -20,352 10,891 -10,891 0 3,000 3,000

28 2049/50 123,939 3,681 -1,959 1,345 5,357 1,219 133,582 -39,113 -42,105 -19,318 -172 -1,210 -101,918 31,664 -21,356 10,307 -10,307 0 3,000 3,000

29 2050/51 126,123 3,749 -1,993 1,345 5,518 1,219 135,960 -39,697 -43,104 -19,419 -178 -1,231 -103,629 32,331 -23,702 8,630 -8,630 0 3,000 3,000

30 2051/52 128,645 3,826 -2,033 1,345 5,683 1,219 138,685 -40,291 -44,176 -19,614 -183 -1,256 -105,519 33,167 -25,248 7,919 -7,919 0 3,000 3,000

P
age 42



 

Page 21 
 

Appendix 2 
 

 

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Improvement Works

Aids & Adaptations To carry out identified adaptations to Council Dwellings to enable people 
to live safely and independently within their home. 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 7,500

Communal Mechanical & Electrical works Essential works to upgrade communal services in accordance with stock 
condition, building safety & compliance needs. 579 612 618 679 647 3,134

Digital Transformation Transformational upgrade work to block building management services 
such as CCTV and door entry services 700 702 700 804 800 3,706

Environmental & Estate Improvement Improvements to the public realm in and round estates 100 103 100 768 799 1,870

Garage Improvement Programme Essential works to improve sustainable garage blocks, demolish unviable 
stock and investigation conversion & change of use where practicable 200 200 220 340 300 1,260

Block communal improvements Improvements to the communal areas and spaces in blocks 705 743 762 874 809 3,892
Building Safety
Building safety improvements Essential work to meet building safety and compliance obligations 790 877 827 250 200 2,945
Safety & Security Work to install and renew smoke and CO detection. 60 73 74 101 103 411

HRA Commercial Property Improvements Targeted interventions in the HRA commercial portfolio to meet landlord 
obligations 50 50 50 50 10 210

Major Future Works

Energy & Carbon Net Zero Delivery of work packages to improve insulation, install green technology 
and energy solutions that will support achieving Net Zero. 0 0 0 5,194 5,350 10,545

Major Investment Scheme Targeted Transformation investment work 1,970 0 0 0 0 1,970

Domestic Heating Improvements Replacement of failed and obsolete heating systems, upgrading them with 
more efficient solutions to help address fuel poverty issues. 2,604 2,716 2,779 2,902 2,910 13,911

Door & Window replacements
Continuation of the window replacement door replacement programme. 
Focused on medium rise blocks, but also picking up 'one off' whole house 
replacements 

797 1,037 865 380 389 3,468

Decent Homes
Continuation of planned estate-based improvement work to the Council’s 
housing stock in accordance with decent homes and building safety 
principles, prioritised using stock condition data.

5,352 5,947 6,578 7,097 8,936 33,910

Contractual Obligations Preliminary costs associated with schemes 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 10,000

Fixed Budget Fees
Continuation of the rolling programme of condition surveys to enable 
effective asset management, options appraisals and the development of 
future investment schemes.

550 550 550 550 550 2,750

Expectational Works

Regeneration and Demolition Delivery of option appraisal outcomes - acquisition / conversion / 
demolition of unsustainable HRA assets. 11,800 5,807 2,744 622 0 20,973

Housing Developments
New Build/Acquisition - Various Investment to create new Council homes. 10,343 10,343 8,392 9,231 6,714 45,023
Total Budget from BP data 40,099 33,260 28,759 33,341 32,017 167,477

Housing Capital Description

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

26 January 2023 
 

LOCAL BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR ENGLAND – 
ELECTORAL REVIEW OF GATESHEAD COUNCIL, PART 

ONE (COUNCIL SIZE) 
 
 

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek agreement for the Chief Executive to 

make such amendments as required to the draft submission to the 
Commission on Part One of its review of Gateshead Council (the 
Commission). 
 

2. The proposed recommendation requested to be endorsed is that the Council’s 
size remains unchanged at 66 Councillors, across 22 wards. 
 

3. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report  
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
4. It is recommended that Council: 
 

(i) Approves the recommendation of the draft Submission in terms of 
Council size remaining the same at 66 Councillors, across 22 wards; 
 

(ii) Notes the content of the Submission and the accompanying appendices 
and; 

 
(iii) Agrees that the Chief Executive, following consultation with the Leader 

of the Council, may make any amendments to the draft Submission she 
deems appropriate prior to it being filed with the Commission on 17 
February 2023. 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1 of 4 

REPORT TO CABINET 
24 January 2023 

TITLE OF REPORT: Local Boundary Commission for England - Electoral 
Review of Gateshead Council, Part One (Council Size) 

REPORT OF: Mike Barker, Strategic Director, 
Corporate Services and Governance 

Purpose of the Report 

1. Following the report presented to Cabinet in December 2022 setting out the
timetable for the statutory Electoral Review of the Council being carried out by the
Local Government Boundary Commission for England (the Commission), this
report is to update Cabinet on the Council’s draft submission to the Commission on
Part One of its review of Gateshead Council (Council Size) and to seek agreement
for the Chief Executive to make such amendments as required to the draft following
the Cabinet and full Council meetings.

Background 

2. The Council is required to file its submission on Council Size by 17 February 2023.
This date has been extended by the Commission of its own volition.  In addition to
the Council’s submission, the Commission also welcomes comments from
individual councillors or groups.

3. The Council’s submission follows the Commission’s three broad areas of
consideration:
• The governance arrangements of the council and how it takes

decisions across the broad range of its responsibilities
• The scrutiny functions relating to its own decision making and the council’s

responsibilities to outside bodies
• The representational role of councillors in the local community and how

they engage with people, conduct casework and represent the council on local
partner organisations

4. All Elected Members were invited to an engagement event on Tuesday 17 January
2023 to provide direct feedback on the following options:

a. Fewer Councillors
b. More Councillors
c. Retain the same number of Councillors

5. The consensus of the Elected Members was to support the Council remaining at 66
Councillors, across 22 wards.

Page 47



2 of 4 

Proposal 

6. Cabinet is requested to consider the content of the attached submission and
appendices.

7. Cabinet is requested to endorse the proposed recommendation to the Commission
that the Council’s size remains unchanged at 66 Councillors, across 22 wards, and
recommends the same to Council for approval.

8. Cabinet may wish to express a view on the content and provide amendments to the
proposed submission.

Recommendations 

9. Cabinet is requested to recommend that Council:

(i) agrees the recommendation of the draft Submission in terms of Council size 
remaining the same at 66 Councillors, across 22 wards;

(ii) notes the content of the Submission and the accompanying appendices and

(iii) agrees that the Chief Executive, following consultation with the Leader of the 
Council, may make any amendments to the draft Submission she deems 
appropriate prior to it being filed with the Commission on 17 February 2023;

For the following reason: 

This is a periodic review undertaken by the Commission that the Council must 
partake in with a requirement for the Submission to be filed on 17 February 2023. 

CONTACT:  Angela Simmons-Mather    extension: 2110 

Page 48



 3 of 4  
 

          APPENDIX 1 
 
 Policy Context  
 
1. The Review is a statutory process undertaken by the Commission, and the Council 

is obliged to participate and provide certain information, such as property forecasts 
and population data. However, the Council Size stage of the review process should 
also ensure that this aspect of the Council’s governance arrangements reflect the 
needs of the community it serves and its long-term ambitions, thereby enabling the 
Council to fulfil its policy objectives and particularly its pledges to ‘Support our 
communities to support themselves and each other’ and to ‘Work together and fight 
for a better future for Gateshead’. 

 
 Background 
 
2. This is a review of the Council’s structure and electoral arrangements. The revised 

arrangements will take effect from the local elections in May 2026. 
 
 Consultation 
 
3. Initial consultation has taken place between the Commission, officers, political 

group leaders and Council members in September 2022. 
 

4. All Elected Members were given the opportunity to contribute to the Submission in 
an engagement event which took place on 17 January 2023. 

 
 Alternative Options 
 
5. There are no alternatives. This is a statutory review being undertaken by the 

Commission which the Council must take part in. 
 
 Implications of Recommended Option  
 
6. Resources: 
 

a) Financial Implications – There are no financial implications arising directly 
from this report 

 
b) Human Resources Implications – There are no human resource 

implications arising directly from this report 
 

c) Property Implications - The outcome of the review process will result in 
properties being moved from one ward to another, but there are no other 
implications for the Council property. 

 
7. Risk Management Implications – there are no risk management implications 

arising from this report. 
 
8. Equality and Diversity Implications – The outcome of the review will result in a 

more balanced level of representation across the whole Borough 
 

Page 49



 4 of 4  
 

9. Crime and Disorder Implications – There are no crime and disorder implications 
arising from this report 

 
10. Health Implications – There are no health implications arising from this report. 

 
11. Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications -   There are no climate 

emergency and sustainability implications arising from this report. 
 
12. Human Rights Implications - There are no human rights implications arising from 

this report 
 
13. Ward Implications - The review process is applicable to all wards 
 

Background Information 
 

14. Local Government Boundary Commission for England Guide for Councillors 
 

Page 50



Introduction 
 
The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) has informed 
Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council of its decision to carry out an Electoral Review of 
the Council’s size (number of elected Councillors) and the number of wards and ward 
boundaries for the Council.  The last electoral review in Gateshead was undertaken in 2002.  
 
This review began in 2022; any changes that are made regarding council size and ward 
boundaries will come into effect for the local government elections in May 2026.  
 
This document is Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council’s council size submission, which 
provides the LGBCE with the Council’s view on the appropriate council size and supporting 
evidence across the following three broad areas (as stated in the LGBCE guidance on 
council size for local authority elected members and staff):  

• Governance and decision making – determining the role of councillors in decision 
making, and how the Council takes decisions across a broad range of its 
responsibilities. 
  

• Scrutiny functions – the role of councillors in holding decision makers to account 
and to ensure that the Council can discharge its responsibilities to outside bodies.  

 
• Representational role of councillors in the local community – assessing how 

councillors engage with people, conduct casework, and represent the council on local 
partner organisations.  

 
The document concludes that the size of the Council should remain at 66 councillors 
across 22 wards (3 members per ward).  No change to the current council size is 
proposed.   
 
Local Authority Profile 
 

 
Gateshead is located in the North East of England, on the southern bank of the river Tyne, 
opposite Newcastle upon Tyne to the north, and bordering County Durham to the south, 
Northumberland to the west and South Tyneside/Sunderland to the east.   Gateshead is a 
constantly changing borough combining modern facilities with a fascinating heritage. The 
Borough stretches almost 13 miles along the south bank of the river Tyne and covers 55 
square miles, making it the largest of the five Tyne and Wear authorities.   
 
Gateshead is a borough of contrasts. It has a large urban hub centred around the main town 
centre area in Bridges ward and has a number of smaller urban centres and busy 
employment areas. However, around two thirds of the borough is rural, consisting of green-
belt or countryside land, with numerous small settlements. 

Gateshead has a population of 196,144 (Census 2021).  This is an increase of 4993 (2.6%) 
since the last electoral review took place in 2002 (Census 2001 / Census 2021).  It is ranked 
95th for total population out of all local authorities in England.  It has a population density of 
approximately 1,400/km sq.  Gateshead is the 6th most densely populated area out of the 
North East’s 12 local authorities, with around 10 people living on each football pitch area of 
land (Census 2021).   

The age demographic of the Borough reflects the national picture of an ageing population. 
Over the last 10 years there has been an increase of 12.9% in people aged 65 years and 
over, a decrease of 6.1% in people aged 15 to 64 years.  The number of retired residents 

Page 51



has increased from 15.9% to 24.2% over that same period (Census 2021).  The mean 
average age per household in Gateshead is 42, an increase from the last census.   

Gateshead has increased its ethnic diversity from 3.7% to 6.5% of the population within the 
Borough, with an increase in groups where English is not their first language, from 2.9% to 
4.2% (Census 2021).  

The electorate is forecast to grow by 9,127 from 2023 to 2029. 

Built on traditional industries of mining and heavy engineering, the 1930s saw diversification 
through the development of the Team Valley Trading Estate (TVTE), the first trading estate 
of its type in the UK. Centrally located for the region, the TVTE has become prominent for 
transport and distribution activities and is the Borough's most prestigious employment 
centre; attracting the highest number of inward commuters on a daily basis. 

The 1970s saw the decline of many of the region's traditional industries. A high proportion of 
those who lived in Gateshead worked in these industries, resulting in unemployment and 
high levels of deprivation and financial and social exclusion, the impact of which is still being 
felt today. 

Within Gateshead, socio-economic inequalities exist as illustrated by the 2019 Index of 
Multiple Deprivation (IMD). Gateshead is ranked as the 47th most deprived local authority in 
England according to the IMD 2019.  Overall, 16.2% of households in Gateshead are within 
the 10% most deprived Lower Super Output Areas (LSOA), this is a 4% rise on the IMD 
2015 figures and is expected to rise further when the next IMD figures are published.   
 
In the Felling ward, 82% of its residents are living in the 10% most deprived areas in 
England.   
 
IMD 2019 figures confirm 31% of residents within Gateshead are living within 20% of the 
most deprived areas in England. 
 
One measure of deprivation, calculated in the IMD figures, is the crime domain, which 
measures the risk of personal and material victimisation at local level.  The IMD 2019 
demonstrate that the crime domain has seen the most significant change in rank for 
Gateshead Council, relative to other authorities, from 196th in 2015 to 62nd in 2019.  

Health inequalities in Gateshead pose a challenge for the Council. There are substantial 
variations in life expectancy between different wards within Gateshead. Male life expectancy 
in the Whickham South & Sunniside ward is 82.4 years compared to 73.1 in the Dunston and 
Teams ward, a variation of 8.1 years.  The female life expectancy in the Whickham South & 
Sunniside ward is 87.9 years compared to 79 in the Felling ward, a variation of 8.9 years.  
The national average is 79.6 for males and 83.4 for females.   

At the time of the last review in 2002, as of 31 March 2002, there were 255 children and 
young people in the care of the Council, known as “looked after children”. As of 31 
December 2022, there were 519 looked after children in the care of Gateshead Council.  
This is an increase of 104%.  Research has found that there is a strong association between 
deprivation in an area and the number of children who are looked after by the local authority 
(16469-17-CWIP-BRIEFING-2-FINAL.pdf (nuffieldfoundation.org)). 
 
The Council’s data relating to the percentage of school aged children entitled to free school 
meals in the borough shows a large increase since these figures were first collected.  In 

Page 52

https://www.nuffieldfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/16469-17-CWIP-BRIEFING-2-FINAL.pdf


January 2007 there were 18.08% of children eligible for free school meals (5,300 out of 
27,917), this has grown to 26.95% in January 2022 (7,405 out of 27,476). 
 
The average household income in Gateshead is just over £34,200 per year, compared with a 
national figure of just under £41,100 (CACI Paycheck, 2021).   Over the last 10 years, the 
number of residents in Gateshead in full or part time employment (including self-employed) 
has reduced by 3,300, a 3.7% decrease (Census 2011/21).  Since the previous review, the 
number of those who have never worked or are long term unemployed has risen sharply 
from 6,556 in 2001 to 18,451 in 2021, a 181% increase (Census 2001/21). 

Around 91,000 or 71.6% of working age (16-64) Gateshead residents are in employment 
which compares with an average of 74.9% for England as a whole (ONS Annual Population 
Survey Y/E Sep 2021), and around 6,545 or 5.1% are unemployed, claiming jobseekers 
allowance or universal credit which compares with an average of 4.5% for England as a 
whole (DWP Dec 2021). 

The urban core, which extends across the River Tyne to Newcastle, is the focus of 
regeneration, promoting growth through the digital economy, knowledge-based businesses 
and cultural-led regeneration. Major initiatives in Gateshead, such as the Sage Gateshead, 
BALTIC Centre for Contemporary Art, Gateshead College and the Gateshead Millennium 
Bridge have all been developed over recent years.  An ambitious project is planned for the 
Baltic Quay area which is the subject of a bid to the Levelling Up Fund.   

To address the challenges the Borough has, the Council has developed a strategic approach 
to tackle poverty and health inequalities.  The Council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy is 
based on the strategic approach “Making Gateshead a place where everyone thrives”.  
There are 5 pledges which guide the Council’s decision making: 

• Put people and families at the heart of everything we do 

• Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance 

• Support our communities to support themselves and others 

• Invest in our economy to provide opportunities for employment, innovation and 

growth 

• Work together to fight for a better future for Gateshead 

To deliver against this core strategy requires partnership working between councillors, 
stakeholders in the private, public and voluntary sectors and the residents of Gateshead.  
 
With the announcement of a devolution deal for the North East, with an elected Mayor of the 
North East in 2024, and powers transferred to the region from central government, 
councillors are operating in a complex environment. This will require planning for the long 
term, with certainty, and unlock the benefits of devolution for 2 million people living in the 
area, whilst still representing the communities within the Borough.  The historic deal will also 
devolve control over the multi-million pound Adult Education Budget to shape provision in a 
way that best suits the needs of local people; give control to the region of over half a billion 
pounds to upgrade public transport through a new City Region Sustainable Transport 
Settlement; and provide immediate support to build new affordable homes on brownfield 
sites. There will also be a funding pot available to help place based regeneration across the 
region.  This creates wider responsibilities for all councillors in addition to their existing 
responsibilities as devolution does not remove any of the existing powers and functions of 
the Council. 

Page 53



Population  
 

The population of Gateshead has grown since the last electoral review in 2002. There are 
currently 196,144 people living in Gateshead.  This is an increase of 4993 (2.6%) since the 
last electoral review took place.   
 
Future Housing developments 
There continues to be an ambitious housing strategy to increase the number of homes within 
the borough. 
 
New house building over the next 5 years can be estimated by: 

• Development sites where construction has already started 
• Sites with existing planning permission 
• Where an application for planning permission has been submitted 

 
The following table sets out sites of new development on larger sites and can give an 
accurate figure for future housing numbers within the Borough: 
 

Site name         Ward  Yield 

BAE Systems 
  

Birtley/ Lamesley 300 

Bleach Green 
  

Blaydon 115 

Pipewellgate 
  

Bridges 270 

Freight Depot Site 
  

Bridges 300 

Ochre Yards 
  

Bridges 62 

South Chopwell 
  

Chopwell and Rowlands Gill 147 

Chopwell Heartlands 
  

Chopwell and Rowlands Gill 220 

Play area, Wolseley 
Close 
  

Dunston and Teams 41 

Dunston Hill Persimmon 
(part of Dunston Hill 
Neighbourhood Growth 
Area) 
  

Dunston Hill and Whickham 
East 

352 

Part of Dunston Hill Hosp 
  

Dunston Hill and Whickham 
East 

35 

Brandling Village 
  

Felling 146 

Rear of Pensher St East 
  

Felling 36 

Whitley Court  
  

High Fell 44 

Northside - Cell C  Lamesley 132 

Page 54



Askew Road (West) 
  

Lobley Hill and Bensham 190 

Ravensdene Lodge 
  

Lobley Hill and Bensham 82 

Ryton Village Growth  
Area site 
  

Ryton Crookhill and Stella 550 

Hyde Park  
  

Saltwell 62 

Wardley Colliery 
  

Wardley and Leam Lane 144 

High Spen East 
  

Winlaton and High Spen 163 

Total  3,391 

 
So as to not account twice for new properties which have already been added to the 
electoral role, the applicable number of additional dwellings is 2,996.  Of the 3,391properties 
identified in the table above, 395 have already been added to electoral role as at 1st 
December 2022. 
 
Demolitions 
The following are high-rise buildings which are currently in the process of being vacated.  
Whilst it has not yet been determined when these demolitions will take place, the table below 
demonstrates that by the end of 2024/25 the following sites will be empty and may be either 
demolished or awaiting demolition. 
 
Site Ward Empty 

now  
(Nov 22) 

2022-23 
(remaining 

part of 
year) 

 

Total 
for 

2022-
23 

2023-
24 

2024-
25 

Total flats in 
each block 

Crowhall  
Towers 
 

Felling 
 

87 1 12   88 

Sir Godfrey 
Thomson Court  
 

Felling 53 4 10   57 

Warwick Court Bridges 
 

55 16 20 39  110 

Redheugh  
Court 

Dunston 
and 
Teams 

 

77 16 21 38 37 168 

Eslington  
Court 

Dunston 
and 
Teams 

 

89 14 30 33 32 168 

Total    93 110 69 591 
 
Across the borough there will be an overall reduction of 591 units between 2020 - 2029.  It is 
notable that the majority of these units have been single occupancy. 
 

Page 55



So as to not account twice for empty properties which have already been removed from the 
electoral role.  The applicable figure to be subtracted from new property figures is 153.  Of 
the 591 units identified in the table above, 438 had been removed from electoral role or 
marked up for removal as at 1st December 2022. 
 
The net increase in properties in the borough of Gateshead over the next 6 years is 2,843. 
 
Electoral Forecasts 
 

As part of the electoral review of Gateshead, there is a requirement to determine how the 
electorate of the borough is forecast to change over the next six years (2023-2029). 
 
Gateshead Council has used the forecasting tool provided by the LGBCE. Gateshead 
Council does not have software that tracks population change between census years.   
 
In determining these figures, the Council has considered the ONS mid-year population 
estimates.  The ONS figures were published on 21 December 2022 and were predominantly 
based on the Census 2021 population data.  It should be noted that there was only a 10-
person difference between the Census 2021 population (196,144) and the ONS mid-year 
(2021) population estimate for Gateshead (196,154).  In the circumstances, the Census 
2021 figure has been used as the more accurate measure of population.   
 
Based on electoral role data, the number of electors registered to vote has reduced in the 
20-year period since the last review – from 151,535 on 1st December 2001, to 141,945 as of 
1st December 2022.   
 
There are currently 161,746 residents potentially eligible to vote in the borough.  Based on a 
current electoral role of 141,945, 87.8% those who are eligible to vote are registered.  It is 
anticipated that the rate of electoral registrations over the next six years will remain 
consistent. 
 
Using the LGBCE tool, the following is predicted: 
 
Current No. 
of electors as 
at 1.12.22 
 

LBGCE forecast 
for electorate in 
2029 
 

Gateshead Council 
forecast based on 
population 
increase above 
 

Estimated No. 
of additional 
electors 

Percentage 
difference 

 
141, 945 
 

 
145,454 

 
151,072 

 
9,127 

 
+6.42% 

 
Forecasts suggest a further growth of 9,127 electors from now to 2029.  
 
Councillor/elector ratio: 
 
Year No. of Councillor 

 
Number of Electors Councillor/Elector ratio 

2023 66 
 

141,945  2,150 

2029 66 (if numbers 
remain the same)  
 

151,072 2,289 

 

Page 56



Electorate forecast by ward 
 

Ward 
2023 

Electorate 
Gateshead 
Forecast Difference % change 

Crawcrook and 
Greenside 7148 7257 109 1.52 
Ryton Crookhill 
and Stella 6857 7832 975 14.22 
Chopwell and 
Rowlands Gill 6681 7404 723 10.82 
Winlaton and High 
Spen 6808 7265 457 6.71 
Blaydon 7092 7418 326 4.60 
Whickham North 6130 6307 177 2.89 
Whickham South 
and Sunniside 6527 6666 139 2.13 
Dunston Hill and 
Whickham East 6553 7423 870 13.28 
Dunston and 
Teams 5984 6207 223 3.73 
Lobley Hill and 
Bensham 6870 7461 591 8.60 
Saltwell 6008 6264 256 4.26 
Low Fell 6825 7037 212 3.11 
Chowdene 6570 6771 201 3.06 
Bridges 5544 6907 1363 24.59 
Deckham 6256 6429 173 2.77 
High Fell 5956 6112 156 2.62 
Felling 5540 5983 443 8.00 
Windy Nook and 
Whitehills 6889 7083 194 2.82 
Pelaw and 
Heworth 6404 6534 130 2.03 
Wardley and Leam 
Lane 5916 6337 421 7.12 
Lamesley 7209 7583 374 5.19 
Birtley 6178 6792 614 9.94 

Total 141945 151072 9127 6.43 
 

Page 57



Governance and decision-making structures 
 

In 1974 the County Borough of Gateshead was merged with the urban districts of Felling, 
Whickham, Blaydon and Ryton and part of the rural district of Chester-le-Street to create the 
Metropolitan Borough of Gateshead.  Since that time the Council has had a Labour party 
majority. 
 
The Council consists of 66 Members across 22 wards.  Each ward has 3 elected members.  
Elections take place by thirds, based on a four-year cycle.  This means each councillor 
serves a four-year term, with elections for one third of council seats taking place in three 
years out of four.  
 
As a result of the local election on 5 May 2022, the political make up on the Council is as 
follows: 
 
Political Party No. of Councillors 
Labour 51 
Liberal Democrats 15 
Total  66 

 
Appendix 1 sets out the current elected councillors within each ward and includes their 
political party.    
 
Councillors are democratically accountable to the residents of their wards. The overriding 
duty of councillors is to the whole community, but they have a special duty to their 
constituents, including those who did not vote for them. 
 
Since 1999 the Council has operated a Leader and Cabinet arrangement as defined in Part 
1A of the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended) (see below).  Following the 
appointment of a Leader, they determine all delegations of executive functions, appoint a 
cabinet and determine portfolio holder arrangements and responsibilities. The Council’s 
Executive carries out a wide range of decision-making functions, whether by law or under 
the Council’s constitution (‘local choice’ functions).  
  
The Council will be one of seven local authorities to make up the North East Combined 
Authority, alongside Newcastle, Northumberland, North Tyneside, South Tyneside, 
Sunderland and Durham.    
 
The current leader of the Council is Councillor Martin Gannon.  He was elected to this 
position in May 2016, having served as a Labour Councillor since 1984.  As Leader of the 
Council, he is involved in several national and regional bodies.  Councillor Gallon is Chair of 
the North East Joint Transport Committee and a board member of North East Combined 
Authority, North East LEP, LGA Environment, Economy, Housing and Transport Board and 
Gateshead College. He is also a Non-Executive Director of Gateshead Health NHS 
Foundation Trust and Chair of the Bishop Wilkinson Catholic Education Trust.  The Leader is 
recognised as the person who speaks for the Council on policy issues. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



Governance Model 
 

 
The Constitution 
 

As indicated above, Gateshead Council implemented a new constitution in May 2002 based 
on a Leader and Cabinet form of Executive.  The constitution is divided into 17 articles which 
set out the basic rules governing the Council’s business, how the Council operates, how 
decisions are made, the procedures that are followed to ensure that these decisions are 
efficient and transparent, and sets out the terms of reference for the Committee structure. 
 
Article 1 of the constitution commits the Council to:  

• Local democratic self-government  

• Improvement, quality and equality in the delivery of services  

• Working in partnership with its residents  

• Taking a lead in working with other agencies – public, private and voluntary. 

The constitution provides the framework and democratic processes needed to realise the 
Council’s vision and deliver the strategic approach of Making Gateshead a Place Where 
Everyone Thrives. The vision for Gateshead is a place where all local people can realise 
their full potential, enjoying the best quality of life in a healthy, equal, safe, prosperous and 
sustainable Gateshead.  
 
The constitution supports the realisation of this vision through:  

• enabling the Council to provide clear leadership to the community in 
partnership with citizens, businesses and other organisations  
 

• supporting the active involvement of citizens in the process of local authority 
decision-making 

 
• helping councillors to represent their constituents more effectively 

 
• creating powerful, effective and impartial means of holding decision-makers to 

public account  
 

• ensuring that those responsible for decision-making are clearly identifiable to 
local people and that they explain the reasons for decisions  

 
• providing a means of improving the delivery of services to the community 

 
Full Council 
 

The full Council, consisting of 66 elected members, meets every six weeks, plus an annual 
meeting and a budget meeting. 
  
Its role is to: 

• Agree the policy framework, strategies and plans 

• Agree the budget 

• Decide on the political management framework 

• Appoint the Leader for a term of four years 

Page 59



The Council also receives reports from the Cabinet portfolio holders and from Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees.  Councillors can put forward notices of motion, which initiate debates 
on topics of major significance to the Borough.  Councillors may also question the Leader 
and Cabinet Members, and present petitions on behalf of local residents.  Members of the 
public can also ask questions or present petitions, provided they give notice. 
  
The Council meeting is above all the ’public face’ of decision-making – the forum at which all 
councillors gather to determine, in the public spotlight, the most significant policy issues 
facing the Borough. 
 
These decisions are closely monitored by Overview and Scrutiny Committees which are 
made up of other local councillors who are not on the Cabinet. 
 
Functions of the full Council  
Only full Council will exercise the following functions:  

• adopting and changing the constitution  
 

• approving, adopting or amending the Policy Framework, the budget and any 
application to the Secretary of State in respect of any Housing Land Transfer  

 
• Framework Rules in part 4 of this constitution, making decisions about any 

matter in the discharge of an executive function where the decision would be 
contrary to the policy framework or contrary to/or not wholly in accordance 
with the budget  

 
• appointing the Leader  

 
• agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for committees of the 

Council, deciding on their composition and making appointments to them  
 

• appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the appointment is in 
respect of an executive function or has been delegated by the Council  

 
• adopting an allowances scheme under Article 2.04 or amending, revoking or 

replacing such a scheme  
 

• changing the name of the area, conferring the title of honorary alderman or 
freedom of the borough  

 
• appointing the head of paid service on the recommendation of the Special 

Appointments Committee  
 

• making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and promoting or 
opposing the making of local legislation or personal Bills  

 
• determining, or delegating to a committee or an officer, all local choice 

functions set out in part 3 of this constitution which the Council decides should 
be undertaken by itself rather than the Cabinet  

 
• all other matters which by law, must be reserved to the Council 

 
 
 

Page 60



Policy Framework 
The current Policy Framework consists of the following plans and strategies (together with 
such other plans, strategies and policies that the Council determines should be adopted or 
approved by them): 

• Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives  

• Early Help Strategy  

• Youth Justice Plan  

• Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy (Gateshead Community Safety 

Board Partnership Plan)  

• Local Transport Plan  

• Local Development Plan and associated documents  

• Housing Strategy and associated plans  

• Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and associated documents  

• Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  

• Joint Municipal Waste Strategy  

• Medium Term Financial Strategy  

• Budget Plan and Capital Programme  

• Equal Opportunities Policy  

• Environmental Policy  

• Supporting policies including 

• Policy Statement of Principles on Gambling 

• Statement of Licensing Policy  
 
It is notable that under the current governance arrangements all councillors have collective 
responsibility and are the ultimate policy-makers and determine, as a council, the budget 
and Policy Framework. 
 
It should also be noted that within the forthcoming Mayoral North East Combined Authority 
participating members from this council will have additional roles on a variety of committees, 
yet to be determined.  The implications for members, with regards to the devolution of power 
and functions from central government, coupled with an increase in the scrutiny role, will, 
without doubt, add to the current caseload of councillors required to sit on the various 
committees, boards and bodies which will be created following the formation of the 
Combined Authority. 
 
Cabinet 
 

The Cabinet is headed by the Leader of the Council, which is considered a full-time role. It 
consists of nine additional councillors who are appointed by the Leader.  The Cabinet meets 
formerly on a monthly basis and provides political leadership and direction across the whole 
range of council services and considers all policy issues.  These meetings are open to the 
public and press to attend. 
  
The Cabinet collectively makes decisions on most council services within the budget and 
Policy Framework on behalf of the Council and can make recommendations for change to 

Page 61



full Council. Its meetings (like those of other council bodies) are held in public, except where 
confidential information is to be discussed. 
 
If the Cabinet wishes to make a decision which is outside of the budget and Policy 
Framework, this must be referred to the whole Council to decide upon. 
 
The Cabinet also has an important role in seeing that the Council’s existing policies are 
delivered and in developing proposals for changes to policy or new policies. 
  
All Cabinet members work collectively with other councillors to carry out their role and seek 
advice from the Council’s Advisory Groups on policy development. They also receive reports 
from Overview and Scrutiny Committees on policy reviews and performance management.  
Cabinet members meet on a weekly basis to discuss issues. 
  
Each Cabinet Member has an area of special responsibility – known as portfolios – which 
are allocated to them by the Leader of the Council. 
 
Cabinet Members hold positions on regional committees and partnership meetings, specific 
to their portfolio. In addition, each member will fulfil a range of commitments with officers, 
community organisations, businesses and partners. Role expectations and obligations for 
Cabinet Members is high, with a significant amount of time allocated for the preparation and 
attendance of meetings, requiring their knowledge and active contribution. 
 
Members of the Cabinet report undertaking activities related to their elected role amounting 
to between 20 – 55 hours per week, depending upon the requirements of their portfolio at 
any given time.  It is notable that some Cabinet Members also have outside employment and 
undertake their portfolio responsibilities on top of that work (eg Teacher, Secretary).   
 
Given the significant strain on the Council’s budget, the Leader has created a small group of 
Cabinet members to consider a Finance Portfolio.  The Deputy Leader and members for 
Children & Young People and Housing meet every 3-4 weeks and considers an agenda 
dealing with reports relevant to the Council and Housing Revenue Accounts (HRA) and 
considering budget setting, both in year and future years. 
 
There are a number of strategy days held each year bringing together Cabinet members and 
Senior Officers from the Corporate Management team.  
 
Portfolios 
 

Portfolio Holders are grouped with other members of the Cabinet with similar portfolios, for 
example, the Children & Young People portfolio holder is supported by the Adult Social Care 
and the Health and Wellbeing portfolio holders, whilst the member for Housing is supported 
by the Economy and the Environment and Transport portfolio holders. 
 
The portfolio teams meet on a weekly basis to discuss portfolio related matters. 
 
Current portfolios: 

Adult Social Care 
Children & Young People 
Communities & Volunteering 
Culture, Sport & Leisure 
Economy 
Environment & Transport 
Health & Wellbeing 
Housing 

Page 62



Portfolio 
 

Responsibilities  

 
Leader 

Overall strategy and policy (including direction and transformation) 
programme: 

• Communications 
• Finance 
• Governance 
• HR (including health and safety) 
• Inclusion and equalities 
• Local democracy 
• Relationships (partnerships, international, national, sub-

national and regional) 
• Resilience 
• Strategic economic growth (including major regeneration 

projects) 
• Transformation through technology 

 
 

Deputy Leader 
(Cabinet Member) 

Deputising for the Leader of the Council at appropriate meetings 
(eg regional, sub-regional etc).  Specific responsibility for: 

• Asset Management 
• Business continuity and risk 
• Customer Services 
• Performance 
• Traded services 
• Transformation Programme. 
• Poverty 

 
 

Adult Social Care 
• Assessment, commissioning & provision of adult social care 
• Independent living 
• Older people; people with learning/physical disabilities 

(including domiciliary care and day care meals and shopping 
services) 

• Re-enablement 
• Residential/nursing care 
• Safeguarding adults & protecting/supporting vulnerable adults 
• Supporting carers. 

 
 

Children & Young 
People 

• Assessment, commissioning and provision of children’s 
services 

• Child poverty 
• Inclusion (children with SEND) 
• Health and Well-being Board 
• Early Help 
• Early years, children’s centres and corporate parenting (LAC, 

CP, CIN) 
• Safeguarding and family support (FamiliesGateshead) 
• Health services for children in our care 
• Schools and education 
• Fostering 
• Youth services and raising aspiration. 

 

Page 63



 
Communities & 

Volunteering 
 

• Cemeteries and Crematoria 
• Capacity building 
• Community and resident engagement 
• Community Centres 
• Community safety (crime reduction; fear of crime; victim 

support; domestic violence; anti-social behaviour, hate crime) 
• Co-ordination of neighbourhood issues (including pest control 

and dog wardens; allotments; street lighting; highway 
maintenance) 

• Licensing 
• Neighbourhood management 
• Volunteering 
• Waste disposal/management. 

 
 

Culture, Sport & 
Leisure 

 

• Arts 
• Cultural opportunities 
• Events 
• Heritage 
• Leisure 
• Libraries 
• Museums 
• Physical activity 
• Sport 

 
 

Economy 
 

• Digital inclusion/broadband (external) 
• Employment support 
• Financial inclusion 
• Graduate retention 
• Indigenous business growth and diversification 
• Inward investment 
• Rural economy 
• Skills (including apprenticeships) 
• Tourism and profile promotion. 

 
 

Environment & 
Transport 

 

• Air quality and noise 
• Climate change 
• Countryside parks and open spaces 
• Energy management and carbon reduction 
• Highway asset management 
• Natural environment 
• Parking policy 
• Planning and building control 
• Road safety promotion 
• Spatial planning 
• Sustainable transport 
• Transport network 
• Transport strategy. 

 
 

Health & Wellbeing 
 

• Environmental health (food safety) 
• Health checks 
• Health and Wellbeing Board 
• Health inequalities 

Page 64



• JSNA 
• Mental health issues 
• Health trainers 
• Preventative health services 
• Promoting healthy lifestyles (activity and eating) 
• Public health 
• Tobacco, drugs and alcohol. 

 
 

Housing 
 

• Adaptations 
• Homelessness 
• Housing growth 
• Housing management 
• Housing needs, policy and strategy 
• Private sector housing (including affordable housing and 

landlord licensing) 
• Supported housing. 

 
 
 
Delegation of Functions 
 

Part 3 of the constitution explains who is responsible for the various functions of the Council 
and sets out the delegation scheme that applies with regards to those functions: 

• Non-executive functions  
o These are functions which, under law, may not be the responsibility of the 

executive. In some cases, such as adopting the Council’s budget or the policy 
framework, only the full Council meeting may take the decision. In other 
cases, the Council may delegate the responsibility for taking the decision to a 
committee or a manager.  

• ‘Local Choice’ functions  
o There are some functions which the Council may treat as being the 

responsibility of the executive (in part or whole) or as being non-executive, at 
its discretion.  

• Executive functions  
o All other functions are executive functions. Decisions on these functions will 

be taken by the Cabinet unless they are dealt with under joint arrangements 
or delegated, under this constitution, to a manager. Details of such 
delegations are set out in.  

 
The Rules apply in relations to delegation:  

(i) Where a function (whether executive or non-executive) is delegated to a 
committee or any other body, or to a manager, the body or person that 
delegated the function may direct in any particular case that the delegation is 
not to apply, and may determine the matter himself/herself/itself.  

(ii) A committee or other body, or a manager, to whom any function (whether 
executive or non-executive) is delegated, is not obliged to exercise that 
delegation and may report to the Council or the Cabinet (as the case may be) 
or any other appropriate body on any delegated matter. 

 
Appendix 2, contains Schedule 1 of the schedule of delegations within the constitution.  This 
sets out the non-executive delegated functions to Council Bodies.  Appendix 3 contains 
Schedule 3 of the schedule of delegations within the constitution.  This sets out the 
delegated Local Choice functions to Council Bodies.   

Page 65



 
Also within the constitution, but not appended to this document are the following schedule of 
delegations: 

• Schedule 2 Non-Executive Functions – Delegations to Managers  
• Schedule 4 Executive Functions dealt with under Joint Arrangements (contained in 

body of relevant section below) 
• Schedule 5 Executive Functions delegated to Managers  

 
Regulatory and other Committees  
 

The Council appoints Committees to undertake a variety of regulatory and other functions 
that are the responsibility of the Council. These Committees are set out below:- 
 
Name of Committee 
 

Audit & Standards 
 

Composition 
 

Consists of 10 members as follows:  
• 7 councillors, of whom no more than 2 may be members of 
the Cabinet (and may not be the Leader)  
• 3 persons who are not councillors or officers of the Council 
(independent members)  
• 1 member of Lamesley Parish Council nominated by that 
Council (parish member) who will be invited to attend for 
standards issues only  
 

The Council will appoint members of the Audit and Standards 
Committee at its annual meeting and will appoint one of the 
councillors to be chair of the committee. 
 
There are currently 5 Labour members and 2 Liberal Democrat 
members. 
 

Function Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by 
councillors, co-opted members and church and parent governor 
representatives; 

  
Assisting the councillors, co-opted members and church and 
parent governor representatives to observe the Council’s 
adopted Code of Conduct; 
  
Advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Code of 
Conduct; 
  
Monitoring the Code of Conduct; 
  
Advising, training or arranging to train councillors, co-opted 
members and church and parent governor representatives on 
matters relating to the Code of Conduct; 
  
Granting dispensations to councillors, co-opted members and 
church and parent governor representatives from requirements 
relating to interests set out in the Code of Conduct; 
  
Dealing with any reports including investigations from the 
Monitoring Officer; 

Page 66



  
And the exercise of the above in relation to Lamesley Parish 
Council and its members. 
 
The specific delegations to the Audit and Standards Committee 
have been set out in Part 3, Schedule 1 of the Constitution. 
 
 

Name of Committee Accounts 
 

Composition Consists of 3 Councillors which includes the Leader. 
 
There are currently 2 Labour members and 1 Liberal Democrat 
member. 
 

Function The committee approves the Council’s annual statement of 
accounts and statement on internal control.   
 

 
 
Name of Committee Appeals: 

o Education grants; 
o Housing, including exclusion from the housing register, 

introductory tenancies, deferred applications for rehousing 
and homeless appeals; 

o Adaptations for disabled people 
o Charges 
o Access to personal files 
o Marriage premises 
 

Composition Consists of Chair and Vice Chair plus 19 Councillors.  No Cabinet 
members sit on this Committee. 
 
There are currently 16 Labour members and 5 Liberal Democrats 
members. 
 
Depending on the type of appeal, either 3 or 5 councillors sit on 
each hearing, drawn from a committee of 22 councillors. 
 

Function The Appeals Committee has delegated power:  
 
To determine appeals:  

• against decisions on the award of discretionary financial 
assistance to students  

• from introductory tenants against decisions to end their 
tenancies 

• from persons who have been excluded from the housing 
register or whose application for re-housing has been 
deferred;  

• against decisions relating to homelessness 
• against decisions regarding adaptations to dwellings 

occupied by disabled persons 

Page 67



• against refusal by the Director of Adult Services or 
Director of Children’s Services to waive or amend 
discretionary charges 

• against the decisions to remove a medical priority for 
housing 

• against decisions of the Council to use mandatory 
grounds of possession in anti-social behaviour cases  

• against Council decisions relating to charging and 
financial assessment for adult care and support services  

• against decisions relating to home to school and college 
travel.  

 
To determine any other appeal where the Council’s policies 
provide a right of appeal against a decision made by or on behalf 
of the authority, except where the matter is the responsibility of 
the Personnel Appeals Committee. 
 

 
 
Name of Committee Gateshead Health & Wellbeing Board 

 
Composition Consists of 10 Members including the Chair and Vice-Chair.   

 
There currently are 9 Labour members and 1 Liberal Democrat 
member. 
 
There are also an additional 14 non-Council members.   
 

Function Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) are responsible for 
overseeing and coordinating local NHS, social care and public 
health services 
 
Please see further details below 

 
 
Name of Committee Licensing 

 
Composition Consists of 15 Members including the Chair and Vice-Chair.   

 
There currently are 12 Labour members and 3 Liberal Democrat 
members. 
 
The Licensing and Regulatory Committees will have the same 
membership. 
 

Function The Licensing Committee will exercise all the powers and duties 
of the Council under the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling 
Act 2005, except for those functions which are reserved to the 
Council. 
 
The Licensing Committee may arrange for any functions that it 
exercises to be discharged by: 

(a)  a sub-committee established by it; 

Page 68



(b)  an officer of the Council as Licensing authority 
in accordance with the Statement of Licensing 
Policy approved by the Council from time to time 

The Committee will submit a report to the Council on any such 
arrangements that it may make  
 
Where the Licensing Committee exercises the function of 
determining any application or similar matter, it will do so through 
a Sub-Committee. 
 

 
 
Name of Committee Regulatory 

 
Composition Consists of 15 Members including the Chair and Vice-Chair.   

 
There currently are 12 Labour members and 3 Liberal Democrat 
members. 
 
The Licensing and Regulatory Committees will have the same 
membership. 
 

Function To determine licensing applications in the following areas, where 
there has been a refusal to grant, renew, vary or transfer a 
licence to where there are relevant objections to such 
applications; and to consider the revocation of existing licences:  

• animal boarding establishments 
• dangerous wild animals 
• dog breeding establishments 
• hypnotism 
• motor salvage operators 
• pet shops 
• pleasure boats and navigators 
• sex establishments 
• street collections 
• street trading 
• scrap metal dealers 

 
To grant and renew licences for Hackney Carriages, Hackney 
Carriage Drivers, Private Hire Vehicles and Private Hire 
Operators (including Dual Driver licences) where the application 
does not meet the Council’s standard conditions, but having 
regard to all relevant information, it is determined that the 
individual circumstances justify deviation from policy; 
 
To vary, suspend and revoke such licences where, having regard 
all relevant information, it is determined that in individual 
circumstances it is appropriate to do so; 
 
To deal with all applications for approved marriage premises 
status; 
 
To deal with control and enforcement of the law relating to safety 
at sports grounds;  

Page 69



To deal with any licence and registration which is not delegated 
to any other body. 
 

 
 
Name of Committee Rights of way 

 
Composition Consists of 7 Members including the Chair and vice chair.   

 
There currently are 5 Labour members and 2 Liberal Democrat 
members. 
 

Function To create, stop up and divert footpaths and bridleways; 
 
To assert and protect the rights of the public to use and 
enjoyment of highways; 
 
To remove things so deposited on highways as to be a nuisance; 
 
To keep the Council’s definite map and statement under review; 
 
To Reclassify roads used as public paths; and 
 
To discharge any other function which is classed as a function 
relating to public rights of way in Part I Schedule 1 of the Local 
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000 (as amended). 
 

 
 
Name of Committee Planning and Development  

 
Composition Consists of 23 Members including the Chair and vice chair.   

 
There currently are 18 Labour members and 5 Liberal Democrat 
members. 
 
The Planning and Development and Appeals Committees will as 
far as possible consist of one member per ward. 
 

Function The Planning and Development Committee meets to consider 
major planning applications and decisions. 
 
To exercise the powers and duties of the Council as local 
planning authority under the following legislation (or any statutory 
modification or re-enactment) and any statutory instruments 
made under the legislation: a. Part III and Part XV Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 – control over development; b. Part 
VII Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – enforcement; c. Part 
VIII Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – trees, land adversity 
affecting amenity and the control of advertisements; d. Part XIII 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – Crown Land; e. Planning 
(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990; f. The Town 

Page 70



and Country Planning (Assessment of Environmental Effects) 
Regulations 1998. 
 
To exercise the powers and duties of the Council under the 
Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990  
 
To exercise the powers and duties of the Council as Local 
Planning Authority under the Hedgerows Regulations 1997;  
 
To respond to waste management licence consultations from the 
Environment Agency  
 
To respond to consultations from other local planning authorities 
and from Government departments and agencies relating to 
development management matters  
 
To determine the conditions to which old mining permissions, 
relevant planning permissions relating to dormant sites or active 
Phase I or II sites, or mineral permissions relating to mining sites 
are to be subject;  
 
To exercise the powers of the Council to make limestone 
pavement orders under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981;  
 
To exercise the powers of the Council: 58 a. to register common 
land or town or village greens, except where the power is 
exercisable solely for the purpose of giving effect to an exchange 
of lands under the Acquisition of Land Act 1981 or an order under 
the Inclosure Act 1845; and b. to register variation of rights of 
common land.  
 
To exercise the powers of the Council under the Town and 
Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017 to 
prepare and maintain a register of previously developed land.  
 
To exercise the powers of the Council under the Housing and 
Planning Act 2016 and The Town and Country Planning 
(Permission in Principle) Order 2017 to allocate land to Part 2 of 
the Council’s register of previously adopted land.  
 
To exercise the powers of the Council under the Town and 
Country Planning (Permission in Principle) (Amendment) Order 
2017 to determine applications for permission in principle and 
technical details consent. 
 

 
 
Name of Committee Personnel appeals 

 
Composition 7 Members plus Chair and vice chair 

 
Function To determine any appeal from an employee of the Council 

relating to conditions of service, promotion, demotion or 

Page 71



dismissal, or disciplinary action including dismissal, or arising 
from the Council’s grievance procedure. 
 

 
 
Name of Committee Contracts  

 
Composition Consists of 5 members, including the Chair. 

 
There currently are 4 Labour members and 1 Liberal Democrat 
member. 
 

Function To negotiate and agree individual contracts of service with the 
Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and Service Directors;  
 
To agree the remuneration of the Chief Executive, Strategic 
Directors and Service Directors;  
 
To appraise the performance of the Chief Executive and arrange 
for the appraisal of Strategic Directors and Service Directors. 
 

 
 
Name of Committee Special Appointments  

 
Composition Consists of 15 Members including the Chair and Vice Chair, with 

6 Cabinet and 9 non-Cabinet members. 
 
There currently are 12 Labour members and 3 Liberal Democrat 
members. 
 

Function In accordance with the Employee Recruitment Rules, the 
Committee has delegated power:  

(i) in relation to the appointment of the Head of Paid 
Service, to select a short list of candidates, to 
interview candidates and make a recommendation to 
the Council 
 

(ii) in relation to appointments to Chief Officer posts (as 
defined in the Employee Recruitment Rules) to select 
a short list of candidates, interview candidates and 
make the appointment; or, if considered appropriate, 
to fill the post by appointing an existing employee in 
circumstances where no reorganisation of a service is 
involved. The Special Appointments Committee may 
appoint one or two additional non-voting Cabinet 
members to the Committee in relation to any particular 
appointment. 
 

 
 
Name of Committee Pensions and Pay Discretions Sub-Committee 

 
Composition Consists of 4 Members including the Chair (the Leader).   

Page 72



 
There currently are 3 Labour members and 1 Liberal Democrat 
member. 
 

Function To determine: 
 
requests from former employees or their spouses to access their 
deferred pensions on an unreduced or partially reduced basis  
 
cases relating to employer discretions where added years have 
been awarded under Regulations 21, 22 and 25 of the Local 
Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary 
Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2000 or 
preceding regulations 
 
discretionary pension issues which are not subject to other 
delegations set out in Part 3 of the Council’s constitution  
requests from employees to extend periods of half and full sick 
pay. 
 

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board 
Pursuant to the Health and Social Care Act 2012, the Council has a role is local health 
services, which includes appointing a Director of Public Health and establishing a Health and 
Wellbeing Board with a duty to encourage integrated working.   
 
Article 11 of the constitution requires the Council to establish and maintain a Health and 
Wellbeing Board.  The Board meets, as a minimum, on a 6 weekly basis and is made up of 
10 members, including the chair and Vice Chair, as well as relevant internal and external 
stakeholders. 
 
Role and Functions:  

• to lead on the production of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment;  

• to lead on the production of a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy;  
• for the purpose of advancing the health and wellbeing of children and adults in 

Gateshead, encourage integration in the provision of health, education and social 
care in its area;  

• provide such advice, assistance or other support as the Health and Wellbeing Board 
considers appropriate for the purpose of encouraging the making of arrangements 
under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Children and 
Social Work Act 2017 in the provision of health and social care services;  

• to encourage persons who arrange for the provision of any health-related services in 
its area to work closely with the Health and Wellbeing Board;  

• to encourage persons who arrange for the provision of health, education and social 
care services in its area and persons who arrange for the provision of any health-
related services in its area to work closely together;  

• provide an opinion to the Council on whether the Council is complying with its duty to 
have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy;  

• to exercise any other function that the Council requires the Health and Wellbeing 
Board to undertake on behalf of the Council;  

Page 73



• to ensure the delivery of better health and wellbeing outcomes for children and 
adults, and improve the quality of education and care as well as to ensure value for 
money 

• to provide strategic direction on the wider determinants of health in order to create 
the conditions where people’s health and wellbeing is able to thrive;  

• to provide strategic direction on addressing inequalities across our local population 
through targeted support for our most disadvantaged citizens; 

• to promote equity of health and wellbeing, working with local communities and local 
partners; and 

• m) to promote the primacy of place in health and care decision making so that it is as 
close to communities as possible, liaising with broader health and care geographies 
towards this end 

 
The Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board has monthly meetings with the Chief 
Executive, the Leader of the Council, three strategic directors, the Director of Public Health 
and four service directors across a range of services, as well as involvement in taking 
forward projects and joint pieces of work. The Chair also meets regularly with Chief 
Executives from across a range of other organisations (VCSE, FT Hospital etc). 
 
Joint Arrangements 
 

Non-executive functions – The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more 
local authorities and/or their executives to exercise functions which are not executive 
functions in any of the participating authorities, or to advise the Council.  
 
Executive Functions – The Cabinet may establish joint arrangements with one or more local 
authorities to exercise functions which are executive functions.  
 
Details of joint arrangements including delegations to joint committees are found in the 
Council’s scheme of delegations in part 3 of the constitution (Schedule 4 – see tables 
below).  
 
Delegation to and from other local authorities: 

• The Council may delegate non-executive functions to another local authority or, in 
certain circumstances, the executive of another local authority  

• The Cabinet may delegate executive functions to another local authority or the 
executive of another local authority in certain circumstances  

• The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from another local authority 
is reserved to the Council meeting. 

 
Appointments to joint committees will be made by 

• The Council, where all the functions of the joint committee are the responsibility of 
the Council 

• The Council with the agreement of the Cabinet, where some of the functions of the 
joint committee are the responsibility of the council and some are the responsibility of 
the Cabinet 

• The Cabinet, where all of the functions of the joint committee are the responsibility of 
the Cabinet 

 
Where the Council makes the appointment, then:  

• If the authority has only one seat on the joint committee, the person appointed need 
not be a Cabinet member 

• If the authority has more than one seat on the joint committee, at least one Cabinet 
member must be appointed  

Page 74



Where the Cabinet makes the appointment, then:  
• If the joint committee is discharging a function in relation to one or more local 

authority or which is required by statute to be discharged by a joint committee, non-
Cabinet members as well as Cabinet members may be appointed 

• In other circumstances, Cabinet members may be appointed 
• The political balance restrictions do not apply 

 
The list below briefly describes those executive functions that are delegated to a joint 
committee, with details of any advisory joint committee set to advise the authorities 
concerned (and/or their executives) on the discharge of such functions. 
 
Function Body 

 
Archives Management of the Authority’s archives 

functions; Tyne and Wear Archives and 
Museum Joint Strategic Board 
 

Trading Standards: 
• Co-ordination of enforcement 

functions 
• Management of the Tyne and Wear 

Metrology Laboratory 
 

Tyne and Wear Trading Standards Joint 
Committee.  This Chaired by Gateshead 
Councillor. 

Management of the Shipley Art Gallery 
 

Tyne and Wear Archives and Museums 
Board 
 

Purchasing through a consortium of local 
authorities 
 

Association of North East Councils Ltd 
(Collaborative Procurement Subcommittee) 
 

Management of the Mountsett Crematorium Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee 
 

Shared Waste Management Arrangements South of Tyne and Wear Waste 
Management Partnership 
 

Policy and service delivery of fire and 
rescue services. 
 

Tyne & Wear Fire and Rescue Authority 
 

 Control of the Pension Fund. 
 

Tyne & Wear Pension Fund Committee 

Negotiation and liaison between local 
government employers and employees. 
 

The North East Regional Employers 
Organisation (NEREO)  

 
In terms of the commitment required of the appointed councillors on these external bodies, 
for example: 
 
Tyne & Wear Fire and Rescue Authority 
Three councillors represent Gateshead Council on the Fire Authority. It meets 9 times per 
year with a further three sub-committees, one of which is chaired by a Gateshead Cabinet 
member. There is an ongoing member training programme which aims to keep members 
informed about changing legislation, community safety and service response across Tyne 
and Wear. Each member is also linked to at least one fire station in Gateshead. 
 
 

Page 75



Tyne and Wear Pension Fund Committee 
Two councillors are members of the Committee (one as a substitute). They both read the 
papers for the quarterly meetings and often both attend. Pensions is a complex subject and 
both the full member and substitute undertake the full range of member training (around 60 
hours per year) provided by the Fund. 

The North East Regional Employers Organisation (NEREO) 
This is a body funded and operated jointly by the 12 local authorities in the region.  It acts as 
a Regional Employers’ Organisation to support negotiation and liaison between local 
government employers and employees through the North East Provincial Council. 
The Governance of NEREO is carried out by an Executive Committee made up of Elected 
Member representatives from each of the 12 regional local authorities.  Three councillors are 
members of this body as Gateshead representatives, with one acting in the role of Vice 
Chair. This requires a significant time commitment from members both in terms of reading in 
preparation for meetings and in attending quarterly meetings.  Meetings of the North East 
Provincial Council are twice a year. 
 
Advisory Joint Committees 
 
Function Body 

 
To advise Gateshead and Newcastle 
Councils on management and maintenance 
on cross-Tyne bridges 

Joint Bridges Committee 

 
The North East Combined Authority 
 
Currently, the North East Combined Authority is the legal body that brings together the four 
councils which serve County Durham, Gateshead, South Tyneside and Sunderland.  The 
decision making and scrutiny functions are undertaken by the Leadership Board, the Audit & 
Standards Committee, Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Economic, Development and 
Digital Advisory Board. 
 

• Leadership Board 
o The NECA Leadership Board is the strategic decision-making body of the 

North East Combined Authority, responsible for a number of transport 
functions and economic development and growth. It is comprised of the four 
Leaders of the four constituent local authorities, plus the Chair of the North 
East Local Enterprise Partnership.  The Leadership Board exercises statutory 
functions and general powers relating to economic development and growth, 
economic conditions and transport.  It aims to achieve a number of key 
improvements across the area. 

 
• Audit & Standards Committee (and Sub-Committee) 

o The Audit and Standards Committee is a key component of the North East 
Combined Authority’s corporate governance arrangements and is an 
important source of assurance about the organisation’s arrangements for 
managing risk, maintaining an effective control environment and reporting on 
financial and other performance, and for the promotion and maintenance of 
high standards of conduct by its elected and co-opted members. 

o The Audit and Standards Sub-Committee 
The Sub-Committee that deals with applications from members and co-opted 
members for dispensation from requirements relating to interests as set out in 
the Members’ Code of Conduct 

Page 76



 
• Overview and Scrutiny Committee (and Call-In Sub-Committee) 

o Effective scrutiny arrangements are an essential part of local democracy, 
enhancing accountability and transparency of decision-making and enabling 
local councillors to represent the views of their constituents.  These 
arrangements have been established to enable local councillors, on behalf of 
their communities, to scrutinise and challenge all matters within the remit of 
the Combined Authority.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee also 
investigates matters of significant importance to residents within the areas 
covered by the four councils with a view to influencing decisions made in 
respect of all matters within the remit of the Combined Authority. 

o The Overview and Scrutiny Call-In Sub-Committee 
The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Call-In Sub-Committee is to exercise 
the power to call-in decisions of the NECA that have been made but not yet 
implemented. The purpose of call-in is to consider whether to recommend 
that a decision be reviewed by the decision taker and is used only where 
members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee have evidence which 
suggests that the decision was not taken in accordance with the principles of 
decision making. 
 

• Economic, Development and Digital Advisory Board 
o The Economic Development and Digital Advisory Board (previously Economic 

Development and Regeneration Advisory Board) is a committee which 
advises the NECA Leadership Board on economic strategy, project pipelines, 
funding and future priorities and monitors and oversees collaborative 
initiatives to promote inward investment.  Councillors from the four constituent 
councils and representatives of the North East Local Enterprise Partnership, 
North East Chamber of Commerce, Confederation of British Industry, 
Federation of Small Businesses and Trade Union Congress form the 
membership of the Advisory Board. 

 
Once devolution takes place, NECA will merge with the North of Tyne Combined Authority. 
 
The North East Joint Transport Committee 
 
The North East Joint Transport Committee brings together a total of seven members from 
each of the Constituent Authorities of the region.  Transport is of strategic importance to the 
North East, and the collaborative working allows effective decision making across the region, 
which ensures that the local needs and priorities are delivered.   
 
The Leader and Deputy Leader are members of the Committee with four additional 
Gateshead Councillors sitting on the sub-committees: 
 

• Joint Transport Committee Audit Committee 
o A key component of the corporate governance arrangements and is an 

important source of assurance about the organisation’s arrangements for 
managing risk, maintaining an effective control environment; and reporting on 
financial and other performance. 
 

• Joint Transport Committee Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
o Scrutiny arrangements are an essential component of local 

democracy, enhancing accountability and transparency of decision making 
and enabling local councillors to represent the views of their constituents 

Page 77



o These arrangements have been established to enable local councillors, on 
behalf of their communities, to scrutinise and challenge the Joint Transport 
Committee, its committees and Nexus, and to investigate matters of strategic 
importance to residents within the LA7 Area with a view to influencing and 
adding value to the decisions. 

• Joint Transport Committee Tyne and Wear Sub Committee 
o On behalf of the Joint Transport Committee, the Tyne and Wear Sub 

Committee focuses on the Tyne and Wear area and in particular on the 
issues that would have formerly been decided by the Tyne and Wear 
Integrated Transport Authority. 

 
Parish Council 
 

There is only one Parish Council within the borough, namely Lamesley Parish Council.  This 
consists of 15 elected members, based on 4 year terms.  There are all out elections every 4 
years which are mainly uncontested.  The Parish Council only covers 43.4% of the residents 
within the Lamesley Ward, amounting to 2.2% of residents within the borough.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



Scrutiny Functions  
 

The Council’s scrutiny function forms an integral part of the Council’s decision-making 
process. Scrutiny acts as a critical friend to the Executive by reviewing policy development 
and performance, with the aim to improve outcomes for residents of Gateshead.  Scrutiny 
plays an important role in reviewing Council policies, matters of general concern, and seeks 
to make recommendations to the Executive.  The creation of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees is set out in Article 6 of the constitution.   
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 

There are four Overview and Scrutiny committees which support the work of the Cabinet and 
the Council as a whole. They make recommendations and reports to the Cabinet and the 
Council on its policies, budget and service delivery. They may comment on forthcoming 
decisions on policies and budgets which are in the course of development.  
 
Overview and Scrutiny committees also monitor the decisions of the Cabinet. They can ‘call 
in’ a decision which has been made by the Cabinet but not yet implemented and, if they think 
it appropriate, may ask the Cabinet to think again. They can also hold reviews and inquiries 
into matters of local concern, involving other agencies in Gateshead as well as the Council. 
 
The following principles govern the Overview and Scrutiny function in the Council:  

• It will be an integral part of the Council’s framework, working within it not outside or 
against it 

• It will be a constructive process which is open and accountable  
• It will work alongside the other parts of the Council’s structure in making a 

contribution to policy 
• It will enhance rather than duplicate activity  
• It will look outwards to broader issues affecting local people rather than just internal 

Council issues  
 
Within these principles, the Overview and Scrutiny committees will:  

• Review decisions, holding decision makers to account  
• Call in executive decisions in accordance with the procedure set out in the Overview 

and Scrutiny Rules  
• Contribute to the policy-making process through: 

o Policy reviews agreed as part of the service planning cycle 
o Advice given to the Cabinet as part of the Council’s performance 

management framework 
o Examining issues in the Council’s schedule of decisions  
o Ensure other agencies, public and private, play their part in accordance with 

the Council’s protocol 
 
The allocation of seats on Overview and Scrutiny Committees is in accordance with political 
balance Rules, the appointment of councillors on Overview and Scrutiny Committees and 
appointment of the Chairs and Vice-Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committees takes place 
in the annual meeting of the Full Council. 
 
Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee will draw up a work programme based on the 
Cabinet’s Policy Framework. The work programme will be agreed annually by the Council as 
part of the policy planning process. In drawing up work programmes, Committees will take 
account of the aims and objectives of the Scrutiny function as set out in Article 6.02 of the 
constitution. 
 

Page 79



The work programme should have regard to:  
• The Council’s Policy Framework 
• The resources available 
• Time constraints 
• The need for flexibility 
• The interests of the local community 
• The concerns of all members of the committee.  

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committees will also respond, as soon as their work programme 
permits, to requests from the Council or Cabinet to review particular areas of Council activity. 
 
Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee will meet 7 times per year and are listed for 
approximately 3 hours to ensure Members can effectively scrutinise the reports presented by 
Officers.   
 
In the lead up to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting, the Chair and Vice Chair 
will hold a briefing meeting with presenting Officers to discuss the proposed agenda / 
reports.  This is to ensure any outstanding issues are addressed prior to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee taking place. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 
Name of Committee Care, Health and Wellbeing 

 
Composition Consists of 18 Members including Chair & Vice Chair. 

 
Scope  • Health services for adults and Overview of health services for 

children and young people  
• Social services (except those for children and young people)  
• Overview of functions discharged under the Health and Social 

Care Act 2012 or any other enactment in relation to the 
planning provision and operation of the health service in the 
area. 

Function  To perform the Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to:  
 
all the functions of the Council as a social services authority 
except those services provided to children and young people 
 
the provision of health services in the Borough, including the 
function of reviewing and scrutinising matters relating to the 
health service to adults as set out in the Health and Social Care 
Act 2001 and associated regulations 
 
the provision of health services to children and young people in 
the borough  
 
the health functions discharged by the Health and Wellbeing 
Board and the Director of Public Health under the Health and 
Social Care Act 2012 and the National Health Service Act 2006 
(as amended) and any related enactment  
 

 
 
 

Page 80



Name of Committee Families 
 

Composition Consists of 18 Members, including the Chair and Vice Chair (plus 
6 independents – 1 Church of England diocesan representative, 
1 Roman Catholic diocesan representative and 4 parent governor 
representatives) 
 

Scope • Education  
• Social services for children and young people  
• Health services for children and young people  
• Children in the Council’s care 

 
Function To perform the Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to the 

Council’s functions:  
 
as an education authority;  
 
in respect of the provision of social services, and other services 
to children and young people, including specific health services 
for children and young people (including the function of reviewing 
and scrutinising matters relating to the health service as set out 
on the Health and Social Care Act 2001 and associated 
regulations).  
 
to receive and consider monitoring reports on children in the 
Council’s care.  
 
to keep under review the Council’s arrangements for ensuring 
that the Council fulfils its role as corporate parent.  
 

 
Name of Committee Housing, Environment, Healthier Communities 

 
Composition Consists of 18 Members including Chair & Vice Chair (4 Housing 

Scrutiny Panel representatives and 2 Housing Assurance Board 
representatives – non-voting) 
 

Scope • Economic development 
• Lifelong learning  
• Culture, including leisure  
• Community safety  
• Housing including buildings and service compliance and 

performance monitoring  
• Homelessness, locality management and housing 

development  
• Physical development and regeneration  
• Transport planning and public transport  
• Local environment  
• Protection of the environment 

Function To perform the Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to: 
 
economic development and vitality 
 

Page 81



lifelong learning including education, training and learning outside 
the school environment; people into work  
 
culture, leisure, the arts, sports and recreation  
 
the safety of communities and people in the Borough  
 
matters relating to housing, including management and 
maintenance of the Council’s housing stock and private housing 
stock  
 
the physical development and regeneration of the area  
 
transport planning and the promotion of public transport 
 
the quality of the local environment, including refuse collection, 
street cleaning, ground maintenance, highway maintenance and 
the cleaning of Council buildings  
 
the protection of the environment, including Climate Change 
 
Homelessness, rough sleeping and asylum matters  
 

 
Name of Committee Corporate Resources 

 
Composition Consists of 18 Members including Chair & 2 x Vice Chair.  

 
Scope • Management of resources  

• Supporting democracy and involving local people  
• Social inclusion  
• Equalities and diversity Efficiency, VFM and procurement  
• Community capacity building  
• Volunteering and resilience 

 
Function To perform the Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 
the management of the Council’s financial, human and physical 
resources  
 
support for the democratic process  
 
the involvement of the people and communities of Gateshead in 
the work of the Council  
 
capacity building in communities, volunteering and resilience  
 
social inclusion, equalities and diversity 
 
the Council’s arrangements for securing efficiency and value for 
money; and the development and operation of the Council’s 
procurement strategy.  
 

 

Page 82



Advisory Groups 
 

The Cabinet will draw on the advice and experience of non-Cabinet members of the Council 
and will involve them constructively in the process of policy formulation. To this end, the 
Cabinet will establish a series of Advisory Groups consisting of non-Cabinet (including 
opposition) members. 
 
The Cabinet will, initially establish the advisory groups and appoint their members at the 
Cabinet’s first meeting following the Annual Council meeting, taking into account the wishes 
of the political groups.  
 
The Cabinet may vary the number of councillors to be appointed to an advisory group and 
may also establish time-limited advisory groups.  
 
In general terms, the purpose of advisory groups is to enable the Cabinet to seek advice, in 
an informal setting, from a broad group of Council members before a firm line is fixed. 
Meetings of advisory groups will be held in response to a request from the Cabinet for advice 
on a specific issue or issues; meetings should focus on discussing the issue and giving 
advice rather than arriving at a formal resolution.  
 
All members of the Council are invited to attend meetings of the Corporate Resources and 
Policy Advisory Groups.  
 
The advisory group system is the primary means by which the Cabinet carries out 
consultation within the Council.  
 
In addition, the Cabinet may:  

• request advice from all councillors on issues where there are ward implications  
• refer any matter to the appropriate Overview and Scrutiny committee for it to consider 

and report on  
• consult with any councillor or members of the Council on any matter  

 
There are two advisory groups based on corporate resources and policy areas, as follows:  
 
Advisory Group 
 

Membership 

Corporate 
Resources 
 

All members of the Council to be invited to attend meetings. 
 

Policy All members of the Council to be invited to attend meetings 
 

The Corporate Resources Advisory Group will be chaired by the Leader of the Council.  
 
The Policy Advisory Group will be chaired by a councillor nominated by the Leader of the 
Council from the development pool.  
 
Other advisory groups will be established as follows:  
 
Advisory Group 
 

Membership 

The Thrive Fund (previously 
known as the Capacity Building 
Fund) 
  

7 (2 Cabinet, 5 non-Cabinet) 
 

Page 83



Honours Advisory Group 12 (4 Cabinet, 8 non-Cabinet) 
 

Ward Liaison Groups (1 per ward) 3 (ward councillors) 
 

 
 
Strategic Housing Board 
The Council has established the Strategic Housing Board which is a formal advisory 
committee. 
 
It will consider a range of proposals relating to housing strategy, tackling homelessness, 
enabling independent living, promoting residential growth, policies relating to all housing 
sectors, and the contribution housing needs to make towards the Council’s Thrive ambition 
and delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  
 
The Strategic Housing Board consists of 21 members as follows:  

• Fifteen councillors (including the Chair and Vice Chair) appointed by the Council 
• Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board  
• Chair of the Community Safety Partnership  
• Three tenant representatives 
• Three partner representatives.  

 
The Council may appoint such other persons or representatives as it thinks appropriate 
having consulted the Strategic Housing Board. The Strategic Housing Board may itself 
appoint such additional persons to be members of the Strategic Housing Board as it thinks 
appropriate.  
 
Each member of the Strategic Housing Board is entitled to vote at meetings.  
 
The political balance rules apply to the Strategic Housing Board. 
 
The Board meets on a bi-monthly basis or at such other times as the Strategic Housing 
Board may determine.  
 
The Strategic Housing Board may appoint one or more sub-committees to advise the 
Strategic Housing Board with regard to any matter relating to the discharge of its functions.  
 
As a formal advisory Committee of the Council, the Strategic Housing Board will consider 
and make recommendations on a range of proposals relating to: 

• Housing Strategy  
• Residential and affordable housing development  
• Area based and housing led regeneration proposals and plans  
• Tackling homelessness, rough sleeping and specialist housing provision  
• Independent living  
• Ensuring regulatory and statutory compliance for the Council’s homes  
• The management and maintenance of the Council’s homes  
• Private sector housing  
• Locality planning, sustainability and management  
• Waste, environmental and community safety management  
• Social inclusion and community development  
• The tenant and wider community voice  
• Housing related planning policies and guidance  
• Partnership working with key stakeholders  

Page 84



• Bids, relevant funding and investment plans  
• Housing’s contribution to the delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and 

Thrive ambition 
 
 
External Scrutiny roles 
 

 
Police and Crime Panel 
The five Tyne and Wear Councils and Northumberland County Council have established the 
Northumbria Police and Crime Panel as required by the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011. The Panel scrutinises the performance of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (PCC) and also promotes openness in the delivery of police services 
throughout Northumbria. 
The Panel is currently Chaired by Gateshead Councillor, Angela Douglas, Cabinet Member 
for Culture, Sport & Leisure.  A second Gateshead Councillor also sits on the Panel which 
meets on a monthly basis. 
 
The Panel's powers and responsibilities include: 

• Reviewing the draft Police and Crime Plan 
• Publicly scrutinising the PCC's annual report 
• Reviewing and scrutinising decisions and actions of the PCC 
• Reviewing and vetoing the PCC's proposed precept levels 
• Reviewing and confirming the PCC's proposed appointments of Chief 

Constable, Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer, and Deputy Police and Crime 
Commissioner. 

 
The Integrated Care Partnership 
The Integrated Care Board (ICB) has been established to run the Integrated Care System 
(ICS), covering North Yorkshire to North Cumbria, replacing the previous system of Clinical 
Commissioning Groups.  The strategy for the new ICS is formulated by the Integrated Care 
Partnership (ICP).  The ICP will meet twice per year and there will be one Gateshead 
Council representative to meet with the representatives from each local authority, the ICB, 
Healthwatch and VCSE representatives.  The elected member for Gateshead will be the 
Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
There will be 4 regional sub-groups of the ICP.  The North ICP will include representative 
from Newcastle, Gateshead,, North Tyneside and Northumberland.  The Chair of the  Health 
and Wellbeing Board will be the Gateshead representative, further increasing the remit of 
that role. 
 
To coordinate local delivery, there will be joint working between the Council, Health and the 
VCSE as well as other strategic stakeholders.  Currently a sub-group of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, Gateshead Cares, undertakes this function.  It meets every two weeks and 
the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board attends the meetings. 
 
Currently Gateshead Council provides the secretariat for the regional Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee of the ICP and the North and Central sub ICPs.  There are 3 Councillors on this 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, of which one is Chair.  
 
 
 
 

Page 85



Overall 
 

Under the current structure, there is a total of 197 seats on Committees (excluding Cabinet 
which does not have to be politically proportionate). This equates to 2.99 committee seats 
per councillor. 
 
To realise the Council’s vision and deliver the strategic approach of Making Gateshead a 
Place Where Everyone Thrives there is a comprehensive Policy Framework, which 
encompasses 17 plans and strategies.  The Committees undertake a robust scrutiny and 
decision-making process to ensure the Council achieves these aims.  The workload for 
these Committees is consequently high, requiring Members to undertake extensive reading 
and preparation ahead of meetings, especially in Planning Committee, which may also 
require travel to site visits and engagement with Officers.   
 
Full year data for overall Member attendance at Council, Cabinet and Committees, for 
municipal year 2021/22, is available at Appendix 4.  Individual attendance data for 
Councillors during the same period is available at Appendix 5.  It is recognised that the 
figures for attendance, whilst high for some meetings and a number of Councillors, were 
impacted by the continued prevalence of Covid-19 during that period. 
 
There is a total of 66 outside bodies upon which Councillors have been nominated to 
represent the Council.  These include, but are not limited to: 

• Baltic Flour Mills Visual Arts Trust 
• Northumbria Regional Flood Defence Committee 
• Tyne and Wear Pension Fund  
• East Gateshead Bus Alliance 
• CNTW Mental Health NHS Foundation 
• Tyne and Wear Trading Standards Joint Committee 
• North East Procurement Organisation 
• North East Combined Authority 

 
A number of these outside bodies require the attendance of more than one Councillor, 
including, but not limited to: 

• Port of Tyne Health Authority 
• Newcastle Airport Local Authority Holding Company 
• North East Joint Transport Committee 
• Northumbria Police & Crime Panel 
• Tyne and Wear Fire Authority 

 
There are 37 Councillors nominated as Governors at 40 schools across the borough, with a 
further 11 Councillors co-opted as a Governor.  2 Councillors sit as Observers on schools 
within their wards. 
 
Formal Partnerships, also require the appointment of a Councillor include: 

• Community Safety Board – 1 Cabinet Member 
• Gateshead Fairtrade partnership – 1 Cabinet Member 
• Gateshead Schools forum – 1 Member 
• Gateshead Strategic partnership – 2 Members (Leader and Deputy Leader) 
• Lamesley ward – 2 Members plus Chair 
• South Tyne and Wear waste management partnership – 2 Cabinet Members 

 

Page 86



There is a high number of internal and external seats which need to be filled from the pool of 
66 Councillors to ensure powers, functions and scrutiny responsibilities can be administered 
effectively. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



Representational role of councillors in the local community 
Duties of Councillors 
 

 
Councillors Role and Functions  
 

The constitution sets out the key roles and the rights and duties of elected members in 
Article 2, paragraph 2.02: 
 
(a) Key Roles: 

All councillors will:  
(i) uphold and promote the purposes of the constitution  
(ii) collectively be the ultimate policy-makers and carry out a number of 

strategic and corporate management functions  
(iii) represent their communities and bring their views into the Council’s 

decision-making processes, ie become the advocate of and for their 
communities  

(iv) deal with individual casework and act as an advocate for constituents 
in resolving particular concerns or grievances fairly and impartially  

(v) effectively represent the interests of their ward as a whole and of 
individual constituents  

(vi) respond to constituents’ enquiries and representations  
(vii) participate in the governance and management of the Council and be 

involved in decision-making  
(viii) ensure that the Council meeting is a forum for the debate of matters of 

concern to the local community  
(ix) promote public involvement in the Council’s activities 11  
(x) be available to represent the Council on other bodies  
(xi) maintain the highest standard of conduct and ethics and observe the 

authority’s code of conduct  
 
(b) Rights and Duties: 

(i) Councillors will have such rights of access to such documents, 
information, land and buildings of the Council as are necessary for the 
proper discharge of their functions and in accordance with the law  
 

(iii) Councillors will not make public information which is confidential or 
exempt without the consent of the Council or divulge information given 
in confidence to anyone other than a councillor or employee entitled to 
know it 
 

(iv) For these purposes, ‘confidential’ and ‘exempt’ information are defined 
in the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this constitution 

 
Role and Function of the Mayor 
 

The election of the Mayor is set out in Article 5 of the constitution.  Part 4 of the constitution 
sets of the role and duties of the Mayor as Chair of the Council.   
 
At its Annual Meeting the Council will appoint a Mayor and a Deputy Mayor. The Mayor will 
also act as the Chair of Council and the Deputy Mayor will act as the Vice Chair of Council. 
The role of the Mayor is not merely a traditional one, but is an onerous position requiring 
support. 
 

Page 88



The current Mayor is Councillor Dorothy Burnett. Councillor Burnett is currently serving a 
second term. She is the elected member for the Dunston & Teams Ward. 

The Mayor, and in his/her absence, the Deputy Mayor, will have the following roles, 
functions and responsibilities;  
 

i) Be first citizen of the Borough of Gateshead 
ii) He/she will attend appropriate civic and ceremonial functions. 
iii) In his/her capacity as chair of the Council, the mayor will preside over meetings 

of the Council and interpret the Council Procedure Rules, so that its business can 
be carried out efficiently and with regard to the rights of councillors and the 
interests of the community.   

 
Role and Function of the Leader of the Council 
 

The responsibilities of the Leader of the Council extend to responsibility for the vision, 
policies, strategies and consequent decisions of the whole council. 
 

• The Leader is the political Leader of the Council and acts as the Council’s principal 
public spokesperson to promote the Council's vision for Gateshead and the 
policies and programmes adopted by the council. 

• The Leader ensures the council develops and maintains a vision for the whole of 
Gateshead and exercises leadership in all decision-making processes to support 
that vision. 

• The Leader ensures the effectiveness of the council. 
• The Leader ensures that the exercise of all of the powers of the council and 

delivery of all of the services for which the council is responsible best contributes 
to the corporate strategies of the council. 

• The Leader provides policy direction and progress the Council’s corporate 
objectives with Committee Chairs, the Chief Executive and Chief Officers, the 
Leaders of other political groups on the Council, partners and other stakeholders 

• The Leader has particular responsibility for council's role of community leadership 
and oversees effective relationships with partner organisations. 

• The Leader of the Council has a particular role in the promotion of an inclusive 
working environment involving all members of the council and in developing and 
encouraging effective working relationships among councillors and officers and 
maintaining and promoting high standards of conduct. 

• The Leader attends and participates in such civic and ceremonial functions and 
duties as determined by Council. 

 
As set out above, the current Leader Councillor Gannon also leads on several national and 
regional bodies as well as internal committees: 
External: 

• Chair of the North East Joint Transport Committee  
• Board member of North East Combined Authority, North East LEP, LGA 

Environment, Economy, Housing and Transport Board and Gateshead College.  
• Non-Executive Director of Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust  
• Chair of the Bishop Wilkinson Catholic Education Trust.   
• Gateshead Strategic Partnership Steering Group (Chair) 
• Northumbria Police and Crime Panel (Reserve) 

Internal: 
• Accounts Committee (Chair) 
• Cabinet (Chair) 
• Contracts Committee (Chair) 

Page 89

https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=148
https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=159
https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=141
https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=138
https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=142


• Council 
• Gateshead Health and Wellbeing Board  
• Pensions and Pay Discretions Sub Committee (Chair) 
• Special Appointments Committee (Chair) 

 
The Council also appoints Member Champions to support the work of the Leader.   
 
Current Champions: 

• Armed Forces 
• Cycling 
• Historic Environment 
• Looked After Children 
• Procurement 

 
Elected Members  
 

Councillors have a multifaceted role, including (but not limited to): 
• Communicating with constituents and undertaking case work on their behalf 
• Attending internal governance and or scrutiny meetings 
• Working with Officers in areas of specialism eg as a Chair of a Committee or on 

behalf of residents to further casework.   
• Attending external meetings as the representative of Gateshead Council 
• Engaging in community activities 
• Undertaking roles within schools / community organisations / charities 

 
From the Councillor engagement which has taken place for the preparation of this 
submission, Members report an average of between 15 – 55 hours per week on activities 
related to their elected role, encompassing all of the above.  The time commitment required 
of Councillors can vary week to week depending upon the nature of the activity and their 
role. Members report working daily on activities connected to their elected role. 
 
The amount of time spent on these activities is not necessarily dependent upon having a 
position on a Committee.  Councillors in full time employment who are unable to put 
themselves forward for positions in Committees or as Chairs/Vice Chairs, still report 
spending on average over 20 hours per week on work connected to their role as a 
Councillor. 
 
Of the current 66 Councillors, 34 currently declare external employment.  The time spent by 
councillors each week on activities connected to their elected duties are on top of their 
employment commitments as well as caring and child-care responsibilities.  Appendix 6 
details a case study of the work undertaken by a Portfolio holder. 
 
The list of activities referred to by Members included (but not limited to): 

• Active case work 
• Preparation and reading of reports  
• Attendance at meetings – this can include: 

o Committees including OSC, joint-committees, partnerships 
o Full Council 
o Cabinet 
o Panels 
o Group  

• Travel 
• Site visits 
• Ward related events – this can include: 

Page 90

https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=140
https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=153
https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=151
https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=147


o Community action meetings 
o Tenant / Resident Association meetings  
o Engaging with Faith Groups 
o Litter picking drives 
o Maintenance of public spaces 

• Engaging directly with constituents 
o Surgeries (returning after the pandemic) 
o Telephone calls 
o Social media 
o Email correspondence  

• School Governor activities 
 
Within their communities, the following are examples of the type, range and scope of groups 
councillors are involved in: 

• Community Projects (eg St Chads’ Community Project)  
• Neighbourhood Watch 
• Friends of …. (eg Shipley Art Gallery, the Staithes)  
• Community Associations (eg Rowland Gill, Chopwell, Greenside) 
• Community initiatives (eg Bensham & Saltwell Alive, Love Dunston, Love Your 

Avenues)  
• Community Centres (eg Ryton, Dunston, Kibblesworth Village Hall, Millennium 

Centre) 
• Mutual Aid Group (eg Rowland Gill and Highfield) 
• Cultural heritage (eg Banner Tales (heritage in villages of West Gateshead), 

Coatsworth Road Townscape Heritage Initiative) 
• Foodbanks (eg Founder and Chair of The Felling Food Network, Bensham Court) 
• Friends of parks (eg Fernedene, Chase, Saltwell)  
• Trustee (eg Blaydon Youth and Community Centre, Felling Magpies Youth Football 

Club, Pathways 4 All, Gateshead Citizens Advice, Happy to Help – home help 
project, Teams and Bensham community care - lunch club for older residents, Ryton 
Scout Hut, North East Culture Partnership, Age UK)  

• Volunteer (eg Gateshead Community Kitchens at Callendar Court, Larkspur Hub, 
Bensham Court Woman’s Group, Barmoor Hub lunch club)  

• President of Gateshead Sea Cadets 
• Environmental Groups (eg Brighten Ryton, Durham Wildlife) 
• Charities (eg Our Villages Crawcrook & Greenside, Aid Electrics, Foundations 

Furniture Project, Ryton Parochial Charity Trust) 
 
The Member’s registers of interest and their responses to a request for information show 
they are involved in approximately 90 outside bodies, including charities and other groups in 
the community.  This is a mixture of Council appointments as well as volunteer, trustee and 
organisational roles. 
 
Councillors also sit on the board of governors in 40 schools across the borough (39 
maintained schools and 1 academy), this is a mixture of Council nominated appointments as 
well as co-opted members.  Councillors hold 3 positions as Chair and 5 Vice-Chair roles. 
 
The way in which councillors engage with their constituents has changed since the last 
review was undertaken.  Previously, in 2002, whilst surgeries, telephone and, to a more 
limited extent, email communication was used to contact a Councillor, members of the public 
are making increasing use of social media to seek direct access to their Councillor.   
 
In addition to that, councillors are making use of “pages” on social media to raise the profile 
of their community.  In two examples, pages hosted on Facebook by councillors have 

Page 91



several thousand followers – the Ryton Councillor page has 1,916 followers whilst the 
Crawcrook residents page, hosted by the elected member, has 5,849 followers.  One 
Councillor reports spending 30 minutes each day reviewing 4 Facebook pages connected to 
her ward, allowing her to identify and respond to any concerns or issues raised by residents.   
 
One Councillor commented: 
“[Facebook] attracts casework through messenger, [and] requires me to post things regularly 
and occasionally when something controversial crops up it can feel like I spend all day 
replying to people. I am also active on two significant residents’ pages and a few other 
pages that are less active. In the past I have counted over 250 individual residents have 
directly messaged me as a result of posts on these pages over the last 4 years. Some of the 
casework this has generated has been easily resolved some of it is very long standing. I 
couldn't begin to put a value in hours on this, other than to say it is a significant workload.” 
 
The Council has faced £179 million cuts since 2010 and this has resulted in a number of 
non-statutory services being cut, this is at a time when the levels of deprivation in the 
borough are going up.  With the reduction in Officers within the Council and the removal of 
many services within the community, members report that constituents seek their help as 
they don’t have anyone else to help them.  These difficult decisions must be taken by 
councillors and in making these decisions, they have to undertake work to understand what 
the proposals will mean for the residents of their ward.  Consequently, Members spend a 
significant amount of time engaging with officers and preparing for difficult decision-making 
meetings.   
 
During the period since the last review, the number of properties within the Council’s housing 
stock has reduced, leading to an increase in the number of privately rented properties within 
the borough.  In 2010, the number of private rents amounted to 6% of the total housing 
stock, by 2021, this had risen to 24.6%.  In that period (up to 30.11.22) there has been an 
increase in Anti-Social Behaviour complaints associated with private housing (18.7%).  In 
just a 3 year period, 19/20 – 21/22, the number of requests for support with private-rental 
housing conditions has risen by 25.7%.  Many of these tenants are involving their Councillor 
to support them during these difficult periods.    
 
As a consequence of the cuts to services and the current cost of living crisis, councillors 
have seen an increase in the following types of enquiries from their constituents: 

• Adult Social Care assessments  
o With the reduction in adult social care provision, Members report the diversity 

and complexity of queries has increased. 
• Request for adaptations 
• Anti-social behaviour complaints  
• Housing repairs   
• Environmental services – grass cutting, road repairs  
• Energy and food bills 

 
Looked after children – Corporate Parents 
s.1 Children and Social Care Act 2017 sets out the “corporate parenting principles” which 
apply to all councils in respect of the children and young people in their care.  Gateshead 
Council ensures these principles are at the forefront of services provided to looked after 
children.  There is an increasing focus on members as corporate parents, with all looked 
after children being told of the identity their ward Councillor (age appropriate), should they 
wish to approach their Councillor for support.  The Cabinet Member for Children & Families 
is forging regional links to promote the corporate parenting principles. 
 
 

Page 92



The Armed Forces 
In 2011 the Gateshead Armed Forces Network (GAFN) was set up. The Leader has 
appointed an Armed Forces Champion to reinforce the commitment of the Council to the 
Gateshead Armed Forces Network.  The Armed Forces Champion chairs the Network. 
 
The Network was established to promote joint working to prevent disadvantage to individuals 
and their families as a result of their military service and their transition to civilian life. 
 
The Network involves representatives of the armed forces and organisations supporting ex-
service personnel as well as the Council's Armed Forces Champion and other partner 
organisations. 
  
The Network also acts as the mechanism to annually review the actions taken by the Council 
and partners to implement the Gateshead Armed Forces Community Covenant. 
 
In 2012 Gateshead Council was the first Council to sign up to the Armed Forces Covenant 
and in 2020 the Council affirmed its commitment to ensuring that serving and former 
members of the armed forces and their families are treated fairly and are not disadvantaged 
as a result of their service, by signing a new Armed Forces Covenant. 
 
In addition, in 2020 Gateshead Council was the first organisation in the North East to have 
its Ministry of Defence Employer Recognition Scheme Gold Award revalidated. The award 
recognises employers who demonstrate positive attitudes and policies towards serving and 
ex-members of the armed forces. 
 
In 2014 the Armed Forces Outreach Service (AFOS) was established to provide help and 
support, for all Forces personnel, reservists, veterans and their families.  Staffed mainly by 
ex-service leavers, the service provides direct assistance and support on issues such as: 

• housing and financial management / debt advice 
• benefits 
• employment / training 
• health and wellbeing 
• care and support 

 
AFOS works particularly closely with Walking With the Wounded, a leading national veterans 
charity, to offer opportunities for employment, training and volunteering.  In Gateshead, 
Walking With the Wounded also deliver family welfare support and support for veterans who 
come into contact with the Police through their Project Nova Team. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 93



Council size – Options considered 
 

 
All councillors were invited to an engagement event via Team on Tuesday 17 January 2023.  
The purpose of the event was to allow members to provide direct feedback on the council 
size options. 
 
Fewer Councillors  
The option of reducing the number of councillors was considered but has been disregarded.  
 
As can be demonstrated from the information contained in this document, Gateshead 
Councillors are currently undertaking a tremendous about of work connected with their 
elected role.  The majority of the responses received from Members referred to an average 
of 15-25 hours per week on activities undertaken in the capacity as a Councillor.   
 
Members would suggest that because of the unprecedented cuts over the last 12 years, their 
role within the Council has grown as difficult decisions have to be taken within an extensive 
Policy Framework, which is in place to ensure the residents of Gateshead have the 
opportunity to thrive, the overall strategic approach of the Council.  
 
This additional workload and responsibility have put an extra burden on councillors as they 
pick up more queries, issues and concerns of their constituents who require support 
connected to the devastating impact of the increasing cost of living crisis. Reducing the 
number of councillors would further increase this level of demand and would limit the ability 
of councillors to provide effective representation to their constituents.  
 
Fewer councillors would mean that the workload for the remaining councillors would 
increase.  The ability to attract councillors who represent the community, ie in employment, 
those with caring responsibilities, would be diminished as they could not balance the work 
required of a Councillor and their private life.  Those in that position can already struggle to 
achieve that balance.  The current members are concerned that if there were fewer 
councillors, the age demographic of councillors would increase, as many of the positions to 
be filled, would be taken by retired councillors as they would have the required time 
available.   
 
The proposed devolution will also bring additional powers and greater levels of accountability 
which will require significant involvement of the cabinet and the wider members to support 
scrutiny requirements at this regional level.  This will be in addition to the responsibility of 
councillors to pursue opportunities for their residents that will come from the new funding 
streams available through the Combined Authority.  It is notable that with devolution comes 
additional powers and functions devolved from central government and does not reduce the 
existing governance/scrutiny functions of members within the Council itself.  Whilst the exact 
nature of the roles expected of Gateshead Councillors within the new Combined Authority 
are uncertain, what is undoubted is that there will be an increasing demand on the 
representational role of the councillors in Gateshead.  
 
It is anticipated that there will greater integration between the Council and Health, evidenced 
by the increasing work between health and adult social care services (see the Government’s 
white paper, issued February 2022, “Health and social care integration: joining up care for 
people, places and population”).  As with the Health & Wellbeing Board, it is anticipated that 
with the focus on integration between Health and Social Care, this will lead to a statutory 
requirement to formalise these arrangements. 
 
More Councillors  

Page 94



The option of increasing the number of councillors was considered but has been 
disregarded.  
The Council is conscious that at the decision on Council size at the last review resulted in an 
objectively generous Councillor / Elector ratio.  It is recognised that despite the workload 
pressures upon the current councillors due to the high levels of deprivation in the borough 
and the significant number of internal and external decision-making and scrutiny positions 
which need to be undertaken, it would be unrealistic to seek an increase in the number of 
Councillors to help reduce this workload. 
 
It is also noted that there are severe financial pressures on the Council’s budget, with a 
further £55 million in savings to be made over the next 5 years.  With the difficult budget 
decisions that Councillors are repeatedly required to make, the Council felt that instead of 
seeking an increase in Councillor numbers, resources should be prioritised for the provision 
of front-line services. 
 
Same Number of Councillors  
The majority of Members support the position that the number of Councillors should remain 
the same in Gateshead.  This position is not supported by the opposition party.  The Liberal 
Democrats will submit a proposal to reduce the number of Councillors.   
 
The Council has operated with 66 Councillors in 22 wards since 1982 and in that time the 
role of the councillor has been changed in many ways – the complexity of the work, the 
increasing needs of their constituents and through the developments in technology and 
social media the way in which the public to interact with Councillors has made them more 
accessible than ever. 
 
Whilst workloads are high, they are currently manageable with the number of Councillors in 
place.  
 
The Council’s governance arrangements have been largely unchanged since the previous 
review in 2002.  The Council will continue to operate a Leader and Cabinet executive model, 
and it is anticipated that the committees and advisory groups in place to assit in this 
decision-making role, as well as the committees carrying out the scrutiny functions, will 
remain unchanged moving through the next few years. 
 
There will be a change in role for Councillors, especially Cabinet members and Portfolio 
holders, connected to the devolution agreement, but as yet the impact of this is unknown.  
 
The somewhat smaller councillor / elector ratio allows Members to effectively represent their 
constituents whose needs are significantly increased due to the prevalence of deprivation in 
the borough.   
 

Conclusion and recommendation 
 

This submission has highlighted a number of challenges currently facing Gateshead Council 
in seeking to address and reduce deprivation levels, health inequalities and socio-economic 
inequalities within the borough.  
 
The role of the Councillor has never been so important in ensuring the Council achieves its 
strategic objective in “Making Gateshead a place where everyone thrives”.  This is against a 
background in which many residents are struggling more than ever.  Councillors are 
ensuring effective governance and scrutiny of the Policy Framework which consists of 17 
crucial plans and strategies to help the Council address the identified challenges within the 
borough. 

Page 95



 
The Council has an ambitious plan to increase the economic prosperity of the borough 
through the significant development of the Baltic Quay area.  The Local Plan, containing the 
overall vision and spatial strategy to deliver economic prosperity, create lifetime 
neighbourhoods, and protect and enhance the natural and built environment, demonstrates 
this commitment.  Councillors play a critical role in ensuring these ambitions are achieved for 
the benefit of their constituents. 
 
The Council recognises the advantages of collaborative working with other organisations to 
achieve the best outcomes for the people of the borough.  With that commitment comes the 
need to ensure sufficient Councillor representation on external decision-making and scrutiny 
bodies to allow the Council to discharge its responsibilities within the joint partnerships.  
 
This submission has also highlighted the personal commitment of Councillors to groups 
within their communities.  This demonstrates our Councillors’ public service and dedication 
to the needs of their local communities.  Many Councillors are involved across a range of 
neighbourhood activities for the benefit of both the old and young residents within their 
wards.     
 
The changes in the social norms mean that Councillors are more directly accessible than 
ever before.  The forms of communication which allow constituents to make contact with 
their Councillor is wider than ever and with the use of social media, this communication is 
now public facing with a broader audience.   
 
Recommendation 
To ensure that the Council can administer convenient and effective local government 
activities – decision-making, scrutiny and community participation – it is the opinion of the 
majority of Gateshead Council that the optimum Council size should remain at 66 Members.  
 

Page 96



Appendix 1  
Current list of elected members, comprising ward and political party 
 

 
Ward 

  Councillor  Party  

Birtley 
Catherine Davison Labour 
Daniel Weatherley Labour 
Hazel Weatherley Labour 

Blaydon 
Lee-Ann Moir Labour 
Malcolm Brain Labour 
Steve Ronchetti Labour 

Bridges 
Angela Douglas Labour 
Bob Goldsworthy Labour 
John Eagle Labour 

Chopwell and Rowlands Gill 
Dave Bradford Labour 
Lynne Caffrey Labour 
Michael Mcnestry Labour 

Chowdene 
John McElroy Labour 
Keith Wood Labour 
Maureen Goldsworthy Labour 

Crawcrook and Greenside 
Helen Haran Labour 
Hugh Peter Kelly Labour 
Kathleen McCartney Labour 

Deckham 
Bernadette Oliphant Labour 
Leigh Kirton Labour 
Martin Gannon  Labour 

Dunston and Teams 
Brenda Clelland Labour 
Dot Burnett Labour 
Gary Haley Labour 

Dunston Hill and Whickham 
East 

Amelia Louise Ord Liberal Democrat 
Peter Maughan Liberal Democrat 
Victoria Anderson Liberal Democrat 

Felling 
Bill Dick Labour 
Paul McNally Labour 
Sonya Dickie Labour 

High Fell 
Jennifer Reay Labour 
Jill Green Labour 
Judith Gibson Labour 

Lamesley 
Jane McCoid Labour 
Judith Turner Labour 
Sheila Gallagher Labour 

Lobley Hill and Bensham 
Catherine Donovan Labour 
Eileen McMaster Labour 
Kevin Dodds Labour 

Page 97



Low Fell 
Daniel Duggan Liberal Democrat 
Dawn Elizabeth Welsh Liberal Democrat 
Ron Beadle Liberal Democrat 

Pelaw and Heworth 
Amanda Renee Wintcher Liberal Democrat 
Ian Patterson Liberal Democrat 
Paul Diston Liberal Democrat 

Ryton Crookhill and Stella 
Alex Geddes Labour 
Christopher Buckley Labour 
Freda Geddes Labour 

Saltwell 
Denise Robson Labour 
John Adams Labour 
Robert Lee Waugh Labour 

Wardley and Leam Lane 
Linda Green MBE Labour 
Sharon Louise Potts Labour 
Stuart Green Labour 

Whickham North 
Cristopher Ord Liberal Democrat 
Peter Craig Liberal Democrat 
Sonya Hawkins Liberal Democrat 

Whickham South and 
Sunniside 

Johnathon Wallace Liberal Democrat 
Jonathan Mohammed Liberal Democrat 
Marilynn Ord Liberal Democrat 

Windy Nook and Whitehills 
Jim Turnbull Labour 
Rachel Mullen Labour 
Thomas Graham Labour 

Winlaton and High Spen 
Julie Simpson Labour 
Maria Hall Labour 
Pamela Marie Burns Labour 

 

Page 98



Appendix 2 

NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS  
 
The Council will establish the following bodies to deal with non-executive functions as shown 
in this Annex.  
 
The Council will appoint the stated number of councillors to each body at the Annual 
Meeting. The Council may vary the number of councillors appointed to each body at its 
discretion.  

 

*     Includes three independent members and one Lamesley Parish Councillor.  
** The membership also includes 14 non councillor members.  
***     Redundancy appeals will be considered by a politically balanced Sub Committee consisting of 

3 members of the Personnel Sub Committee.  
 
The Planning and Development and Appeals Committees will as far as possible consist of one 
member per ward.  
 
The Licensing and Regulatory Committees will have the same membership.  
 
Matters to be dealt with by the full Council  
The Council meeting will exercise the following functions, duties and powers (in addition to those 
listed in Article 4.02): 
(i) determining the amount of any allowance payable under sections 3 and 5 of the 

Local Government Act 1972 (chair’s/vice-chair’s expenses);  
(ii) determining a scheme for basic, attendance and special responsibility allowances in 

accordance with section 18 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and any 
Regulations made thereunder;  

(iii) determining whether a charge should be made for any approval, consent, licence, 
permit or registration the issue of which is not the responsibility of the executive, 
and the amount of any such charge; 55  

(iv) the powers and duties of the Council in relation to elections and electoral 
registration, including:  
a. the appointment of an electoral registration officer and a returning officer 

for local government elections;  
b. the division of the authority’s area into polling districts  
c. the submission to the Secretary of State of proposals for pilot schemes for 

local elections;  

Page 99



(v) functions and powers of the Council in relation to parish councils (except for matters 
which are the responsibility of the Audit and Standards Committee);  

(vi) the functions of the Council in relation to local government pensions;  
(vii) the duty to approve the authority’s statement of accounts, income and expenditure 

and balance sheet or record of receipts and payments (as the case may be);  
(viii) the power to make payments or provide other benefits in cases of maladministration 

in accordance with section 92 of the Local Government Act 2000;  
(ix) the functions of the Council relating to sea fisheries;  
(x) the duty under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to make arrangements 

for the proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs;  
(xi) the duty to designate an officer as head of the paid service and to designate an 

officer as the monitoring officer, and to provide them with such officers, 
accommodation and other resources as are in their opinion sufficient to allow their 
duties to be performed;  

(xii) the power to appoint proper officers under section 270(3) of the Local Government 
Act 1972;  

(xiii) the duty to approve proposals in connection with the preparation of an altered or 
replacement development plan, prior to public consultation, under regulations 10 
and 22 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Plans) (England) 
Regulations 1999;  

(xiv) on the recommendation of the Cabinet and the receipt of a report from the Chief 
Executive, to appoint an existing employee to a chief officer post as part of a 
reorganisation of the service or services concerned;  

(xv) the power under section 166 of the Gambling Act 2005 to resolve not to issue casino 
premises licences;  

(xvi) the power under section 212 of the Gambling Act 2005 to determine any fees 
payable to the Council under that Act; 56  

(xvii) the duty to determine, publish and review the Council’s Statements of Principle 
under the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005;  

(xviii) the power to appoint Public Analysts pursuant to section 27 of the Food Safety Act 
1990;  

(xix) the power to appoint Agricultural Analysts pursuant to section 67 of the Agriculture 
Act 1970;  

(xx) the power to appoint, jointly with the Secretary of State, a Director of Public Health 
under the Health and Social Care Act 2012; 

(xxi) the duty to publish the annual report on the health of the local population as 
produced by the Director of Public Health; 

(xxii) dismissal of Statutory Officers in accordance with the procedure set out in the 
Employee Recruitment Rules and the requirements of The Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015.  

 
Delegations to Council bodies  
Council bodies will exercise non-executive functions as set out in the following below subject to any 
conditions or restrictions imposed by the Council.  
 
NON-EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS – DELEGATION TO COUNCIL BODIES  
 
1. Planning and Development Committee  

Except when a matter is delegated to the Service Director, Climate Change, Compliance, 
Planning and Transport, the Planning and Development Committee has delegated power:  

Page 100



(i)  to exercise the powers and duties of the Council as local planning authority under 
the following legislation (or any statutory modification or re-enactment) and any 
statutory instruments made under the legislation:  
a.  Part III and Part XV Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – control over 

development;  
b.  Part VII Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – enforcement;  
c.  Part VIII Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – trees, land adversity 

affecting amenity and the control of advertisements;  
d.  Part XIII Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – Crown Land;  
e.  Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990;  
f.  The Town and Country Planning (Assessment of Environmental Effects) 

Regulations 1998  
(ii)  to exercise the powers and duties of the Council under the Planning (Hazardous 

Substances) Act 1990  
(iii)  to exercise the powers and duties of the Council as Local Planning Authority under 

the Hedgerows Regulations 1997;  
(iv)  to respond to waste management licence consultations from the Environment 

Agency  
(v)  to respond to consultations from other local planning authorities and from 

Government departments and agencies relating to development management 
matters  

(vi)  to determine the conditions to which old mining permissions, relevant planning 
permissions relating to dormant sites or active Phase I or II sites, or mineral 
permissions relating to mining sites are to be subject;  

(vii)  to exercise the powers of the Council to make limestone pavement orders under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981;  

(viii)  to exercise the powers of the Council:  
a. to register common land or town or village greens, except where the power is 
exercisable solely for the purpose of giving effect to an exchange of lands under the 
Acquisition of Land Act 1981 or an order under the Inclosure Act 1845; and  
b. to register variation of rights of common land.  

(ix)  To exercise the powers of the Council under the Town and Country Planning 
(Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017 to prepare and maintain a register of 
previously developed land.  

(x)  To exercise the powers of the Council under the Housing and Planning Act 2016 and 
The Town and Country Planning (Permission in Principle) Order 2017 to allocate land 
to Part 2 of the Council’s register of previously adopted land.  

(xi)  To exercise the powers of the Council under the Town and Country Planning 
(Permission in Principle) (Amendment) Order 2017 to determine applications for 
permission in principle and technical details consent.  

 
2. Licensing Committee  

The Licensing Committee will:  
(i) Exercise all the powers and duties of the Council under the Licensing Act 2003 and 

the Gambling Act 2005, except for those functions which are reserved to the 
Council.  

(ii) May arrange for any functions that it exercises to be discharged by:  
a. a sub-committee established by it (this should consist of three councillors);  
b. an officer of the Council as Licensing Authority in accordance with the 

Statement of Licensing Policy approved by the Council from time to time.  
 

Page 101



The Committee will submit a report to the Council on any such arrangements that it may make.  
 
 

3. Regulatory Committee  
The Regulatory Committee, except where the matter is delegated to the Service Director, 
Climate Change, Compliance, Planning and Transport, has delegated powers: 

(a) to determine licensing applications in the following areas, where there has 
been a refusal to grant, renew, vary or transfer a license to where there are 
relevant objections to such applications; and to consider the 59 revocation 
of existing licences:  

• animal boarding establishments  
• dangerous wild animals  
• dog breeding establishments  
• hypnotism • motor salvage operators  
• pet shops  
• pleasure boats and navigators  
• sex establishments  
• street collections  
• street trading  
• scrap metal dealers  

(b)  to grant and renew licences for Hackney Carriages, Hackney Carriage 
Drivers, Private Hire Vehicles, Private Hire Drivers and Private Hire Operators 
(including Dual Driver licences) where the application does not meet the 
Council’s standard conditions, but having regard to all relevant information, 
it is determined that the individual circumstances justify deviation from 
policy;  

(c)  to vary, suspend and revoke such licences where, having regard to all 
relevant information, it is determined that in individual circumstances it is 
appropriate to do so;  

(d)  to deal with all applications for approved venue status under the Marriage 
Act 1949 and Civil Partnerships Act 2004 where there has been a request to 
review the decision of the Proper Officer to refuse approval or to grant 
approval subject to the imposition of condition(s);  

(e)  to deal with control and enforcement of the law relating to safety at sports 
grounds; and  

(f)  to deal with any licence and registration which is not delegated to any other 
body.  

 
4.  Rights of Way Committee  

The Committee has delegated power to exercise the powers and duties of the Council to:  
(i) create, stop up and divert footpaths and bridleways;  
(ii) assert and protect the rights of the public to use and enjoyment of 

highways;   
(iii) remove things so deposited on highways as to be a nuisance;  
(iv) keep the Council’s definitive map and statement under review;  
(v) reclassify roads used as public paths; and 
(vi) discharge any other function which is classed as a function relating to public 

rights of way in Part I Schedule 1 of the Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (as amended).  
 
 

Page 102



5. Appeals Committee  
The Appeals Committee has delegated power:   

(i)  to determine appeals  
a. against decisions on the award of discretionary financial assistance 

to students; 
b. from introductory tenants against decisions to end their tenancies;  
c. from persons who have been excluded from the housing register or 

whose application for re-housing has been deferred;  
d. against decisions relating to homelessness;   
e. against decisions regarding adaptations to dwellings occupied by 

disabled persons;  
f. against refusal by the Director of Adult Services or Director of 

Children’s Services to waive or amend discretionary charges;  
g. against the decisions to remove a medical priority for housing;  
h. against decisions of the Council to use mandatory grounds of 

possession in anti-social behaviour cases;  
i. against Council decisions relating to charging and financial 

assessment for adult care and support services;  
j. against decisions relating to home to school and college travel.  

(ii)  to review, at the request of aggrieved persons, any decision concerning 
access to, or rectification or erasure of, any information (Access to Personal 
Files Act 1987 and associated Regulations);  

(iii) to determine any other appeal where the Council’s policies provide a right of 
appeal against a decision made by or on behalf of the authority, except 
where the matter is the responsibility of the Personnel Appeals Committee.  

 
6. Personnel Appeals Committee  

The Personnel Appeals Committee has delegated power to determine any appeal from an 
employee of the Council relating to conditions of service, promotion, demotion or dismissal, or 
disciplinary action including dismissal, or arising from the Council’s grievance procedure.  

 
7. Contracts Committee  

The Contracts Committee has delegated power:  
(i) to negotiate and agree individual contracts of service with the Chief 

Executive, Strategic Directors and Service Directors; 
(ii) to agree the remuneration of the Chief Executive, Strategic Directors and 

Service Directors;  
(iii) to appraise the performance of the Chief Executive and arrange for the 

appraisal of Strategic Directors and Service Directors. 
 

8. Special Appointments Committee  
In accordance with the Employee Recruitment Rules, the Committee has delegated power:  

(i) in relation to the appointment of the Head of Paid Service, to select a short 
list of candidates, to interview candidates and make a recommendation to 
the Council;  

(ii) in relation to appointments to Chief Officer posts (as defined in the 
Employee Recruitment Rules) to select a short list of candidates, interview 
candidates and make the appointment; or, if considered appropriate, to fill 
the post by appointing an existing employee in circumstances where no 
reorganisation of a service is involved.  

 

Page 103



The Special Appointments Committee may appoint one or two additional non-voting Cabinet 
members to the Committee in relation to any particular appointment.  
 

9. Audit and Standards Committee  
The Audit and Standards Committee has delegated power to:  

(i) consider the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management arrangements, 
 the internal control environment and associated anti-fraud and anti-
corruption arrangements;  

(ii) seek assurances, and satisfy itself, that action is being taken on risk-related 
issues identified by auditors and inspectors;  

(iii) satisfy itself that the Council’s assurance statements, including the 
Statement on Internal Control, properly reflect the risk environment and any 
actions required to improve it;  

(iv) approve the Council’s Statement on Internal Control and Annual Governance 
Statement;  

(v) approve, but not direct, the Council’s internal audit strategy and audit plan, 
and monitor its performance;  

(vi) review reports on internal audit activity and the main issues arising, and seek 
assurances that action has been taken where necessary;  

(vii) consider the annual audit report on internal audit activity;  
(viii) consider the reports of external audit and inspection agencies;  
(ix) review the scope and depth of external audit work, inspection agencies and 

other relevant bodies, and ensure that they provide value for money;  
(x) raise the profile of audit, risk management and the internal control 

environment;  
(xi) review the financial statements, external auditor’s opinion and reports to 

members, and monitor management action in response to the issues raised 
by external audit; 

(xii) consider the Council’s arrangements for Corporate Governance and agreeing 
necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice;  

(xiii) consider treasury management performance reports;  
(xiv) promote and maintain high standards of conduct by councillors and co-

opted members;  
(xv) assist the councillors and co-opted members to observe the Members’ Code 

of Conduct;  
(xvi) advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code of 

Conduct; 
(xvii) monitor the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct 
(xviii) advise, train or arrange to train councillors and co-opted members on 

matters relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct;  
(xix) grant dispensations to councillors and co-opted members from requirements 

relating to interests set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct so far as not 
delegated to the Monitoring Officer including holding hearings as 
appropriate undertaken by a standards sub-committee set up for the 
purpose;  

(xx) assist and advise parish councils in the Borough, if requested and as 
appropriate, in relation to their discharge of functions (xiv)-(xix) above on 
request of their parish councillors;  

(xxi) in accordance with the approved delegations, deal with written allegations 
that a councillor or co-opted member (or former councillor or co-opted 
member) of the Council or a parish councillor or former parish councillor in 

Page 104



the Borough has failed, or may have failed, to comply with the Members’ 
Code of Conduct 

(xxii) set from time to time appropriate allowances and expenses payable to the 
statutory Independent Persons;  

(xxiii) amend from time to time as it considers appropriate the arrangements to be 
followed in the initial consideration, investigation or hearing of any 
complaint of a breach of the Code of Conduct 

(xxiv) take any of the actions in respect of any member who after investigation the 
Committee decides, following a recommendation from a standards 
subcommittee, has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct;  

(xxv) promote and maintain high standards of conduct by officers; 
(xxvi) assist officers to observe the Code of Conduct for Employees;  
(xxvii) monitor the operation of the Code of Conduct for Employees.  

 
Standards Sanctions  
Actions delegated to the Committee on a finding that a member has failed to comply with 
the Code of Conduct:   
• Issue a formal censure.  
• Recommend to full Council (or to the Parish Council) the issue of a formal censure by the 
Council (or by the Parish Council).  
• Refer its findings to full Council (or the Parish Council) for information;  
• Publish its findings by such means as the Committee thinks fit.  
• Recommend to the Council (or the Parish Council) that the member be removed from any 
or all Committees or Sub-Committees (subject to the approval of the member’s Group if 
applicable).  
• Recommend to the Council (or the Parish Council) that the member be removed from 
being the chair or vice –chair of any Committees or SubCommittee. 
• Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed from the Cabinet, 
or from particular portfolio responsibilities.  
• Recommend to the Council (or the Parish Council) that the member be removed from one 
or more outside appointments to which s/he has been appointed or nominated by the 
Council (or the Parish Council).  
• Instruct the Monitoring Officer to offer training to the member or recommend that the 
Parish Council should do so.  

 
10. Accounts Committee  

The Accounts Committee has delegated power to approve the Council’s statement of accounts.  
 

11. Health and Wellbeing Board 
The Health and Wellbeing Board shall have such powers as are set out in Article 11 of the 
Constitution 
.  

12. Pensions and Pay Discretions Sub-Committee  
The Pensions and Pay Discretions Sub-Committee has delegated powers to determine:  
(i) requests from former employees or their spouses to access their deferred pensions 

on an unreduced or partially reduced basis;  
(ii) cases relating to employer discretions where added years have been awarded under 

Regulations 21, 22 and 25 of the Local Government (Early Termination of 
Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2000 
or preceding regulations;  

Page 105



(iii) discretionary pension issues which are not subject to other delegations set out in 
Part 3 of the Council’s constitution; and  

(iv) requests from employees to extend periods of half and full sick pay 

Page 106



Appendix 3 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR LOCAL CHOICE FUNCTIONS 

 

 

Page 107



 

Page 108



 

 

Page 109



Appendix 4 
 
Attendance Information for Gateshead Council Bodies – 2021/22 
 
Body No of 

Councillors 
Number 
of 
Meetings 

Total for 
100% 
Attendance 

Actual 
Attendance 

% 
Attendance 

 
Council 
 

66 8 528 442 83.7% 

Cabinet 
 

10 11 110 94 85.5% 

Care, Health and 
Wellbeing OSC 
 

18 7 124 76 61.3% 

Corporate Resources 
OSC 
 

18 5 90 62 68.9% 

Families OSC 
 

18 6 108 74 68.5% 

Housing, Communities 
and Healthy 
Communities OSC 

18 7 124 73 58.9% 

Accounts Committee 
 

3 1 3 3 100% 

Appeals Committee 
 

3 10 30 30 100% 

Audit and Standards 
Committee 
 

7 7 49 38 77.6% 

Gateshead Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
 

8* 7 56 43 76.8% 

Licensing Committee 
 

14 1 14 12 85.7% 

Licensing Sub 
Committee 
 

3 8 24 24 100% 

Planning and 
Development Committee 
 

23 13 299 221 73.9% 

Regulatory Committee 
 

14 8 112 62 55.4% 

Rights of Way Committee 
 

7 3 21 16 76.2% 

 

*The councillor membership on the Health and Wellbeing Board was increased from 8 to 10 in 
May 2022. 

Page 110



Appendix 5 
 
Gateshead Council – Councillor Attendance Figures 2021/22 
 

Councillor Expected Present Percentage 

Councillor Angela Douglas 40 35 87.50% 

Councillor Alex Geddes 32 29 90.63% 

Councillor Anne Wheeler 35 14 40.00% 

Councillor Bernadette Oliphant 29 16 55.17% 

Councillor Bill Dick 23 18 78.26% 

Councillor Bob Goldsworthy 36 29 80.56% 

Councillor Brenda Clelland 32 27 84.38% 

Councillor Catherine Davison 16 10 62.50% 

Councillor Catherine Donovan 25 23 92.00% 

Councillor Chris Buckley 23 11 47.83% 

Councillor Christopher Ord 29 21 72.41% 

Councillor Daniel Duggan 21 9 42.86% 

Councillor Dave Bradford 31 26 83.87% 

Councillor Denise Robson 28 19 67.86% 

Councillor Dot Burnett 47 43 91.49% 

Councillor Eileen McMaster 32 25 78.13% 

Councillor Freda Geddes 19 16 84.21% 

Councillor Gary Haley 30 25 83.33% 

Councillor Hazel Weatherley 38 28 73.68% 

Councillor Helen Haran 16 10 62.50% 

Councillor Hugh Kelly 35 33 94.23% 

Councillor Ian Patterson 51 41 80.39% 

Page 111

https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=118&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=139&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=138&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=161&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=171&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=155&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=162&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=165&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=180&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=662&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=146&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=405&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=490&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=792&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=658&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=184&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=663&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=164&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=788&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=152&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=657&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=401&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022


Councillor Expected Present Percentage 

Councillor Jane McCoid 16 16 100% 

Councillor Jennifer Reay 25 20 80.00% 

Councillor Jill Green 29 20 68.97% 

Councillor Jim Turnbull 35 19 54.29% 

Councillor John Adams 27 24 88.89% 

Councillor John Eagle 15 12 80.00% 

Councillor John McElroy 28 27 96.43% 

Councillor Jonathan Mohammed 29 25 86.21% 

Councillor Jonathan Wallace 29 24 82.76% 

Councillor Judith Gibson 23 18 78.26% 

Councillor Judith Turner 28 28 100% 

Councillor Julie Simpson 22 18 81.82% 

Councillor Kathleen McCartney 32 30 93.75% 

Councillor Kathryn Ferdinand 26 11 42.31% 

Councillor Keith Wood 32 16 50.00% 

Councillor Kevin Dodds 27 19 70.37% 

Councillor Kevin McClurey 20 12 60.00% 

Councillor Leigh Kirton 43 40 93.02% 

Councillor Linda Green 33 20 60.61% 

Councillor Lynne Caffrey 51 37 72.55% 

Councillor Malcolm Brain 23 22 95.65% 

Councillor Maria Hall 46 36 78.26% 

Councillor Marilyn Charlton 30 24 80.00% 

Councillor Marilynn Ord 36 32 88.89% 

Councillor Martin Gannon 31 26 83.87% 

Page 112

https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=790&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=710&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=122&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=177&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=174&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=156&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=149&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=793&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=188&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=660&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=791&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=143&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=153&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=168&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=150&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=116&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=659&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=404&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=179&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=157&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=167&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=144&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=142&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=187&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=160&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022


Councillor Expected Present Percentage 

Councillor Maureen Goldsworthy 21 15 71.43% 

Councillor Michael McNestry 30 27 90.00% 

Councillor Paul Diston 15 15 100% 

Councillor Paul Foy 25 9 36.00% 

Councillor Paul McNally 16 7 43.75% 

Councillor Peter Craig 17 13 76.47% 

Councillor Peter Maughan 19 7 36.84% 

Councillor Rachel Mullen 27 20 74.07% 

Councillor Robert Waugh 32 26 81.25% 

Councillor Ron Beadle 39 27 69.23% 

Councillor Rosy Oxberry 27 15 55.56% 

Councillor Sheila Gallagher 26 24 92.31% 

Councillor Sonya Dickie 34 23 67.65% 

Councillor Sonya Hawkins 21 8 38.10% 

Councillor Steve Ronchetti 17 14 82.35% 

Councillor Stuart Green 30 23 76.67% 

Councillor Susan Craig 19 10 52.63% 

Councillor Tom Graham 29 28 96.55% 

Councillor Vicky Anderson 27 23 85.19% 

TOTAL  1,875 1,418 75.63% 
 
Please note: 

• The above attendance figures relate to formal council meetings only and do 
not include the numerous other meetings Councillors attend locally and 
regionally. 

• These figures relate to the period during which there was a notional 
pandemic and Members’ ability to carry out their elected role was impacted 
upon as a result of Covid-19.   

• Where the name appears in green, that person is no longer an Elected 
Member on the Council and was replaced at the local election in May 2022.   

Page 113

https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=117&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=159&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=708&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=121&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=172&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=125&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=170&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=403&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=707&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=186&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=661&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=709&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=173&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=148&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=169&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=181&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=191&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=176&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgAttendance.aspx?UID=711&DR=21%2f05%2f2021%20-%2019%2f05%2f2022


Appendix 6 
 
Experience of Portfolio Holder and Cabinet Member – Councillor John Adams  
 
Councillor Adams was elected on the Council in 2014 and is the current Cabinet Member for 
Housing.  He also works as a special needs teacher in North Tyneside where he teaches 
children on the autistic spectrum who also have learning difficulties. 
 
Councillor Adams was asked to give an account of his workload, the time spent on his 
activities connected to his elected role and his other commitments. 
 
As well as my role as a cabinet member on Gateshead Council, I also work as a teacher in a 
Special Needs school in North Tyneside. I work there on a Monday and a Friday. The rest of 
the week I devote to my duties at Gateshead Council. I do occasionally have time off from 
work for council duties, but since I have reduced my contract to two days a week, this is now 
quite rare. 
  
I would estimate that I spend about 30 hours a week on council duties, this is very much an 
estimate. But it is my best estimate. I often start work in school at 7am, and do not finish at 
the Council until 8 or 9pm at night, and additionally I have events and meetings at the 
weekend. 
  
I am a Cabinet Member, with responsibility for Housing. I would say that this is one of the 
areas where there is a higher than average number of reports which come forward to 
Cabinet and Council meetings. For each report that comes forward I am briefed on its 
contents by the relevant officer, and we discuss the issues and the political implications. This 
can be time consuming. Furthermore, I am aware that as the responsible member I can be 
called upon to answer for any issue which is contained in these reports, and I try to ‘brush 
up’ my knowledge before every meeting and try to anticipate what questions may be asked.  
  
As a Cabinet Member I also feel I need to ‘be across’ all policy areas across the council. I 
am briefed on major issues in a weekly private meeting between senior officers and all 
cabinet members, and I do carefully read all council and cabinet documents as part of my 
role on the Cabinet.  I also have various meetings with officers to discuss housing-related 
matters. I have a regular ‘catch-up’ with the Service Director of Construction Services to 
discuss housing repairs (every two weeks I think). I also have a similar catch-up with the 
Housing Strategy Service Director and the Housing and Neighbourhood Management 
Service Director, but these are slightly less frequent.  I discuss and plan with the senior 
officers how we can achieve the objectives of our Housing Strategy document, and I see my 
role as being an instigator and an initiator to prompt action. I therefore need to be across 
national policy and local feeling. I am also called on to be interviewed by media outlets and 
take part in photo opportunities and so forth. 
  
Gateshead Council work on a ‘portfolio’ system, whereby cabinet members in similar 
portfolio areas are grouped together to provide support for one another. This means that I 
have weekly meetings with the Cabinet members for Transport and Economy. These 
meeting often have to consider a great deal of information, and for example in today’s 
portfolio meeting the agenda pack ran to 177 pages. That isn’t unusual.  
  
I am also involved with other committees on the council. I chair the strategic housing board, 
which also has to consider very important issues and various policy documents (which again 
can be hundreds of pages long). This has become the main driver of policy in housing in the 
council, and so is a responsibility I take very seriously. The Board also have a number of 
task and finish groups in addition to formal committee meetings – for example we have 

Page 114



recently rewritten our lettings and tenancy policies, and these were discussed and important 
issues teased out in a number of these extra meetings.  
 
I am also on what is called the ‘Ukrainian Taskforce’ which was set up to supervise the 
council’s response to the Homes for Ukraine scheme but now has developed and discusses 
all issues connected to what we do on refugees and asylum seekers.  
 
I am the chair of LearningSkills, which meets every two months (although we have extra 
monitoring visits) and is the quasi-governing body for the council’s adult and community 
learning work. This includes pottery and language classes in local community centres, 
apprenticeships for people who did not achieve academically at school, provision for post-18 
students with profound learning difficulties, and much else. It is one of the largest in the 
country, success rates are well above the national average, and has a budget of over £4 
million.  
 
There are many other council committees I am on – I chair the Chopwell Plan, I am 
Secretary of the Labour Group, I represent the Council on a local housing association board 
(Keelman Homes), I am on the finance portfolio, I am on a committee that oversees the 
Gateshead Energy Company, I am on a committee that oversees the Gateshead 
Regeneration Partnership, I attend partnership meetings between our trade unions and the 
cabinet, etc. 
  
In my ward, I am on the board of the St Chad’s Community Project, I attend partnership 
meetings concerning my local ward and I am on the governing bodies of two local schools, I 
am also involved in a local environment group (Love Your Avenues) and organise local litter-
picks. For each of these I might attend committee meetings, which can have substantial 
papers to read in advance, but I also go on monitoring meetings, site visits, open days and 
so forth. I also have to meet up with other organisations and voluntary sector organisations 
that are active in my ward.  
 
I receive a reasonable amount of casework from residents in my wards, normally on issues 
in private rented housing or waste fly-tipping and street litter. For each enquiry I need to draft 
a response, and often need to liaise with officers to take things further. 
 
I am Treasurer of the local Labour Party, and often run door-knocking sessions and 
leafletting sessions in my ward, and I support colleagues in other wards. This happens every 
other weekend and a couple of times during the week. I am also involved in the national 
network of Labour Councillors and am on the Exec for the regional Labour Party Housing 
Group. While these are not council activities per se, I would not be involved in some of them, 
and certainly not as much, if I was not a councillor. I have not included these activities within 
the 30 hours a week envelope I have estimated. 
 
 
 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

26 January 2023 
 

CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2023/24 
 
 

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the calendar of meetings for 

2023/24. 
 

2. The calendar of meetings assists in the effective planning of the consideration 
of Council business and with the preparation of the Cabinet’s schedule of 
decisions. 
 

3. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report  
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
4. It is recommended that Council: 
 

(i) Approve the calendar of meetings 2023/24; 
 

(ii) Agree that, as far as possible, meetings should not be held during 
school holidays; and  

 
(iii) Authorise the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance, 

following consultation with the appropriate Chairs, to make any 
necessary amendments to the calendar of meetings. 

 
 
 

 

Page 117

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

      REPORT TO CABINET 
   24 January 2023 
 

TITLE OF REPORT: Calendar of Meetings 2023/24  
 
REPORT OF:  Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and  
    Governance 
 
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
1. This report sets out the proposed calendar of meetings for 2023/24. 

 
Background  
 
2. Every year a calendar of meetings is drawn up for the Council’s main decision 

making bodies and overview and scrutiny committees for the following municipal 
year. The calendar of meetings assists in the effective planning of the 
consideration of Council business and with the preparation of the Cabinet’s 
schedule of decisions.  
 

3. A draft calendar of meetings has been prepared for 2023/24 and this is attached  at 
Appendix 2.  
 

Proposal  
 
4. It is proposed that the Cabinet agree the calendar of meetings 2023/24 (attached at 

appendix 2) and that it be forwarded to Council for approval. 
 

5. Any proposed changes to the calendar of meetings will be agreed with the 
appropriate Chairs. 

 
Recommendations 
 
6. The Cabinet is requested to recommend Council to: 
 

(i) approve the calendar of meetings 2023/24;  
 
(ii) agree that, as far as possible, meetings should not be held during school 

holidays; and 
 

(iii) authorise the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance, 
following consultation with the appropriate Chairs, to make any necessary 
amendments to the calendar of meetings. 

  
For the following reason: 

 
 To assist in the preparation of the Cabinet’s schedule of decisions and to allow 
 councillors and officers to plan commitments in their diaries. 
 
 
CONTACT:    Mike Aynsley extension 2128  
 Page 119



 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 Policy Context  
 

1. Preparing a calendar of meetings for the municipal year enables effective planning 
of Council business and preparation of the Cabinet’s schedule of decisions; and 
supports delivery of the Thrive Agenda.  
 

 Background 
 

2. The calendar of meetings has been prepared on the following basis: 
 

• As far as possible, meetings will not be held during school holidays. 
 
• Eight Council meetings, including the annual meeting and special meeting to 

consider the budget. 
 
• Meetings of the Cabinet to take place once a month with breaks during school 

holiday periods. Additional meetings of the Cabinet to be arranged, if required. 
 

• Meetings of the Planning and Development Committee to be held every four 
weeks. There will be a longer gap over the Christmas holiday period. 

 
• Meetings of the Regulatory Committee to be held on a monthly basis.  
 
• Two meetings of the Licensing Committee per annum. These will be held 

immediately after meetings of the Regulatory Committee. Meetings of the 
Licensing Sub Committee will be arranged on an ad hoc basis. 

 
• Three meetings of the Rights of Way Committee per annum. 

 
• Seven meetings of the Audit and Standards Committee per annum. 
 
• One meeting of the Accounts Committee per annum. 

 
• Overview and Scrutiny Committees to be held every six weeks.  

 
• Meetings of the Personnel Appeals Committee to be held on a monthly basis 

with breaks during school holiday periods. The Pensions and Pay Discretions 
Sub Committee will meet on a quarterly basis. 

 
• Health and Wellbeing Board to be held every six weeks. 
 
• Four meetings of the Corporate Parenting Board. 

 
3. The Councillor Support and Development Group has previously agreed that there 

should be a guiding principle that most of the Council’s committees and OSCs 
should have at least one evening meeting per year starting at 5.30pm and those 
meetings should have a suggested maximum duration of no more than two hours.  
 

Page 120



 

4. Planning and Development Committee will continue to have some 6.00pm starts, 
the Audit and Standards Committee will meet at 4.00pm and the Rights of Way 
Committee will meet at 4.30pm. 
 

5. Seminars and meetings of the Corporate Advisory Group will be held at either 
2.00pm or 5.30pm. 
 

6. If Chairs wish to change the date of the meetings starting at the later time to 
another date then this will be accommodated where possible. 
 

7. The Council has previously agreed that meetings should not be held in school 
holidays, as far as possible. There are exceptions to this principle, such as Planning 
and Development, Regulatory, and Audit and Standards Committees. It is proposed 
that this principle should continue to be adopted, except for urgent meetings.  

 
8. It is proposed that the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance 

should be authorised, following consultation with the appropriate Chairs, to make 
any necessary amendments to the calendar of meetings.  

 
 Consultation 
 

9. The Leader of the Council has been consulted on the calendar of meetings.  
 
 Alternative Options 
 

10. No other options have been considered. 
 
 Implications of Recommended Option  
 

11. Resources 
a) Financial Implications - The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital 

confirms that there are no financial implications arising from this report. 
b) Human Resources Implications – There are no human resources 

implications arising from this report. 
c) Property Implications – There are no property implications arising from this 

report. 
 

12. Risk Management Implication - There are no risk management implications 
arising from the recommended option. 

 
13. Equality and Diversity Implications - There are no equality and diversity 

implications arising from the recommended option. 
 

14. Crime and Disorder Implications - There are no crime and disorder implications 
arising from the recommended option. 

 
15. Health Implications – There are no health implications arising from the 

recommended option. 
 

16. Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - There are no climate 
emergency or sustainability implications arising from the recommended option. 

 

Page 121



 

17. Human Rights Implications - There are no human rights implications arising from 
the recommended option. 

 
18. Ward Implications - There are no ward implications arising from the recommended 

option. 
 
19. Background Information - The calendar of meetings approved for the current 

municipal year.  
 

Page 122



          

               APPENDIX 2 
 

Calendar of Meetings 2023/24 
MAY 2023 

DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON 1 BANK HOLIDAY  8 BANK HOLIDAY  15   22 
LABOUR GROUP 
 
LID DEM GROUP 

6.00 
 

6.00 
29 BANK HOLIDAY  

TUE 2   9   16   23 

CABINET 
 
CORPORATE 
PARENTING BOARD 

10.00 
 

2.00 
 

30   

WED 3   10 
LABOUR GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

6.00 
 

6.00 
17 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

10.00 
 
 
 

6.00 

24   31   

THU 4 LOCAL ELECTIONS  11 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 

10.00 18   25 COUNCIL  2.30    

FRI 5   12   19 ANNUAL COUNCIL 
MEETING 2.30 26      

 
 
 

P
age 123



          

 
 

JUNE 2023 
DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON    5   12 

CORPORATE 
RESOURCES OSC 
 
 

10.00 
 
 
 

19 

HOUSING, 
ENVIRONMENT AND 
HEALTHY 
COMMUNITIES OSC 
 
LABOUR GROUP 

1.30 
 
 
 
 
6.00 

26   

TUE    6 REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE 1.30 13 CARE, HEALTH AND 

WELLBEING OSC 
1.30 

 20 

CABINET 
 
AUDIT AND 
STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 
 

 
10.00 

 
 

4.00 
 
 
 

27   

WED    7 SEMINAR 2.00 14 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

6.00 
 21 CORPORATE 

ADVISORY GROUP 5.30 28 SEMINAR 5.30 

THU 1   8 

 
 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 
PERSONNEL 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 
 

10.00 
 
 
 
 

2.00 
 
 

15 FAMILIES OSC 1.30 22   29 

PENSIONS AND PAY 
SUB COMMITTEE 
 
 

10.00 
 
 

 

FRI 2   9 HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 10.00 16   23   30   

 
 
 

P
age 124



          

 
 

JULY 2023 
DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON 3   10   17 

RIGHTS OF WAY 
COMMITTEE 
 
LABOUR GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

4.30 
 
 

6.00 
 

6.00 

24   31  

 
 
 
 

TUE 4   11 REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE 5.30 18 CABINET  10.00 25 

AUDIT AND 
STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 

 

4.00    

WED 5 SEMINAR 2.00 12 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

10.00 
 
 
 

6.00 

19 CORPORATE 
ADVISORY GROUP 2.00 26      

THU 6 

 
 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 
 
 
 

10.00 
 
 
 
 
 

13 

PERSONNEL 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 

2.00 
 
 
 

20 COUNCIL 2.30 27      

FRI 7   14   21 HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 

10.00 
 28      

 
 
 
 

P
age 125



          

 
 
 

AUGUST 2023 
DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON    7   14   21   28 BANK HOLIDAY  

TUE 1   8 REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE 1.30 15   22   29   

WED 2   9 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

10.00 
 
 

16   23   30   

THU 3 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 

10.00 
 
 
   

10   17   24   31   

FRI 4   11   18   25      

 
 
 
 

P
age 126



          

 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 2023 
DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON    4 

CORPORATE 
RESOURCES OSC 
 
 

 
10.00 

 
 
 
 

11 

HOUSING, 
ENVIRONMENT AND 
HEALTHY 
COMMUNITIES OSC 
 
 

1.30 
 
 
 
 
 

18 
LABOUR GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

6.00 
 

6.00 
25   

TUE    5 

REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE 
FOLLOWED BY 
LICENSING 
COMMITTEE 
 

1.30 
 
 
 
 
 

12 CARE, HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING OSC 

5.30 
 19 

CABINET 
 
CORPORATE 
PARENTING BAORD 

10.00 
 

2.00 
 

26 

AUDIT AND 
STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 
 

4.00 
 
 
 

WED    6 

 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 
SEMINAR 
 
 

 
 

10.00 
 
 
 

2.00 
 
 

13 

CORPORATE 
ADVISORY GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 
 

2.00 
 
 
6.00 
 

20 SEMINAR 5.30 27   

THU  

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 

10.00 
 
 
 
 

7 

PERSONNEL 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 
 
FAMILIES OSC 
 

10.00 
 
 
 
 

1.30 
 

14   21 COUNCIL 2.30 28 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 
ACCOUNTS 
COMMITTEE 

 
10.00 

 
 
 
 

2.00 
 
 

FRI 1   8 HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 10.00 15   22   29   

 
 
 
 

P
age 127



          

 
 

 
OCTOBER 2023 

DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON 2   9   16 
CORPORATE 
RESOURCES OSC 
 

 
 
10.00 
 
 
 
 

23 

HOUSING, 
ENVIRONMENT AND 
HEALTHY 
COMMUNITIES OSC 
 
LABOUR GROUP  

1.30 
 
 
 
 

6.00 

30   

TUE 3 REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE  1.30 10   17   24 

CABINET 
 
CARE, HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING OSC 
 

 

 
10.00 

 
1.30 

 
 
 
 

31 

AUDIT AND 
STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 
 

4.00 
 
 
 

WED 4 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

6.00 
 
 
 

11 SEMINAR 2.00 18 CORPORATE 
ADVISORY GROUP 5.30 25 SEMINAR 5.30    

THU 5 

PERSONNEL 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 

10.00 12 

PENSIONS AND PAY 
SUB COMMITTEE 
 
 

10.00 
 
 

 

19 FAMILIES OSC 5.30 26 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 

10.00 
 
 
 
 

   

FRI 6   13   20 HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 10.00 27      

 
 

 

P
age 128



          

NOVEMBER 2023 
DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON    6   13   20 

RIGHTS OF WAY 
COMMITTEE 
 
LABOUR GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

4.30 
 
 

6.00 
 

6.00 

27 
CORPORATE 
RESOURCES OSC 
 

 
10.00 

 
 
 

TUE    7 REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE 1.30 14   21 CABINET 

 
10.00 

 28   

WED 1 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

10.00 
 
 
 

8 SEMINAR 2.00 15 

 
CORPORATE 
ADVISORY GROUP 
  
LIB DEM GROUP 
 

2.00 
 
 
6.00 

22 SEMINAR 5.30 29   

THU 2   9 

PERSONNEL 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 

10.00 
 
 
 

16   23 COUNCIL 2.30 30 

 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 
FAMILIES OSC 

 
10.00 

 
 
 
 

1.30 

FRI 3   10   17   24      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 129



          

DECEMBER 2023 
DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON    4 

HOUSING, 
ENVIRONMENT AND 
HEALTHY 
COMMUNITIES OSC 
 

1.30 
 
 
 
 

11   18 LABOUR GROUP 6.00 25 BANK HOLIDAY  

TUE    5 CARE, HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING OSC 1.30 12 REGULATORY 

COMMITTEE 1.30 19 

CABINET 
 
CORPORATE 
PARENTING BOARD 

 
 

10.00 
 
 

2.00 
 
 

26 BANK HOLIDAY  

WED    6 

 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 
CORPORATE 
ADVISORY GROUP 

10.00 
 
 
 
5.30 

13 SEMINAR 2.00 20   27   

THU    7 

PERSONNEL 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 

10.00 
 
 
 

14   21   28   

FRI 1 HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 10.00 8   15   22   29   

 
 
  

P
age 130



          

 
 

JANUARY 2024 
DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON 1 BANK HOLIDAY  8   15   22 

CORPORATE 
RESOURCES OSC 
 
LABOUR GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

10.00 
 
 

6.00 
 

6.00 

29 

HOUSING, 
ENVIRONMENT AND 
HEALTHY 
COMMUNITIES OSC 
 

1.30 

TUE 2   9   16 REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE 1.30 23 

 
CABINET 
 
CARE, HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING OSC 
 

 
10.00 
 
1.30 
 
 

30 

 
AUDIT AND 
STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 
 

 
4.00 

 
 
 

WED 3   10 SEMINAR 2.00 17 

CORPORATE 
ADVISORY GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

2.00 
 
 

6.00 

24 

 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 
SEMINAR 

 
10.00 
 
 
 
5.30 

31 CORPORATE 
ADVISORY GROUP 

5.30 
 

THU 4   11 

PERSONNEL 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 

10.00 
 18 

 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 
FAMILIES OSC 

 
10.00 

 
 
 
 

1.30 

25 

PENSIONS AND PAY 
SUB COMMITTEE 
 
COUNCIL 

10.00 
 
 
2.30 

   

FRI 5   12   19   26 HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 10.00    

 
  

P
age 131



          

 
 

FEBRUARY 2024 
DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON    5 LABOUR GROUP 6.00 12 LABOUR GROUP 
 
6.00 
 

19 
LABOUR GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

6.00 
 

6.00 
26   

TUE    6 CORPORATE 
ADVISORY GROUP 5.30 13 REGULATORY 

COMMITTEE 1.30 20 
CABINET 
 
 

10.00 
 
 

27   

WED    7 SEMINAR 5.30 14 
SEMINAR 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

2.00 
 

6.00 
21 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 

 

6.00 
 
 
 

28   

THU 1   8 

PERSONNEL 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 

10.00 
 
 
 

15 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 

10.00 
 
 
 
 

22 COUNCIL 2.30 29   

FRI 2   9   16   23      

 
 
  

P
age 132



          

 
MARCH 2024 

DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON    4 
CORPORATE 
RESOURCES OSC 
 

5.30 
 
 

11 

 
HOUSING, 
ENVIRONMENT AND 
HEALTHY 
COMMUNITIES OSC 

 

 
5.30 

 
 
 
 

18 

RIGHTS OF WAY 
COMMITTEE 
 
LABOUR GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

4.30 
 
 

6.00 
 

6.00 

25   

TUE    5 

 
CORPORATE 
PARENTING BOARD 
 
AUDIT AND 
STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 
 

 
2.00 

 
 

4.00 
 
 
 

12 
CARE, HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING OSC 
 

1.30 
 
 

19 

CABINET 
 
REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE 

10.00 
 

1.30 
 

26   

WED    6 SEMINAR 2.00 13 

CORPORATE 
ADVISORY GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 
 
 

2.00 
 
 

6.00 
 
 

20 

 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 
 

 
10.00 

 
 
 
 

27 SEMINAR 5.30 

THU    7 FAMILIES OSC 1.30 14 

 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 
PERSONNEL 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 

 
10.00 

 
 
 
 

2.00 
 
 
 

21 COUNCIL 2.30 28   

FRI 1   8 HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 10.00 15   22   29 BANK HOLIDAY  

 
  

P
age 133



          

 
APRIL 2024 

DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON 1 BANK HOLIDAY  8   15 

CORPORATE 
RESOURCES OSC 
 
LABOUR GROUP 

10.00 
 
 
6.00 

22 

HOUSING, 
ENVIRONMENT AND 
HEALTHY 
COMMUNITIES OSC 
 
 

1.30 
 
 
 
 
 

29   

TUE 2   9   16 

CABINET 
 
CARE, HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING OSC 
 

10.00 
 
1.30 
 
 

23   30   

WED 3   10   17 

 
REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE 
FOLLOWED BY 
LICENSING 
COMMITTEE 
 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

 
1.30 

 
 
 
 
 

6.00 
 
 
 

24      

THU 4   11 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 
 

10.00 
 
 
 
 

18 

PERSONNEL 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 
FAMILIES OSC 

 

10.00 
 
 
1.30 
 

25 

PENSIONS AND PAY 
SUB COMMITTEE 
 
AUDIT AND 
STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 
 

10.00 
 
 

4.00 
 
 
 

   

FRI 5   12   19   26 HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 10.00    

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 134



          

 
MAY 2024 

DAY DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME DATE  TIME 

MON    6 BANK HOLIDAY  13   20 
LABOUR GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

6.00 
 

6.00 
27  BANK HOLIDAY  

TUE    7   14   21 CABINET 10.00 28   

WED 1   8 
LABOUR GROUP 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

6.00 
 

6.00 
15 

 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 
LIB DEM GROUP 

 
10.00 

 
 
 

6.00 

22   29   

THU 2 LOCAL ELECTIONS  9 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE – SITE 
VISIT 

 

10.00 
 
 
 
 

16   23 COUNCIL  2.30 30   

FRI 3   10   17 ANNUAL COUNCIL 
MEETING 

2.30 
 24   31   

 
 
 

P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

26 January 2023 
 

REVENUE BUDGET – THIRD QUARTER REVIEW 2022/23 
 
 

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to set out the latest monitoring position on the 

2022/23 revenue budget at the end of the third quarter and recommend Council 
to approve a budget virement to increase the contingency budget. 

 
2. Council agreed the original revenue budget for 2022/23 on 24 February 2022, 

this was set at £254.3m. 
 

3. A budget virement of £0.750 million from Capital Financing budget into 
contingency is proposed, to ensure that appropriate costs can be considered for 
contingency funding. 

 
4. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report  

including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating their 
recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
5. It is recommended that Council approves a budget virement into contingency as 

set out in the attached report. 
 

Page 137

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 

TITLE OF REPORT:  Revenue Budget – Third Quarter Review 2022/23 
 
REPORT OF:   Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital 
 
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
1. This report sets out the latest monitoring position on the 2022/23 revenue budget at 

the end of the third quarter. Cabinet is asked to note the contents of the report and 
agree to recommend to Council a budget virement to increase the contingency budget.   

 
Background  
 
2. As part of the Council’s budget and policy framework Cabinet receives quarterly 

reports on the agreed revenue budget so that any variances can be identified and 
addressed at appropriate pace with Councillor oversight. 
 

3. Council agreed the revenue budget for 2022/23 on 24 February 2022. This was set at 
£254.3 million. The position includes £5.8 million of council financing from the Budget 
Sustainability Reserve to allow time for a planned schedule of cuts and efficiencies. 
  

4. Council agreed an HRA balanced budget of £82.3 million without use of the reserve in 
2022/23. At the second quarter this was reviewed to include £3m use of reserves. 

 
Proposal  
 
5. The projected outturn now indicates that the original revenue budget set can be 

delivered. The projected revenue outturn for 2022/23 at the third quarter is £253.2m 
compared to the budget of £254.3m, this is £1.1m within budget which alongside a 
£0.2m reduction in financing income result in an overall position of £0.9m within 
budget. 
 

6. This is an improved position on quarter two which estimated a £5.4 million overspend. 
The position at the third quarter reflects the organisation wide drive to take action in 
year to manage the position back within budget. This included a pause on recruitment 
and essential spend only in most areas as well as a review to maximise income and 
funding. This has resulted in positive movements across the Groups. 

 
7. The majority of positive movements are considered one off in nature therefore they will 

not result in an ongoing budget reduction into next year. The exception to this is the 
investment income budget that is considered achievable next year and therefore has 
been included in the budget options for 2023/24. 
 

8. The intention remains to deliver the general fund revenue outturn within the original 
budget to support medium term financial sustainability. Active budget management 
and scrutiny will continue to take place in order to help achieve this outcome. 

 
 
 

   
REPORT TO CABINET

   24 January 2023

Page 139



 

9. The third quarter review shows that the contingency budgets are projected to exceed 
budget. As the 2022 pay award has now been agreed work is ongoing to determine 
the final cost and allocate the budget into groups and services. Due to several other 
pending issues as it stands the contingency will potentially be over committed. Cabinet 
is asked to recommend to Council a budget virement of £0.750 million from Capital 
Financing budget into contingency to ensure that appropriate costs can be considered 
for contingency funding. The proposed increase in contingency will be met from within 
the existing budget. 
 

Housing Revenue Account 
 
10. At the third quarter review the HRA budget is projected to overspend by £2.8 million 

which represents an increase in the use of reserves required. The main overspends 
are in relation to management and supervision (£1.1million) and repairs and 
maintenance (£0.9million).  

 
Recommendations 
 
11. It is recommended that Cabinet 
 

i. notes the Council’s revenue expenditure position at the end of the third quarter, 
as set out in Appendix 1 and 2  

ii. recommends that Council approve a budget virement into contingency as set out 
in the report.  
 

 For the following reasons: 
 
 To contribute to sound financial management and the long-term financial 
 sustainability of the Council. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT:  Darren Collins                   Extension:  3582  
  
 
 
 

Page 140



 

 
 
 APPENDIX 1 
 
 Policy Context  
 
1. This report meets the standards required to comply with the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 which represent financial management good practice, recommend 
that councillors should receive regular reports on performance against revenue and 
capital budgets. 
 

2. It is also consistent with the Council’s objectives of making Gateshead a place where 
everyone thrives by assisting in ensuring a sustainable financial position for the long 
term. 
 

 Background 
 
3. This report sets out the latest budget monitoring position on the 2022/23 revenue 

budget at the end of the third quarter and projects spending and income to the end 
of the financial year. 

 
4. Appendix 2 details the budget for 2022/23 compared to an assessment of the 

projected outturn for the year.  
 
5. Budget savings of £0.1m for 2020/21 in relation to a contract review have not been 

achieved to date and work is progressing to identify these.  £8.1m of savings were 
agreed for 2021/22 along with budget mitigation. Any undelivered savings will 
contribute towards budget pressures in 2023/24. Progress will be closely monitored 
and those requiring further consultation and engagement will be the subject of future 
reports to Cabinet.  

 
 Variations 
 
6. Whilst the overall budget is being managed there are still a number of key financial 

challenges and items to note at the third quarter these include; 
 

• Children’s social care Significant challenges resulting in a projected £3.5m 
budget overspend this is in relation to children’s placement related costs; 

• Adult Social Care shows significant positive movement following work on 
identifying eligible Continuing Health Care (CHC) and hospital discharge funding 
to meet costs. 

• Home to school transport pressure resulting in a £0.8m overspend on budget 
which is a £0.4m movement on the last period. This is being partly hidden by 
underspend elsewhere in the Service. 

• Leisure Services projecting a £1.7m overspend. The position includes 
unachieved income budgets (£1.3m), unachieved savings (£0.6m) and utilities 
cost pressures (£0.7m). 

• Property & Assets - Building Management - £0.7m utilities pressure offset by 
underspends. In the overall position is a further one off Business Rate refund of 
(£0.5m) for the Civic Centre. 

 
 
 

Page 141



 

• Highways and Waste Projected outturn is £2.3m under budget the majority of 
underspend is in relation to Waste and Traded services. This is due to a one off 
reduction (£0.5m) in Gateshead PFI payments to Suez relating to an Energy 
Refund for 21/22, alongside over achievement of traded and fees and charges 
income. The positive movement reflects the forecasted underspend on Materials 
Recycling Facility Contract of £1m. 

• Resources and Digital – School Meals and catering have now moved group 
following a transfer in responsibilities. Projections reflect a 25% increase on 
catering supplies causing a £1m budget impact this is currently offset by increased 
income and staffing vacancies slippage.  

• I.T Services Whilst it appears IT is overspent the Service position is actually an 
underspend of £0.3m. The position reflects the intention to charge the capital 
spend on IT equipment supporting hybrid working to the Service which will then 
be met from pandemic funding.  

• Contingencies are projected to exceed budget. As the 2022 pay award has now 
been agreed work is ongoing to determine the final cost and allocate the budget 
into groups and services. Due to several other pending issues as it stands the 
contingency will potentially be over committed by the year end. 
 

Housing Revenue Account  
 
7. At the third quarter review the HRA budget is projected to overspend by £2.8m which 

represents an increase in the use of reserves required. The main overspends are in 
relation to management and supervision (£1.1m) and repairs and maintenance 
(£0.9m).  

 
Summary 
 
8. The projected third quarter position is after the application of £29.2m of budgeted 

reserves in line with the usage agreed as part of 2022/23 budget.  
 

9. General COVID grant funding of £8.9m is forecast to be used in 2022/23 and the 
remainder of the Contain Management Outbreak Funding is forecast to be spent in 
year (£4.0m). Permission to carry forward this grant into 2023 has recently been given 
therefore a review of use in the final quarter will take place. 
 

10. The medium-term position assumes all prior year budget savings will be achieved 
and overspends addressed or mitigated. 

 
 Consultation 
  
11. The Leader of the Council has been consulted on this report. 

 
 Alternative Options 
 
12. There are no alternative options proposed. 
 
 Implications of Recommended Option  
 
13. Resources: 
 

a) Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital 
confirms these are as set out in the report and appendices. 

 

Page 142



 

b) Human Resources Implications – There are no direct Human Resource 
implications as a consequence of this report. Budget savings proposals will be 
subject to separate reporting. 

 
c) Property Implications - There are no direct property implications as a 

consequence of this report. Budget savings proposals will be subject to 
separate reporting. 

 
14. Risk Management Implication -   

Regular budget monitoring and the associated action planning that arise from this 
activity assists in reducing the risk of the Council overspending its agreed budget. 
This enables effective financial planning which allows the Council to deploy resources 
in line with priorities. 

 
15. Equality and Diversity Implications - Nil 
 
16. Crime and Disorder Implications – Nil 
 
17. Health Implications - Nil 
 
18. Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - Nil 
 
19. Human Rights Implications - Nil 
 
20. Ward Implications - Revenue spending supports the delivery of services across the 

whole of Gateshead.                         
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 143



 

 

Appendix 2- Revenue Monitoring Summary 2022/23
Group / Service Budget Projected 

Outturn Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000
Office of the Chief Executive 871 924 53

Integrated Adults and Social Care Services
Adult Social Care 73,893 74,037 144
Quality Assurance & Commissioning 5,770 5,819 49

Children's Social Care and Lifelong Learning
Children's Social Care 41,243 44,814 3,571
Education, Schools and Inclusion 4,843 5,284 4410
Public Health & Wellbeing
Public Health 17,225 17,225 0
Wellbeing 2,861 4,694 1,833

Housing, Environment & Healthy Communities
Gateshead Construction Services 345 445 100
Property & Assets 2,710 2,003 (707)
Locality Services & Housing 1,052 1,014 (38)
Strategic Services & Residential Growth 1,091 1,275 184
Highways and Waste 17,034 14,691 (2,343)
Environment & Fleet Management 2,931 2,760 (171)

Economy, Innovation and Growth
Business, Employment & Skills 1,281 980 (301)
Planning Policy, Climate Change and Strategic Transport 3,274 3,709 435
Major Projects (593) (394) 199

Corporate Services & Governance
Legal & Democratic Services 4,043 4,163 120
Human Resources & Workforce Development 1,686 1,561 (125)
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement 591 563 (28)
Public Service Reform 396 222 (174)
Resources and Digital
Financial Management 2,191 2,424 233
Customer Experience & Digital 3,459 3,486 27
Housing Benefits 200 200 0
IT 4,148 4,683 535
Commercialisation and Improvement 2,286 2,092 (194)
School Meals & Catering 380 626 246

Other Services & Contingencies 19,106 16,466 (2,640)
Capital Financing Costs 33,866 31,671 (2,195)
Traded & Investment Income (3,710) (4,099) (389)
Expenditure Passed outside the General Fund (1,855) (1,855) 0
Levies 11,686 11,686 0

NET BUDGET 254,304 253,169 (1,135)
Financed By
Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA) (56,907) (56,251) 656
Other Grants (47,235) (47,629) (394)
Public Health (17,225) (17,225) 0
Council Tax (103,856) (103,856) 0
Collection Fund Deficit 159 159 0
Earmarked Reserves - to support retained rates (12,675) (12,675) 0
Earmarked Reserves (16,565) (16,565) 0
TOTAL FUNDING (254,304) (254,042) 262

COUNCIL OUTTURN (Surplus) / Deficit 0 (873) (873)

Page 144



 

 
  COUNCIL MEETING 

26 January 2023 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 
2022/23 – THIRD QUARTER REVIEW 

 
 

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to set out the latest position on the 

2022/23 Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators at the end of the 
third quarter to 31 December 2022. The report assesses reasons for 
the variances from the approved programme and details the proposed 
financing of the capital programme. In addition, the report considers the 
impact of CIPFA’s Prudential Code on the capital programme and the 
monitoring of performance against the statutory Prudential Indicators. 
 

2. The original budget for the capital programme for 2022/23, as agreed 
by Council on 24 February 2022, totalled £146.7m, which was reduced 
to £103.2m at the first quarter review and to £85.4m at the second 
quarter to accommodate re-profiling into future years. The third quarter 
review of progress has resulted in a revised estimate for capital 
expenditure of £80.4m by the year end, £60.4m General Fund and 
£20.0m HRA. 
 

3. CIPFA’s Prudential Code advises the regular monitoring of performance 
against the prudential indicators which regulate borrowing and 
investment. Targets and limits for the prudential indicators for 2022/23 
were agreed at Council on 24 February 2022 and borrowing and 
investment levels have remained within these limits. 

 
4. The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report  

including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating 
their recommendation. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
5. It is recommended that Council: 
 

(i) Approves the revision to the capital programme; 
 

(ii) Approves the financing of the revised programme; and 
 

(iii)  notes that Cabinet confirms that the capital expenditure and 
capital financing requirement indicators have been revised in line 
with the revised budget and that none of the approved Prudential 
Indicators set for 2022/23 have been breached. 

 

Page 145

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 of 4  
 

 REPORT TO CABINET 
 24 January 2023   
 

TITLE OF REPORT:  Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2022/23 
– Third Quarter Review   

 
REPORT OF:  Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital    
 
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
1. This report sets out the latest position on the 2022/23 Capital Programme and 

Prudential Indicators at the end of the third quarter to 31 December 2022. The 
report assesses reasons for the variances from the approved programme and 
details the proposed financing of the capital programme. In addition, the report 
considers the impact of CIPFA’s Prudential Code on the capital programme and 
the monitoring of performance against the statutory Prudential Indicators.  
 

Background  
 
2.  The original budget for the capital programme for 2022/23, as agreed by Council 

on 24 February 2022, totalled £146.7m. This was reduced to £103.2m at the first 
quarter review and to £85.4m at the second quarter review to accommodate re-
profiling to future years. The third quarter review of progress has resulted in a 
revised estimate for capital expenditure of £80.4m by the year end, £60.4m 
General Fund and £20.0m HRA. 

 
3. The proposed reduction in the capital programme at the third quarter 

comprises of the following movements: 
 £m 
Additional capital expenditure 1.387 
Reduction of planned expenditure (0.604) 
Re-profiling of capital expenditure to future years (5.743) 
Total Variance (4.960) 
  

4. The proposed increase of £1.387m relates largely to the Transforming Cities 
(Tranche 2) project where three cycleway improvement schemes have been 
developed and the business cases submitted to the North East Joint Transport 
Committee to access the Transforming Cities Grant funding. 

  
5. The proposed reduction of £0.604m relates largely to the Gateshead Regeneration 

Partnership Urban Core - Exemplar Neighbourhood project where financing of the 
scheme has been reprofiled between grant and prudential borrowing resulting in a 
reduced borrowing requirement for this financial year.  

 
6. The re-profiling of expenditure to future years of £5.743m relates mainly to the 

reprofiling of the remaining loan balance for the Gateshead Energy Company. 
 
 

Page 147



 2 of 4  
 

Proposal  
 
7. The report identifies planned capital expenditure of £80.4m for the 2022/23 

financial year. The expected resources required to fund the Capital 
Programme are as follows: 

       £m 
Prudential Borrowing 44.308     
Projected Capital Receipts       0.750 
Capital Grants and Contributions 15.376 
Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) 
Capital Grants and Contributions (HRA) 

    16.119 
      0.752 

Right to Buy Receipts (HRA)       3.127 
Total Capital Programme   80.432 

 
8. CIPFA’s Prudential Code advises the regular monitoring of performance against 

the prudential indicators which regulate borrowing and investment. Targets and 
limits for the prudential indicators for 2022/23 were agreed at Council on 25 
February 2022 and borrowing and investment levels have remained within these 
limits.  Performance against the indicators for 2022/23 is set out in Appendix 5.  

 
Recommendations 
 
9. It is recommended that  
 

(i) Cabinet recommends to Council the revision to the capital programme.  
(ii) Cabinet recommends to Council the financing of the revised programme. 
(iii) Cabinet confirms to Council that the capital expenditure and capital 

financing requirement indicators have been revised in line with the revised 
budget and that none of the approved Prudential Indicators set for 
2022/23 have been breached. 

 
 For the following reasons: 
 

(i) To ensure the optimum use of the Council’s capital resources in 2022/23 
(ii) To accommodate changes to the Council’s in-year capital expenditure 

plans. 
(iii) To ensure performance has been assessed against approved Prudential 

Limits. 
  
 
 
 
 
CONTACT:   Clare Tait                  extension:  3417  
 

Page 148



 3 of 4  
 

 
          APPENDIX 1 
 
 Policy Context  
 
1. The proposals within this report are consistent with the objectives contained within 

the Council’s corporate Capital Strategy and will contribute to achieving the 
objectives set out by the Council’s Thrive Agenda.  The financial implications of the 
capital programme are incorporated within the Council’s Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS). 

 
 Background 
 
2. The original budget for the capital programme for 2022/23, as agreed by Council on 

22 February 2022, totalled £146.7m which decreased to £103.2m at the first quarter 
review, then £85.4m at the second quarter review. 
 

3. The third quarter review has reprofiled the capital programme to reflect in year 
changes within capital schemes, resulting in a revised estimate of £80.4m.  

 
4. All variations contributing to the £5m reduction since the quarter two review 

are detailed in Appendix 2. 
 

5. Appendix 3 summarises the original budget and forecasted year end 
positions by Corporate Priority.  The budget, projected year end positions 
and comments on the progress of each scheme are detailed in Appendix 4. 
 

6. The prudential code sets out a range of Prudential Indicators that were 
agreed by Council on the 25 February 2022.  Performance against the 
indicators for 2022/23 is set out in Appendix 5. 

 
 Consultation 
 
7. The Leader of the Council has been consulted on this report. 
 
 Alternative Options 
 
8. The proposed financing arrangements are the best available in order to ensure the 

optimum use of the Council’s capital resources in 2022/23. 
 
 Implications of Recommended Option  
 
9. Resources: 
 

a) Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital 
confirms that the financial implications are as set out in the report. 

 
b) Human Resources Implications – There are no human resources 

implications arising from this report. 
 

c) Property Implications - There are no direct property implications arising 
from this report. Capital investment optimises the use of property assets to 

Page 149



 4 of 4  
 

support the delivery of corporate priorities. The property implications of 
individual schemes will be considered and reported separately.    

 
10. Risk Management Implication - Risks are assessed as part of the process of 

monitoring the programme and in respect of treasury management.  The Cabinet 
will continue to receive quarterly reports for recommendation of any issues to 
Council, together with any necessary action to ensure expenditure is managed 
within available resources. 

 
11. Equality and Diversity Implications - There are no equality and diversity 

implications arising from this report. 
 
12. Crime and Disorder Implications – There are no direct crime and disorder 

implications arising from this report. 
 
13. Health Implications – There are no health implications arising from this report. 
 
14. Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - The climate emergency 

and sustainability implications are considered as part of developing and 
implementing individual capital projects. Planned investment within the capital 
programme is expected to result in improvements throughout the Borough. 

 
15. Human Rights Implications - There are no direct human rights implications arising 

from this report. 
 
16. Ward Implications - Capital scheme investment will improve wards across the 

borough. 
 

Background Information 
 

17. Report for Cabinet, 22 February 2022 (Council 25 February 2022) – Capital 
Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27. 
 
Report for Cabinet 16 July 2022 (Council 18 July 2022) – Capital Programme and 
Prudential Indicators 2022/23 First Quarter Review. 
 
Report for Cabinet 22 November 2022 (Council 24 November 2022) – Capital 
Programme and Prudential Indicators 2022/23 Second Quarter Review. 

 

Page 150



Appendix 2

Reason for movement Portfolio Group Project Title Variance to Q2 £000
Reprofiled to future years Resources, Management and Reputation EIG Baltic Quarter Enabling Infrastructure -214

Resources, Management and Reputation EIG Gateshead Quays Multi Storey Car Park -130
Resources, Management and Reputation R&D IT Strategic Plan -30
Environment and Transport EIG Loan to Gateshead Energy Company District Energy extension -4,209
Culture, Sport and Leisure PH&W Library & Locality Review -140
Communities and Volunteering HEHC Community Hubs -25
Economy EIG Blaydon Business Centre Extension -300
Housing EIG Metrogreen -20
Housing HEHC Development Site Preparation Works -150
Housing HEHC Block Communal improvements -300
Housing HEHC Domestic Heating Improvements -225

Reprofiled to future years Total -5,743
Other movements Housing EIG Gateshead Regeneration Partnership Urban Core - Exemplar Neighbourhood -765

Housing HEHC Digital Transformation -160
Housing HEHC Communal Mechanical & Electrical Works 125
Housing HEHC Building Safety Improvements -60
Housing HEHC Decent Homes -275
Housing HEHC Door and Window Replacements 480
Housing HEHC Fire Safety 2
Housing HEHC Lift Replacement 49

Other movements Total -604
Other increases Resources, Management and Reputation R&D Technology Plan: Infrastructure 14

Resources, Management and Reputation R&D Customer Experience 4
Resources, Management and Reputation CSC&LL Specialist IT equipment for Children and Young People with low incidence needs (hearing and vision impairment) 5
Environment and Transport EIG Transforming Cities (Tranche 2) 781
Environment and Transport EIG Public Sector Decarbonisation Schemes 241
Environment and Transport EIG Revealing the Angel 40
Environment and Transport HEHC Whitehills Woodland 8
Children and Young People HEHC School Condition Investment 210
Children and Young People HEHC Schools Devolved Formula Funding 80
Housing HEHC West Askew Road junction improvements 4

Other increases Total 1,387
Grand Total -4,960

Page 151



Appendix 3

 Approved 
2022/23 
Budget 

£000

Revised 
Q1 

Allocation 
£000

Revised 
Q2 

Allocation 
£000

Revised 
Q3 

Allocation 
£000

Variance 
to Q2 
£000

COMMUNITIES
Culture, Sport and Leisure 940 1,415 1,495 1,355 -140
Communities and Volunteering 75 137 100 75 -25

COMMUNITIES Total 1,015 1,552 1,595 1,430 -165
PEOPLE

Children and Young People 7,919 5,553 2,850 3,140 290
Adult Social Care 8,508 9,579 6,852 6,852 0

PEOPLE Total 16,427 15,132 9,702 9,992 290
PLACE AND ECONOMY

Environment and Transport 19,514 19,730 15,349 16,419 1,070
Economy 1,675 1,495 1,410 1,110 -300
Housing 27,890 27,337 22,147 20,852 -1,295

PLACE AND ECONOMY Total 49,079 48,562 38,906 38,381 -525
RESOURCES, MANAGEMENT AND REPUTATION

Resources, Management and Reputation 80,192 33,792 30,980 30,629 -351
RESOURCES, MANAGEMENT AND REPUTATION Total 80,192 33,792 30,980 30,629 -351
LOAN

Environment and Transport 0 4,209 4,209 0 -4,209
LOAN Total 0 4,209 4,209 0 -4,209
Grand Total 146,713 103,247 85,392 80,432 -4,960

P
age 152



Appendix 4

Approved 

2022/23 

Budget £000

Revised Q1 

Allocation 

£000

Revised Q2 

Allocation 

£000

Revised Q3 

Allocation 

£000  Comment
COMMUNITIES
Culture, Sport and Leisure
Fixed Play Facility Renewals 720 720 720 720
Library & Locality Review 100 75 140 0 Reprofiled to future years
Virtual Reality Fitness Systems 120 120 0 0
Gateshead International Stadium Investment 0 500 635 635

Communities and Volunteering
Community Hubs 75 137 100 75 Reprofiled to future years

PEOPLE
Children and Young People
Blaydon West Primary School New Build 4,400 2,576 500 500
Children's Three bed Residential Home 300 700 760 760
Children's Two Bed Residential Assessment Service in Gateshead 750 0 0 0
Extensions and adaptations to the homes of foster carers 250 150 150 150
School Condition Investment 1,969 1,877 1,190 1,400 Reprofiled external funding
Schools Devolved Formula Funding 250 250 250 330 Reprofiled external funding

Adult Social Care
Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) 2,550 2,550 2,550 2,550
Technology Enabled Care 100 50 50 50
Telecare Equipment 75 75 75 75
Sister Winifred Laver Centre 5,783 6,904 3,717 3,717
Social Care System 0 0 460 460

PLACE AND ECONOMY
Environment and Transport
Bensham Road Corridor 516 516 40 40
Flagged Footways 333 333 333 333
Flood Alleviation Investment 5,417 5,417 0 0
Follingsby Salt Store 878 0 0 0
Local Transport Plan ‐ Integrated Transport 1,233 1,233 1,339 1,339
Local Transport Plan ‐ Planned Maintenance 3,653 3,653 4,465 4,465
Quays fixed and VMS signage 360 234 50 50
Quays traffic signal upgrades 60 60 60 60
Replacement Bins 120 120 120 120
Riverside Park 50 50 50 50
Salix Energy Efficiency Works 150 150 150 150
Traffic Sign Replacement 150 150 80 80
Transforming Cities (Tranche 2) 3,534 3,534 3,534 4,315 Submission of business case to the Joint Transport Committee
Unclassified Road Resurfacing ‐ Micro Asphalt 289 275 275 275
Public Sector Decarbonisation Schemes 0 364 364 605 Reprofiled external funding
Gateshead District Energy Scheme ‐ District Heating connection 0 526 350 350
Gateshead District Energy Scheme ‐ Old Ford/Nest House 114 114 0 0
Gateshead District Energy Scheme ‐ Solar Panels 1,402 1,316 1,930 1,930
Street Lighting Column Replacement 1,175 1,255 1,000 1,000
Street Lighting Light Emitting Diode Replacement 80 0 0 0
Traffic Signal Renewal 0 369 369 369
Whitehills Woodland 0 61 61 69 Other Increases
Greenhomes Chopwell 0 0 779 779
Revealing the Angel 0 0 0 40 Additional grant funding received

Economy
Baltic Quarter Remediation 105 105 105 105
Blaydon Business Centre Extension 438 330 330 30 Reprofiled to future years
Broadband Delivery UK 80 80 80 80
Digital Gateshead 720 720 635 635
Greensfield Business Centre Refurbishment 242 180 180 180
High Street North ‐ Future Place 90 80 80 80

Housing
Aids and Adaptations 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500
Block Communal improvements 630 630 630 330 Reprofiled to future years
Building Safety Improvements 890 890 610 550 Other movements
Communal Mechanical & Electrical Works 312 312 400 525 Other movements
Contractual Obligations 2,000 2,000 1,900 1,900
Decent Homes 4,503 4,503 6,631 6,356 Other movements
Development Site Preparation Works 600 300 300 150 Reprofiled to future years
Digital Transformation 700 700 700 540 Other movements
Domestic Heating Improvements 2,343 2,343 2,343 2,118 Reprofiled to future years
Door and Window Replacements 645 645 656 1,136 Other movements
Environment and Estate Improvement 101 101 101 101
Fixed budget fees 550 550 550 550
Garage Improvement Programme 50 50 50 50
High Street South 253 0 0 0
High Street South Regeneration 728 728 300 300
HRA Commercial Property Improvements 50 50 50 50
Major Investment Scheme 1,985 1,985 225 225
Metrogreen 128 128 75 55 Reprofiled to future years
New Build/Acquisition ‐ Various 3,015 3,015 2,142 2,142
Option Appraisal 1,123 1,123 0 0
Safety & Security 66 66 66 66
West Askew Road junction improvements 2,800 2,800 10 14 Other Increases
Gateshead Regeneration Partnership Urban Core ‐ Exemplar Neighbourhood 1,100 1,100 1,100 335 Other decrease
IT refresh 244 244 244 244
Estate Regeneration 1,574 1,574 450 450
Fire Safety 0 0 292 294 Other movements
Lift Replacement 0 0 551 600 Other movements
Low Fell Parking improvements 0 0 139 139
Basement Improvements 0 0 100 100
Stock Project Management 0 0 32 32

RESOURCES, MANAGEMENT AND REPUTATION
Resources, Management and Reputation
Gateshead Quays 56,374 11,000 11,000 11,000
Baltic Quarter Enabling Infrastructure 7,114 7,386 5,786 5,572 Reprofiled to future years
Conversion of Birtley's Children's Centre 337 337 337 337
Customer Experience 105 95 113 117 Other Increases
Gateshead Quays Multi Storey Car Park 6,994 7,413 7,443 7,313 Reprofiled to future years
Health & Safety 600 591 591 591
Major Projects ‐ Project Management Costs 290 290 290 290
Occupational Health Management Software 14 18 14 14
OCTO Event Manager 42 67 67 67
Refurbishment of Metrology Lab 150 150 75 75
Replacement of Fleet and Horticultural Equipment 1,750 850 850 850
Strategic Maintenance 850 850 850 850
Technology Plan: Infrastructure 3,490 3,490 2,490 2,504 Other Increases
Technology Plan: Transformation Through Technology & New Ways of Working 821 821 821 821
Installation of Electric Vehicle charging points in Council Depots 807 0 0 0

Page 153



Approved 

2022/23 

Budget £000

Revised Q1 

Allocation 

£000

Revised Q2 

Allocation 

£000

Revised Q3 

Allocation 

£000  Comment
IT Strategic Plan 241 241 60 30 Reprofiled to future years
Kingsmeadow Life long learning centre 153 153 153 153
Specialist equipment to improve inclusion for Children and Young People ‐ High 

incidence needs 30 15 15 15
Specialist IT equipment for Children and Young People with low incidence needs 

(hearing and vision impairment) 30 25 25 30 Other Increases
LOAN
Environment and Transport
Loan to Gateshead Energy Company District Energy extension 0 4,209 4,209 0 Reprofiled to future years

Grand Total 146,713 103,247 85,392 80,432 Reprofiled to future yearsReprofiled external fundingReprofiled ext

Page 154



APPENDIX 5 
 

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2022/23 
 
The 2022/23 Prudential Indicators were agreed by Council on 22 February 2022 
(column 1).  This is now compared with the 2022/23 actual Q3 position as at the 31 
December 2022 (column 2).   
 
Certain Treasury Management indicators must be monitored throughout the year on a 
regular basis in order to avoid breaching agreed limits.  The capital expenditure and 
capital financing requirement indicators have been revised in line with the revised 
budget and none of the other approved Prudential Indicators set for 2022/23 have been 
breached. 
 

Capital Expenditure 

 
 

2022/23 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

2022/23 
£000 

Quarter 3 
 
Non-HRA 

 
124,432 

 
60,434 

 
HRA 

 
22,281 

 
19,998 

 
Total 

 
146,713 

 
80,432 

 
To reflect the reported capital monitoring agreed by Council during the year  

 
 
 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

 
 

2022/23 
Reported Indicator 

2022/23 
Quarter 3 

 
Non-HRA 

 
17.37% 

 
NA 

 
       HRA 

 
34.24% 

 
NA 

 
 

Capital Financing Requirement  

 
 

2022/23 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

2022/23 
£000 

Quarter 3 
 
Non-HRA 

 
441,180 

 
418,037 

 
       HRA 

 
345,505 

 
345,505 

 
 
 

Page 155



Authorised Limit for External Debt  

 
 

 2022/23 
£000 

Reported Indicator 
 
Borrowing 

  
895,000 

 
Other Long Term Liabilities 

  
0 

 
Total 

  
895,000 

 
Maximum YTD 31/12/2022 £684.966m 

 
 

 Operational Boundary for External Debt 

 
 

2022/23 
£000 

Reported Indicator 
 
Borrowing 

 

 
880,000 

 
Other Long Term Liabilities 

  
0 

 
Total 

  
880,000 

 
Maximum YTD 31/12/2022 £684.966m 

 
The Council’s actual external debt at 31 December 2022 was £684.966m.  It should be 
noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the Authorised Limit and 
Operational Boundary, since the actual external debt reflects the position at one point 
in time. 
 
 
Estimated Incremental Impact on Council Tax and Housing Rents 
 
This indicator is set at the time the Council’s budget is set. Therefore, there is no 
requirement for this Indicator to be monitored on a quarterly or annual basis. 
 
Adherence to CIPFA code on Treasury Management 
 
The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the 
Public Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 156



 
Upper / Lower Limits for Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing  

 2022/23 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

2022/23 
£000 

Actual Position 
 Upper 

Limit 
Lower 
Limit 

Actual 
Percentage 

Maximum 
YTD 

Under 12 months 20% 0%     0.00%     0.17% 
12 months to 24 months 21% 0%     2.78%     3.65% 
24 months to 5 years 26% 0%    7.06%         7.98% 
5 years to 10 years 26% 0%  11.71%    11.71%  
10 years to 20 years 22% 0%    6.50%    6.70% 
20 years to 30 years 43% 0%    5.19%    5.19% 
30 years to 40 years 46% 0%  30.54%  33.40% 
40 years to 50 years 48% 0%  33.29%  37.23% 
50 years and above 17% 0%    0.00%    0.00% 
 
All within agreed limits.  
 
Upper / Lower Limits for Maturity Structure of Variable Rate Borrowing  

 2022/23 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

2022/23 
£000 

Actual Position 
 Upper 

Limit 
Lower 
Limit 

Actual 
Percentage 

Maximum 
YTD 

Under 12 months 25% 0% 2.92%   3.01% 
12 months to 24 months 20% 0%   0.00%   0.00% 
24 months to 5 years 20% 0%   0.00%   0.00% 
5 years to 50 years and 
above 

20% 0%   0.00%   0.00% 

 
All within agreed limits.  

 
On 8 March 2007, Council agreed to the placing of investments for periods of longer than 
364 days in order to maximise investment income before forecasted cuts in interest rates.  
An upper limit was set and agreed as a new Prudential Indicator.   

 
Upper Limit on amounts invested beyond 364 days 
 
 
 

2022/23 
£000 

Reported Indicator 

2022/23 
£000 

Actual Position 

2022/23 
£000 

Maximum YTD 
 
Investments 

 

 
15,000 

 
0 

 
0 

 

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



  COUNCIL MEETING 

26 January 2023 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

NOTICE OF MOTION 

Councillor Jonathan Wallace will move the following motion: 
 
 
This Council notes that food inflation is at its highest level for forty years and is 
currently higher than the Consumer Prices Index. Council further notes that the 
consumption of fresh fruit is beneficial for the health of Gateshead’s residents.  
  
Council further notes that there are a number of disused orchards in the borough. 
Furthermore, many residents who have fruit trees in their gardens are unable to use 
all the produce which often goes into the waste system instead, at a direct cost to 
Gateshead Council. 
  
Council calls on the Chief Executive to draw up a strategy in which: 
  

1) unused orchards are identified; 
  

2) the voluntary sector brings them back into use; 
  

3) surplus domestically produced fruit is collected by the voluntary sector to help 
address food poverty in the borough. 

 
 
Proposed by:  Councillor J Wallace 
Supported by: Councillor R Beadle 
   P Craig 
   P Diston 

J Mohammed 
I Patterson 
D Welsh 

    
 

Page 159

Agenda Item 11a



This page is intentionally left blank



  COUNCIL MEETING 

26 January 2023 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

AMENDMENT TO NOTICE OF MOTION 

ITEM 11A – FRUIT FROM ORCHARDS 
 
Councillor Adams will move the following amendment; 
 
Insert new paragraphs two and three: 
 
“Council notes that the Thrive initiative, the Health and Well-Being Strategy, the 
Climate Change strategy and Poverty portfolio already exist with the objectives of 
reducing inequalities, helping people thrive and addressing food poverty in the 
borough.  
 
“Council also notes that it launched the Gateshead Food Network in 2018 and 
wishes to express its thanks to the individuals and voluntary and community 
organisations that have done so much good work over the years on tackling food 
poverty and on redistributing surplus food.” 
 
 
 
Delete from “Council calls on the Chief Executive…..” 
 
Insert new concluding paragraph: 
 
“Council resolves that it 
 

1. encourages individuals and the community and voluntary sector to identify 
unused orchards and bring them back into use, and will use its existing 
policies, strategies and networks to provide support and encouragement.  
 

2. encourages individuals and community and voluntary organisations to collect 
and distribute surplus domestically produced fruit to help address food poverty 
in the borough.” 

 
 
 
Proposed by:  Councillor John Adams   
 
Supported by: Councillor Martin Gannon      

Page 161

Agenda Item 11b



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held 24 November 2022
	1 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held 24 November 2022
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	6 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 30 year Business Plan
	26 January 2023
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION

	6 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 30 year Business Plan
	Cabinet Report - HRA Business Plan
	REPORT TO CABINET
	TITLE OF REPORT:	Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 30 Year Business Plan
	REPORT OF:	Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
	Colin Huntington, Strategic Director, Housing, Environment 	and Healthy Communities
	Proposal
	Recommendations
	Policy Context
	Implications of Recommended Option
	Background Information


	6 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 30 year Business Plan
	HRA Business Plan Cabinet

	7 Local Boundary Commission for England - Electoral Review of Gateshead Council
	26 January 2023
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION

	7 Local Boundary Commission for England - Electoral Review of Gateshead Council
	a.LGBCE Elect Review report & appends
	LBCE Electoral Review of Council size report
	REPORT TO CABINET
	Purpose of the Report
	Background
	Proposal
	Recommendations
	Policy Context
	Background
	Consultation
	Alternative Options
	Implications of Recommended Option

	Background Information

	Draft Submission to LGBCE on Council size - Cabinet
	Appendix 1 - List of ward, councillor & party
	Appendix 2 - Functions and Delegations
	Appendix 3 - Delegation of Local Choice Functions
	Appendix 4 - Committee Attendance 2021.22 (002)
	Appendix 5 - Individual attendance data Gateshead Council 2021.22
	Appendix 6 - Experince of Portfolio Holder  Cabinet Member


	8 Calendar of Meetings 2023/24
	26 January 2023
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION

	8 Calendar of Meetings 2023/24
	Calendar of Meeting 2023-24 report ckd
	REPORT TO CABINET
	Purpose of the Report
	Background
	Recommendations
	APPENDIX 1

	Policy Context
	Background
	Alternative Options
	Implications of Recommended Option

	19.	Background Information - The calendar of meetings approved for the current municipal year.


	8 Calendar of Meetings 2023/24
	Calendar of Meeting 2023-24 Appendix 2

	9 Revenue Budget Third Quarter Review 2022/23
	26 January 2023
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION

	9 Revenue Budget Third Quarter Review 2022/23
	Revenue Budget Monitoring Qtr3 report
	Purpose of the Report
	Background
	Proposal
	Recommendations
	Policy Context
	Background
	Consultation
	Alternative Options
	Implications of Recommended Option


	10 Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2022/23 – Third Quarter Review
	26 January 2023
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION

	10 Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2022/23 – Third Quarter Review
	Capital Monitoring Q3 ckd
	REPORT TO CABINET
	Purpose of the Report
	Background
	Proposal
	Recommendations
	Policy Context
	Background
	Consultation
	Alternative Options
	Implications of Recommended Option

	Background Information


	10 Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2022/23 – Third Quarter Review
	Q3 Apendices

	10 Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators 2022/23 – Third Quarter Review
	Q3 2022-23 Appendix 5

	11a Notice of Motion - Fruit from Orchards
	26 January 2023
	GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

	11b Amendment to Motion
	26 January 2023
	GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL


